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Property management services

IIIFIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Redsun Services provides property owners, residents
and tenants with a wide range of property
management services, including, among others,
security, cleaning, greening and gardening, facility
management, and repairs and maintenance services.
The Group's portfolio of managed properties
comprises of residential, commercial and other
properties. In addition to residential properties, the
Group also provides property management services
to a variety of commercial properties, such as
shopping malls, home improvement and furnishings
malls, hotels and theme park. The Group also
provides property management services to other
properties such as office buildings and schools.
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HE JIE cChairman
A xx

Dear shareholders, B SIE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present to you the annual ~ RNAZRRREFTCMAREAREEH F2020F12 A31
report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020. HIEFEMNFERE -

2020 was a milestone year with opportunities and challenges for — 2020F AW EITE M A EE A M B EE T FH
both the property management industry and the Group. In the face ~— —%& - BB BRI EE - S 2200 H K& 578 b 4
of the sudden outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group J&15  AEEBGHAEHEEMT  ERARBENB T
actively assumed its social responsibility. In the days of overcoming 18 * B {TRTHRE - BT LR RD) - &I5H
the difficulties together, we not only experienced the heroic i @ NEBHBTHE TR TEA - EARBEHEBIZA
moments of standing firmly against the pandemic, but was also  Bi[F|ef - SRR T M R LT 2 H SRS G A -

moved by helping and supporting each other. During the pandemic,

more than 1,000 employees of the Group stuck to their posts and

built an iron wall to protect the safety of the community in the

battle of joint prevention and control of the pandemic.

\\ 010



Toughness is the only way to show one’s courage and
perseverance, and sharpening is the only way to achieve
success. Overcoming the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 7 July 2020 and entered the capital market. The
Group's accurate judgement of market development direction, rapid
adaptation to market changes, and adherence to steady
development enabled the Group to grow steadily in terms of scale
and performance leveraging on its strategic advantages of the
“residential + commercial” two-wheel drive model and the layout of
strategy of “penetrating the Greater Jiangsu Region, strengthening
foothold in the Yangtze River Delta Region and expanding into major

metropolitan areas” (ffGE R T & - AR =/ - HBEEmE).

Our three-dimensional development sectors, harnessing the
trend of steady progress. During the Reporting Period, our three
major business lines namely property management services, value-
added services to non-property owners and community value-added
services, all kept pace with each other. The Group achieved revenue
of RMB767.9 million, representing an increase of 52.7% as compared
with that of the corresponding period in 2019, of which the revenue
from community value-added services increased significantly by
310.9%. Excluding the impact of listing expenses, the Group's profit
for the period amounted to RMB93.3 million, representing an
increase of 63.5% as compared with RMB57.1 million for the
corresponding period in 2019; The profitability of the Group was
further enhanced in 2020, with an overall gross profit margin
reaching 27.9%, an increase of 2.6 percentage points compared with
2019, and a net profit margin increasing by 0.9 percentage points
compared with 2019, reaching 12.2%.

ABBEBEEAERAR . —s=2558 @ \
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Laying out urban services, and actively exploring new
development tracks. As of 31 December 2020, the Group had
provided property management services and value-added services to
57 cities in China, with 159 projects under management and
contracted gross floor area ("GFA”) of approximately 39.9 million
sg.m., which has increased by approximately 44.6% as compared
with 31 December 2019 and including GFA under management of
approximately 27.0 million sq.m., representing an increase of
approximately 71.4% as compared with 31 December 2019. We
actively explored for cooperation chances to capture market
opportunities, increase the scale of property management through
strategic acquisitions, and focus on regions with high economic
output value. We entered into equity cooperation with Chuzhou
Yurun Property Management Company Limited CBINFE ¥ ¥ E 12
ABRZA7A]) and Wuhan Huidehang Elite Property Service Co., Ltd. (E
EEBITHEREMERFEERAF]) respectively, forming a strong
alliance to complement each other in terms of regions and sectors,
which increased the Group’s market share in Anhui and Hubei, and

improved the overall profit margin level.

In 2020, we successively provided property management services for
Taishan Street Kindergarten, International School Pukou and
Xiaozhuang Campus in Jiangbei New District of Nanjing, which not
only filled in the gaps in our niche sectors such as education, but
also marked a new stage in the diversified development of the

Group's properties under management.

At a time when the industry and governments at all levels are
exploring urban services, the Group took the lead in reaching a
cooperation agreement with Taishan Street in Pukou District of
Nanjing, to serve a number of old residential communities within its
administrative area of 52.6 square kilometers, which has been well
received by the government, industry, customers and media. We
have been deeply cultivating into professional vertical market
segments, leveraging on the incubation and expansion of projects
around various fields such as public services and municipal
management services, which has now formed a good leading

demonstration effect through this steady and orderly pilot.

\\ 012
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Treating customers with sincerity, providing them with excellent
services, and adhering to high-quality services. While growing in
scale, the Group insisted on improving its own service quality, and
set up a Redsun Services residential service product system ahead of
its property owners' expectations, so as to interlock the quality
service throughout the life cycle and protect a better life for the
property owners of Redsun Services. “Rejuvenation with Heart and
Love for Family Plan (LADMRFR - B 5ETE])” for 2020 awoke a happy
life with quality; “Redsun Friendship Neighbourhood (34 & #5)"
fulfilled the infinite vision of time, and other several community
activities throughout the year including Goddess Festival (ZZ %),
Starlight Film Festival (£ Y% & f), Festival for Redsun’s Property
Owners (54 A i), The Most Beautiful One Kilometer (&xE— R B),
and Winter Warm Heart Soup (% HBEE/L)\%), more than 300,000
property owners participated in such activities.

Innovating community value-added services to enhance our
property owners’ happiness index. As the property industry steps
into the fast lane of rapid growth, property companies continue to
expand value-added services to meet the increasingly diversified
customer needs. Centering on all aspects of our property owners’
lives, we took advantage of the natural advantages of Redsun in
commercial field to continuously innovate value-added services for
the property owners and enhance their happiness index. The Red Life
APP allows our property owners to feel the warmth delivered by

Redsun Services without leaving their homes.

Enhancement of customer experience and management
efficiency through intelligent services. The application of modern
mature technology and management techniques in property
management has enabled the industry to enjoy the bonus of
development. In 2020, we cooperated with Alipay to integrate offline
and online resources, built an online customer platform, and made
use of the leading loT platform to build a smart community, aiming
to provide a convenient customer service based on the principle of
customer service-oriented. Through an intelligent service collection
platform and a perfect management system, we integrated online
and offline services to configure convenient and assured community
life supporting services and an all-around empowered Hong Butler
team. Through the Red Life APP, customer service hotline and
customer service centers, we provided customers with both
convenient and fast online service mode and offline service space for
face-to-face communication and interaction to meet the needs of

different customer groups.
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The promotion of Redsun Smart Town (5AFZE 2 /N8H) is an
important part of the Group’s digital transformation and
technological means to empower modern property management.
Internally, Redsun Smart Town (SAFZ%E ZE/NE) has realized the
interconnection of information systems to provide a basis for
decision-making; externally, Redsun Smart Town (SAFZ % £/ \§8) has
comprehensively improved customer experience, corporate brand
image and satisfaction; its information technology covers all staff,
fully supports mobile office, reduces costs and increases efficiency,
and supports diversified operations.

In 2020, the Group received a number of awards. In May 2020, we
were awarded by China Index Academy (CIA) the title of “Top 100
Property Management Companies in 2020" (20207 B ¥ iR 15 B
98), and our ranking of overall strength in the industry also moved
up 10 places as compared with 2019 to No.25. At the same time, we
also received awards such as Potential Unicorn Property Service
Company (YRGB H B AEDZE), Top 10 Capital Attention
China Property Management Company (#1313 & 2N )1 [Z 1058),
Blue Chip Property Company with Outstanding Investment Value (&5
EVEE MR EEMEDE) and IPO Award with the Most Growth
Power (Fx ALK & J1IPOHE).

The journey is long, but there is only endeavor. Looking ahead,
the property management industry has great potential for
development. The Group will continue to adhere to the original
vision of “making lives warmer (45 £ B )R/Z)" and the principle
of customer-oriented, treat customers with sincerity and provide
them with excellent services, and focus on the three dimensions of
"expanding scale, increasing revenue and improving services” to
deeply explore and sincerely practice, aiming at achieving a rapid

growth with quality, and becoming a venerable good life operator.
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Finally, on behalf of the Board again, | would like to extend my
wholehearted gratitude to all shareholders, employees, partners,
customers and property owners for their unfailing support to the

Group in year 2020!

Redsun Services Group Limited
He Jie

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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Value-added services to non-property

owners

Redsun Services also provides value-added services
to non-property owners, primarily property
developers, including (i) consulting services to other
property management companies, (i) preliminary
planning and design consultancy services to
property developers for property development
projects, (iii) sales assistance services to property
developers to assist with their sales and marketing
activities at property sales venues and display units,
including visitor reception, cleaning, security
inspection and maintenance, and (iv) other value-
added services to property developers, such as
inspection services.
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REVIEW FOR 2020

2020 was the year of building a moderately prosperous society in an
all-round way and the end of the “13th Five-year Plan”. Standing at
the historical intersection of the “Two Centenary” Goals, China is
facing a more complex internal and external environment,
superimposing the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, it has become
a top priority for China to continue to solve people’s livelihood
problems, safeguard people’s health and maintain stable social
development. Under the complex situation, the property
management industry is also facing new challenges and
opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENREDN

During the fighting against the pandemic, property management
companies had carried out their responsibilities to stay at the
forefront of this battle against the pandemic, and made their own
contributions to the success of the society in fighting the pandemic.
As a major force of community pandemic prevention, the importance
of property management companies was highlighted as they needed
to ensure not only the health of community residents, but also the
supplies for communities and the daily life. In the course of fighting
against the pandemic, the communication and trust between
property management companies and property owners had also
been greatly improved, which resulted in “the second value
exploration” for property management industry and laid a solid
foundation for the medium and long term healthy development of
property management industry in the future.
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In May 2020, with the announcement of “implementing the strategy
of expanding domestic demand” and “supporting the recovery and
development of food and beverage, brick and mortar shopping,
culture, tourism, domestic services, and other consumer services” in
the Report on the Work of the Government, and the announcement
of “expediting the formation of a new development pattern where
domestic and foreign markets can boost each other, with domestic
market as the mainstay” in the meeting of the Political Bureay,
domestic demand had become the main driving force for the
medium and long term development of China’s economy in the
future, and property management companies, as the gateway closest
to community residents, would potentially enjoy faster growth
against the background of rapid development of domestic

consumption demand.

During the pandemic, the Company responded to the government’s
call to actively assume social responsibility, stand firmly against the
pandemic, jointly prevent and control with the community, and
protect the safety of the community and our property owners. The
Company also strengthened its property management standards and
pandemic prevention and control standards, extended service
boundaries oriented by the needs of our property owners, and
supported people’s livelihood with action and commitment so as to
make their hearts warmer.

2020 is an important year in respect of the Company’s development.
On 7 July, Redsun Services was listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and entered the capital
market. The Company’s accurate judgement of market development
direction, rapid adaptation to market changes and adherence to
steady development enabled the Company to grow steadily in terms

of scale and performance.

The Company is a fast-growing property management service
provider in China with good reputation and strong and balanced
property management capability in terms of managing residential
and commercial properties. In May 2020, we were awarded by China
Index Academy (CIA) the title of “Top 100 Property Management
Companies in 2020", and our ranking of overall strength in the
industry also moved up 10 places as compared with 2019 to No. 25.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue was RMB767.9
million,
RMB503.0 million for the corresponding period of 2019. Profit for the

representing an increase of 52.7% as compared with

period was RMB73.3 million, representing an increase of 28.5% as
compared with RMB57.1 million for the corresponding period of
2019. Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was RMB69.8 million, representing an increase of 18.1% as
compared with RMB59.1 million for the corresponding period of
2019. Excluding the impact of listing expenses, the Company
achieved an adjusted profit of RMB93.3 million for the period,
representing a significant increase of 63.5% as compared with
RMB57.1 million for the corresponding period of 2019.

The business of the Group covers a variety of property types,
including residential properties and non-residential properties such as
commercial buildings, school and public buildings, and also covers
other specialized high-quality consulting services, resulting in
collaborated balanced development of residential and commercial
projects. As of 31 December 2020, the Group had provided property
management services and value-added services to 57 cities in China,
with 159 projects under management and contracted GFA of
approximately 39.9 million sg.m., which has increased by
December 2019 and

including GFA under management of approximately 27.0 million

approximately 44.6% as compared with 31

sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 71.4% as compared
with 31 December 2019.

In terms of management scale, the Company has achieved
remarkable results by adopting diversified external measures to
accelerate its scale expansion. In terms of business performance, the
Company continued to optimize its basic services, and strategically
carried out its value-added services, resulting in a rapid growth in
operating revenue; in terms of service quality, the Company has won
increasing satisfaction from its property owners with more dedication
and in-depth of services, and the collection rate of property
management fees and the renewal rate of projects have maintained
a higher level for many years. In terms of social responsibility, the
Company alleviated the pressure of employment at the grassroots
level, and actively undertook the management of affordable housing,
while paying taxes in accordance with the law, actively participating

in social welfare, and bravely assuming social responsibility.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Our business model

Since

our inception in Nanjing in 2003, we have grown from a

property management service provider to a well-recognized

community service provider with national presence in China. We

provide a wide range of property management services to property

owners, residents and tenants. We also provide value-added services

to non-property owners, primarily property developers, and other

property management companies and community value-added

services to residential property owners and residents.

1)

\\ 022

Property management services: We provide property owners,
residents and tenants with a wide range of property
management services, including, among others, public order,
cleaning, greening, facility management, and repairs and
maintenance services. Our portfolio of managed properties
comprises of residential, commercial and other properties. In
addition to residential properties, we also provide property
management services to a variety of commercial properties,
such as shopping malls, home improvement and furnishings
malls, hotels and theme parks. We also provide property
management services to other properties such as office
buildings and schools.

Value-added services to non-property owners: We also provide
value-added services to non-property owners, including (i)
consulting services to other property management companies,
(i) preliminary planning and design consultancy services to
property developers for property development projects, (iii)
sales assistance services to property developers to assist with
their sales and marketing activities at property sales venues
and display units, including visitor reception, cleaning, security
inspection and maintenance; and (iv) other value-added

services to property developers, such as inspection services.

e EI)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

3) Community value-added services: We provide community 3)
value-added services to residential property owners and
residents to improve their living experiences with an aim to
preserve and increase the value of their properties. Our
community value- added services for residential properties
primarily include, among others, (i) property brokerage
services, (i) property decoration services, (iii) community
convenience services, (iv) common area value-added services
and (v) assets management services.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s total revenue TR &7 AN E B RS B A K& 20194 [B] BRI IR E 5 43
by business lines during the Reporting Period and the corresponding &5 HI A& U A BAAR -
period of 2019:

R EmERAR - —2-255E @ \

EEENWEDN

MEEERS : RPIAEEVEEEREFIRE
A RIEERY  UNEEEERS S8
REMEREAE FTEVWENLRIBERS
FEREOEERNRS - ()VEERE - (itt
EFERRS - (WAREERSERVWEEEER
%% -

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
# %2020 12H31H B E2019512H31H
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
WA 5t WA {(=1=¢
(RMB’000) (%) (RMB'000) (%)
(AR®F ) (%) (AR®FIT) (%)
Property management M EE IR R
services 496,228 64.6% 354,767 70.5%
Value-added services to EXEFLERS
non-property owners 161,210 21.0% 121,352 24.1%
Community value-added BRI E R
services 110,414 14.4% 26,871 5.4%
Total B 767,852 100.0% 502,990 100.0%

023 /



/ . Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2020

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWESH

By types of developers:

The table below sets forth the Group's total revenue from property
management services, GFA under management and number of

projects during the Reporting Period and the corresponding period

R RS

TERHBINAEBRREA KR 2019F R M EEEAR
B ALRE EEEREZEEBENBEHSZ

ventures and associates of Redsun Properties Group in which Redsun
Properties Group does not hold a controlling interest.

K 024

of 2019:
As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
HZ2020612A318 EZ2019%12A318
Number of GFA under Number of GFA under
Revenue Projects  management Revenue Projects management
WA HEYE HEERLEER LN HEHE CERERRE
(RMB’000) ('000 sq.m.) (RMB'000) (000 sq.m.)
(AE%T ) (FEAK) (ARETF) (FEAR)
Redsun Properties Group” ENCE -3 JER 271,002 67 11,680.5 197,145 54 9,743.2
Third-party property developers EZHERWERER 132,612 89 14,045.1 49,658 37 47281
Third party developers?® E=-FRAERC 104,045 77 12,285.8 40,484 33 35720
Joint ventures and associates of AR5 E R
Redsun Properties® RERER
NI 28,567 12 1,759.3 9,174 4 1,156.1
Other associates of our Controlling ERBER
Shareholders” HAh B A 92,614 3 1,282.9 107,964 3 12829
Total @t 496,228 159 27,008.6 354,767 9% 15,7542

Notes: s -

(1) Includes projects solely developed by Redsun Properties Group Limited () PELGHEEBEERAR (HROOERZMM LM -
(the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock FRADASE 1996 » [GARBHBEE |) R HT B R E) (&7 [ 34
Code:1996), “Redsun Properties”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, fGihESE ) EBALXMIAL MoLGhEEEEE
"Redsun Properties Group’) and properties that Redsun Properties EHEREMERRENMEGCLGIHESBEREZ
Group jointly developed with other property developers for which EMEITEHIER) o
properties Redsun Properties Group holds a controlling interest.

(2)  Includes properties developed by third-party property developers Q)  PREBIRLGHESENE=SEMEMERMR
independent from Redsun Properties Group. okz/E

(3)  Includes properties developed by property developers which are joint (B) PRERALWGHESBENAPIEEFIEEZNEELE

L RBINEHEREEAENYE -



M

Includes properties owned by Jiangsu Redsun Industrial Raw Materials
City Co., Ltd. ("Redsun Materials City") together with its subsidiaries
and Nanjing Redsun Business World Co. Ltd. (‘Redsun Business
World"), which are associates of our Controlling Shareholders. Redsun
Materials City is owned as to 100% by Mr. Zeng Huansha, the founder
and Controlling Shareholder of the Group (‘“Mr. Zeng"). Redsun
Business World is owned as to 90% by Ms. Zeng Suging (& 2)&), the
sister of Mr. Zeng, and 10% by Ms. Chen Sihong (P B.4L),

B #L), spouse of
Mr. Zeng.

By types of properties we manage:

The table below sets forth the Group's total revenue from property
management services, GFA under management and number of
projects during the Reporting Period and the corresponding period
of 2019

Our
non-residential properties under management include office

We manage residential and non-residential properties.
buildings, malls and schools, etc. Although the revenue from
residential properties still accounts for a substantial proportion of our
revenue, we endeavor to diversify our service offerings, so as to cover
other types of properties.

As at 31 December 2020

LEREEEERAT - —s-s5s% @ \

ANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENREDN

BEEREROBE THRAIAR TERBIARA
AI(TAABRIERRE]) REMBARRERAKNS
AEAMAERAR ((AABEEAER]) BEEHY
¥ -AOABITEREMABERDEE (REEREIA
AR (B £ A 100% ° AL KI5 E KR
tHHREERFLLT (GEENME) #H90% & BRI
AL (BERENRE) HEB10% -

B M 2019 R EAM 2 B IR R
mENERBH#ES

BABEEEMIFEEDE - RANEEFEEDE
BREBAKNE  BHEERE - EREZMERALD
REBEBERABABARS - BRMES D EHM
RIS HEZ AL - OREEMBENYE -

As at 31 December 2019

#Z2020512A31H BZE2019F 128318
Number of GFA under Number of GFA under
Revenue Projects  management Revenue Projects management
['ON BEHYE EEEFEE A HEHHE FERZERR
(RMB’000) ('000 sq.m.) (RMB'000)
(AE¥T ) (FEAK) (ARETFR)
Residential FE 292,728 126 23,017.8 173878 69 12,0615
Commercial [ES 194,481 24 3,627.3 177,095 19 33808
Others Hity 9,019 9 363.5 3,794 6 3119
Total L) 496,228 159 27,008.6 354,767 9% 15,7542
Note: Hiat -

M Other properties primarily include office buildings and schools.

(1) HEtWEFEEEREFERER -
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BB o
By types of geographic presence: LRHIE S MHERE S -

The table below sets forth the Group’s total revenue from property 3% & 5| K £2 B A #7245 HA P9 K2 20194 [R] B 4 £ & 38 AR
management services, GFA under management and number of AR AEEEEENEBHE -
projects during the Reporting Period and the corresponding period

of 2019:

Since the inception of the Group, we have expanded our geographic ~ B RSB LA » #Z=20209F12 8318 » H A9
presence from Nanjing to 57 cities in China as of 31 December 2020. B MEHE RIERZE R RS7EH T °

As at 31 December 2020 As at 31 December 2019
BZ2020%12A31H HZE2019612A318
Number of GFA under Number of GFA under
EET Projects  management Revenue Projects management
O HEYE EERLEER A BEHE EERLEEE
(RMB'000) ('000 sq.m.) (RMB'000)
(AR¥T ) (FEFX) (ARETR)
Nanjing AR 331,663 75 12,3575 297,044 58 10,3975
Jiangsu (excluding Nanjing) L& (BRERIN 101,314 37 6,302.8 52,186 3 34433
Shanghai i) 5,860 1 207.1 2922 1 207.1
Anhui ZH 29,060 28 5,159.9 2213 7 865.7
Shandong W 7,604 2 146.7 360 2 2646
Hunan HE 3,480 3 550.0 — 1 1500
Hebei Ak 4,342 1 76.9 4 1 769
Henan k] 4,410 1 73.8 — — —
Zhejiang iijpan 1,628 2 4729 — 1 3491
Hubei izibld 4,252 1 635.3 — — —
Chongging E 1,955 3 4112 — - —
Jiangxi 17 660 2 204.5 — — —
Guangdong EX - 1 2283 — — -
Sichuan )l — 2 181.6 — — —
Subtotal Nat 496,228 159 27,008.6 354,767 94 15,7542
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB767.9 million, representing an increase of RMB264.9 million or
52.7% from RMB503.0 million for the corresponding period in 2019.
The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in
the number of residential and commercial projects managed by the
Group, leading to the corresponding increase in revenue from
providing property management services; meanwhile the revenue
from providing value-added services to non-property owners and
community value-added services also increased.

Property management services

During the Reporting Period, the Group's revenue from providing
property management services reached RMB496.2 million,
representing an increase of RMB141.4 million or 39.9% from
RMB354.8 million for the corresponding period in 2019. This was
mainly attributable to the rapid increase in total GFA under
management in line with the Group’s business expansion.

Value-added services to non-property owners

During the Reporting Period, the Group's revenue from value-added
services to non-property owners reached RMB161.2 million,
representing an increase of 32.8% from RMB121.4 million for the
corresponding period in 2019. The increase in revenue from
value-added services to non-property owners was mainly attributable
to the increase in the revenue from sales assistance services at sales

venues.

EEENWEDN
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Community value-added services

During the Reporting Period, the Group’'s community value-added
services recorded a significant increase. The revenue reached
RMB110.4 million, representing a significant increase of 310.9% from
RMB26.9 million for the corresponding period in 2019. During the
Reporting Period, the Group actively explored available resources in
the community to enhance the utilization rate of community

resource space, resulting in a significant increase in revenue.

Cost of sales and services

During the Reporting Period, the Group's cost of sales and services
amounted to RMB553.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 47.4% from RMB375.5 million for the corresponding
period in 2019. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase
in staff cost and sub-contracting cost as a result of the expansion of
operation scale.

Gross profit

As a result of the aforementioned key factors, the Group’s gross profit
increased by approximately 68.2% from RMB127.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to RMB214.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to (i) an
increase in revenue from providing property management services as
a result of the increase in the number of residential and commercial
projects managed by the Group; and (ii) an increase in revenue from
providing value-added services to non- property owners and
community value-added services.

K 028
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's gross profit margin by business lines is set forth below:

EEENWEDN

AEBEIZEEHGEADHENTMOT

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEEE

2020 2019

20204 20194F

Property management services MEE R RS 25.5% 25.2%
Value-added services to non-property owners JEEFIRERY 21.6% 21.2%
Community value-added services RIS E R 48.0% 46.1%
Total Gh 27.9% 253%

During the Reporting Period, the Group's gross profit margin was
27.9%, representing an increase of 2.6 percentage points from 25.3%
for the corresponding period in 2019. The increase was mainly
attributable to the further optimization of the Group's business
structure and active promotion on the development of community
value-added services which have higher gross profit margin.

The gross profit margin of property management services was 25.5%,
a slight increase as compared with 25.2% for the corresponding
period in 2019. The number of projects under management by the
Group continued to increase, and the gross profit margin of the
Reporting Period increased slightly due to effective economies of
scale.

The gross profit margin of value-added services to non-property
owners was 21.6%, representing a slight increase from 21.2% for the
corresponding period in 2019. The increase was mainly attributable
to the increase in the number of projects of preliminary planning and
design consultancy services provided by the Group, which was a
business with relatively high gross profit margin.

The gross profit margin of community value-added services was
48.0%, representing an increase from 46.1% for the corresponding
period in 2019. The increase was mainly attributable to an
improvement in the gross profit margin level as a result of the
significant increase in revenue from the Group's value-added services
in common areas during the Reporting Period.

WMEHA  KEBEEFEKE279% @ B2019F B HA
253% EF 26BN TEHRAEEE—FEL
EBEBUYRNNHEDEFN RSN R IEEREE
E o

Y EETIBRIGE TR F255% - 820194 [F ERHY25.2%
AL AEBEETHEEEEFEL N BN
FRRENE  MEBEF EEE EF -

FEEFTEERSEF X E216%  82019%F A B 1Y
2120088 EF > FEARAEEREATHRS MR
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R IEE RS EFI R E48.0% » 8201949 A B A746.1%
BAEFA  T2ERFEHANAEEREIBEREIK
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Other income and other net income

During the Reporting Period, the Group'’s other income and other net
income amounted to RMB20.1 million, compared to RMB3.1 million
for the corresponding period in 2019, mainly attributable to the
increase in government grants received in the period.

Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group's administrative expenses
amounted to RMB104.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 104.6% from RMB50.9 million for the corresponding
period in 2019. The increase was mainly attributable to (i) fees and
expenses incurred in connection with listing; and (ii) the increase in
staff cost as a result of the increase in the number of management
personnel in line with the Group’s business expansion and the

increase in average wage.

Net impairment losses on financial assets

The Group's net impairment losses on financial assets primarily
included the impairment allowance for trade receivables and other
receivables in accordance with the accounting policy. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s net impairment losses on financial
assets amounted to RMB1.9 million, as compared to RMBO0.4 million
for the corresponding period in 2019, which was mainly due to the
increased trade receivables as a result of the increase in revenue
scale.

Profit before income tax expense

During the Reporting Period, the Group's profit before income tax
expense amounted to RMB108.4 million, representing an increase of
approximately 38.4% from RMB78.3 million for the corresponding
period in 2019.

Income tax expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax expense
amounted to RMB35.1
approximately 65.2% from RMB21.2 million for the corresponding

million, representing an increase of

period in 2019, which was mainly due to the increase in profit before

tax.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity, reserves and capital structure

The Group maintained a solid financial position during the Reporting
Period. As at 31 December 2020, the current assets amounted to
RMB1,016.7 million, representing a significant increase as compared
to RMB502.6 million as at 31 December 2019. The Group's cash and
bank balances were mainly denominated in RMB and amounted to
RMB826.3 million, representing an increase of 361.3% from RMB179.1
million as at 31 December 2019, which was mainly derived from the
net proceeds raised from the Group’s initial public offering and
over-allotment rights arising from its listing on 7 July 2020, as well as
cash inflow from operating activities. The Group was at a sound level
of liquidity during the Reporting Period. The current ratio (current
assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 2.70 as at 31
December 2020, representing a significant increase from 1.57 as at
31 December 2019. The gearing ratio (total liabilities divided by total
assets) as at 31 December 2020 was 35.0%, which was a significant
decrease from 59.7% as compared to that of as at 31 December
2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's total equity amounted to
RMB720.4 million, representing a significant increase of 231.5% from
RMB217.3 million as at 31 December 2019, which was mainly due to
the successful listing of the Group on the Stock Exchange on 7 July
2020, which raised approximately HKS$460.1 million (after deducting
the underwriting fees, commissions and other expenses in relation to
the Global Offering), as well as the growth resulting from operating
profit. The Group had no bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2019.

The Group actively reviews and manages its capital structure on a
regular basis to maintain a balance between the relatively high
returns to the owners of the Group and possible high level of
borrowings and maintains the advantages and security of a sound
capital position. The Group also makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

EEENWEDN
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Trade receivables

The Group's trade receivables primarily include receivables from
customers for property management services and community
value-added services. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's trade
receivables amounted to RMB72.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately 181.4% from RMB25.6 million as at 31 December
2019, which was mainly due to the increase in trade receivables
arising from the acquisition of Chuzhou Yurun Property Management
Company Limited CHRMFEMEERFR QA by the Group
during this year, as well as the increase in the Group's revenue scale.

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

The Group’s prepayments, other receivables and other assets
primarily consist of prepayments on behalf of customers to utility
suppliers, other deposits, amounts due from third parties and other
tax recoverable. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's prepayments,
deposits and other receivables amounted to RMB30.3 million,
representing a decrease as compared to RMB32.0 million as at 31
December 2019 primarily due to the recovery of certain other
deposits during the Reporting Period.

Trade payables

The Group’s trade payables mainly comprise amounts due to
sub-contractors of property management services. As at 31
December 2020, the Group's trade payables amounted to RMB48.0
million, representing an increase of approximately 11.1% from
RMB43.2 million as at 31 December 2019, which was mainly due to
the increase in the number of projects under management by the
Group, resulting in an expansion of the corresponding outsourcing
scale.

K 032

e
TEENESREBFBEEDERYEE LIRS Rt
@I EARTS 2K B B P 8 Y ERIE « REE R 2020412
ANEMEZEBFIERARE721BE T - 82019
F1NANBMARKS6EHE T MA1814% » £E
HRAEBAFREBRMNFEDEESEER AR LR
B HRUGRIBE N - ARAEERARRIER

FERIE - HtBEWREREMWEE

AEEMBNRIE HERREBEREMNEEEER
BEREFEPAARAEEMHERINFENKIE - Hf
Ze BRE=FARBEREMITKBEFIE - RNEER
2020F 12 A3TBMVTERT RIA ~ e R EMEWRFIER
ARBEI03HE T B2019F 12831 B A RE320
BETEMRY  FEZHRHREBHAYE S Hi iz

o

k>

B S EFRIE
AEENEZRENFBETZRENDEETEREH B
PIRIRIE - AEBER2020F 12831 BN E S B KIE
BAREEISOAE L BR2019F12A31BHNARE
A32E BTN 1% TEHRAEEEEHE
e SNEAREMREE XK o



R EmMERAR - —2-255E @ \
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Contract liabilities

The Group’s contract liabilities mainly represent the advance
payments made by customers while our underlying services are yet
to be provided. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's contract
liabilities amounted to RMB134.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately 64.5% from RMB81.9 million as at 31 December 2019,
which was mainly due to the continuous growth in the number of
property projects under management as a result of the Group's
business expansion.

Other payables and accruals

The Group's other payables and accruals primarily comprise payroll
and welfare payable to our employees, receipts on behalf of
community residents for utilities, business tax and surcharges, and
other payables. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s other payables
and accruals amounted to RMB173.6 million, representing an increase
of approximately 34.8% from RMB128.7 million as at 31 December
2019, which was mainly due to the corresponding increase in wages
and benefits payable due to the increase in the number of
employees of the Group at the end of the year, as well as the
increase in the number of projects under management by the Group
and the increase in deposits collected from community residents.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31
contingent liabilities or guarantees.

December 2020, the Group did not have material
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OUTLOOK

On 5 January 2021, 10 ministries and commissions of the Chinese
government including the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development, the Central Political and Legal Affairs Commission and
the Office of the Central Guidance Commission on Building Spiritual
Civilization jointly published the Notice Concerning the
Enhancement and Improvement of Residential Property
Management, providing policy support to the upgrade to high-
quality and diversified property services, encouraging property
management enterprises to uplift their property management service
standards and to develop life-catering services, pinpointing the
inclusion of property management to the system of basic social
governance, and further reinforcing the trend of supervision and

management of property services.

On 12 March 2021, the Outline of the Fourteenth Five-Year Plan of
National Economic and Social Development and the Long-term Goals
of Year 2035 of the People’s Republic of China was promulgated,
pinpointing the need to, under the guiding principle of uplifting
convenience and improving service experience, foster the upgrade to
high-quality and diversified life-catering services; foster the parallel
development and intensive integration of online and offline public
services, and encourage the power in society to participate in
“Internet + Public Services’, and innovate the service delivery models
as well as products; enhance the novel urbanization strategy,
whereby the quality of urbanization development can be uplifted,
and the coverage, quality and level of standardization of property

management services can be enhanced.

Year 2021 will represent the 100th anniversary of the establishment
of the Communist Party of China; the start of the Fourteenth Five-
Year Plan of China; the commencement of the new stage of China’s
full-swing construction of the modernization of its socialist
development; and the 40th anniversary of the development of

property management sector in China.

In 2021, the Group will continue to adhere to the original vision of
"making lives warmer (FB4E)EE HAE) and the principle of
customer-oriented, treat customers with sincerity and provide them
with excellent services, and focus on the three dimensions of
"expanding scale, increasing revenue and improving services’, aiming
at achieving a rapid growth with quality, and becoming a venerable

good life operator.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Expansion of business scale, layout of multi-sectors,
depth in market expansion, and capturing of market
share

We remain our adherence to “penetrating the Greater Jiangsu
Region, strengthening foothold in the Yangtze River Delta
Region and expanding into major metropolitan areas” (& X
& AMR=A fiEEFTE). With a combination of
mergers, acquisitions and full entrustment (market-oriented
bidding extension), we will aim at achieving leap-frog
development in scale expansion. Whilst consolidating our
position in the Yangtze River Delta, we will ceaselessly identify
acquisition opportunities in central China, southwestern China,
midland and the Greater Bay Area, and will identify those
property management companies with good management
standards and operating conditions as our potential target for
acquisition.

We will select working partners of high quality and enter into
more strategic cooperation agreements to explore new
businesses in project consultation, cooperation and joint
ventures, to widen the spectrum of approaches to business
expansion; optimize structure for an all-format layout, in order
to tap more niche markets, expedite the expansion of non-
residential management properties, expand in a horizontal as
well as a vertical way, to further extend our service capability,
diversify our management formats and service contents,
expand and optimize our professional development team,
recruit outstanding professionals from benchmarking
companies, actively participate in professional training
specifically for the industry, and attain a higher level of
professionalism; engage in extensive strategic collaboration
with property developers to achieve vertical expansion by
means of stepping up preliminary planning and design,
construction supervision, inspection for each unit, sales
assistance service capability and thereby achieving full
coverage of the entire industry chain of the life cycle of
design, supervision, sales assistance and property services, and
in turn gaining more opportunities for acquiring property
management projects.

1.
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Customer-centered philosophy with refined services to
create a happy community featured with “making lives
warmer”

Under the ‘customer-centered” service philosophy, we think
from the perspectives of property owners to take their actual
needs into consideration. We will solidify our product lines,
upon which we will keep upgrading our property service
products throughout the entire product lifecycle, for a precise
output of service deliverables with two lines of services namely
residential and non-residential projects, achieve rapid
replication of service standards, to safeguard customer
satisfaction.

Accretion of our service culture is constantly in progress. By
means of mechanism, training and incentives for innovation,
we try to create a self-starting atmosphere of “‘changing your
life with your hands’, form a service culture of learning and
innovation, and form our service capability in line with the
needs of rapid growth. While attending to service quality, we
are more concerned with the ability of continuous supply of
quality services. Refined management is in place, under which
the system of customer service standards for the whole
lifecycle of products will be upgraded on a constant basis and
service processes will be optimized, to fabricate service
signposts and attain the systematic and standardized
development of services for the entire lifecycle. Meanwhile,
through the system of instant feedback from customers, staff
members’ self-starting capability is mobilized, and customers
are enabled to truly experience the value of property services
and in turn their happy lives; and a brand promotion system is
formed in a structured way, enabling the effective
dissemination of brand value and the full utilization of brand

names.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Empowerment of technology, diversification of
community ecology, upgrading of life-catering
community services, and thorough improvement of
operational efficiency

Based on the motto of “making lives warmer”, we will increase
investment in intelligent technology to improve quality and
operational efficiency of those communities that we serve, by
further upgrading our internal management system.

The constant upgrading of intra-enterprise smart system,
management and control platform of panoramic plan, Hongzhi
Cloud Monitor, community commercial online mall and online
management and control platform of investment and
development and a system of recruitment, procurement and
treasury management system, to ensure the classified launch of
products, precise positioning of projects, accurate recap of the
genuine service needs of customers, to provide prompt
services and products that cater to customers’ needs and build
up a “product prototype of Redsun Services’, while at the same
time uplift product standardization, concentration, digitization
and automation, to ensure that quality services are delivered in
a consistent way, so that management efficiency can be
enhanced while operating costs are kept under control. In
addition, the service contents will be enriched to constantly
extend the scope of value-added services, with an all-round
layout that develops in a diversified pattern throughout the
entire lifecycle in relation to the property owners, establish a
social/commercial ecological chain, with constant upgrading of
capability of consolidating and operating community resources
in a multi-format way with multiple customer bases, thereby
forming the core strategy of community value-added
businesses, uplifting per-household consumption, coverage
rate of customers, per-person profit making ratio, in addition to
technological empowerment, support of multi-format
operation and upgrading of service quality and operational
efficiency.

Into 2021, under the regulatory requirements of the policy, in
line with the further development of the property
management sector, and the increasing needs for services, the
property management sector will still be in a favorable state of
high growth and high certainty with the support of

government policies.
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From the Greater Jiangsu Region, to the Yangtze River Delta
Region, and to the whole country, Redsun Services will provide
on its customers with warm property management services,
upgraded community value-added services, and deeply-filled
value-added services to non-property owners, and reward on
its staff members and shareholders with high-quality

sustainable growth.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE/OTHER INFORMATION

Material Investments, Acquisitions and Disposals

On 7 September 2020, Nanjing Hong Yang Property
Management (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Nanjing Chengrui Jiayuan Property
Management Company (‘Nanjing Chengrui”’) entered into the
Equity Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which Nanjing Hong
Yang Property Management has agreed to acquire, and
Nanjing Chengrui has agreed to dispose of, 51% equity interest
in Chuzhou Yurun Property Management Company Limited (%
MFEEWEEEBFRAQA]). The consideration for the
acquisition was RMB36,720,000. Please
announcement of the Company dated 7 September 2020 for
further details.

refer to the

On 31 December 2020, Hong Life Property Management (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), Huidehang
Property Holdings and Wuhan Huidehang Elite Property Service
Co, Ltd. (BVEMESITHRAEMERS BR A F]) entered into
the Equity Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which Hong Life
Property Management has agreed to acquire, and Huidehang
Property Holdings has agreed to dispose of, 80% of the equity
interest in Wuhan Huidehang Elite Property Service Co., Ltd.
The consideration for the acquisition was RMB216,000,000.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 31
December 2020 for further details.

Save as the aforementioned, there was no other material
investment, acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures by the Group during the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employment and Remuneration Policies

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had 4,119 employees in
total, of which 3,396 employees were engaged in property
management and related services for residential properties
and 723 employees were engaged in property management
and related services for commercial properties.

The emolument of the employees of the Group is mainly
determined based on their duties, performance and the
prevailing market level in the respective regions. The Group
has formulated a systematic and market-competitive employee
incentive plan and a comprehensive talent cultivation scheme
based on its business to attract and retain talents through
offering competitive salary packages, comprehensive talent
training strategies, internal promotion system and a caring
corporate culture.

In addition, focusing on the entire process of talent cultivation
and development, the Group has also formulated the
systematic “five-talent scheme”, for enhancing the quality of
talents and broadening its pool of talents. The Group has
designed training programmes including the “leadership
scheme”, “brigadier scheme”, "housekeeping academy” and
“management trainee programme” for the key talents, in which
systematic arrangements are implemented to provide the
employees of the Group with clear development path and
secure the demand for talents in different business segments
and levels. The Group believes that talent cultivation scheme
of the Group will enhance team building, improve team
capability, and provide talent pipelines for the business
development of the Group.

Use of Net Proceeds Raised from Initial Public Offering
and Over-allotment Option

The net proceeds from initial public offering amounted to
approximately HK$398 million. On 27 July 2020, the Company
also received net proceeds of approximately HK$62.1 million
from the full exercise of over-allotment option.
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The net proceeds from the Listing will continue to be used in
accordance with the plans disclosed in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds — Use of Proceeds” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 24 June 2020, namely:

Percentage

B

LG RIEF R ERA R A H 52020
F6H24H WA ER [ KRB M PTG RIAA
w— FERERR | —fAEENEEA
A

Remaining
Net Proceeds (HKS million) balance
FENERE(AEET)

Available Used

expected to be

Unused  fully used by
HABHEA
AEA EBA ABA  BTERNERE

as at as at as at

1 January 31 December 31 December
2020 202 2020

0205 7 2020 205

Selective strategic investment and ERURBRERKE 40% 184 154 30 End of Year 2022
acquisition and further expansion of DA RE— A E 20225 F KA
property management business EREBHRE

R&D and upgrade of intelligent system BERAGOHRERAR 30% 138 12 126 End of Year 2023

R0BEFER

Improvement of service quality REEERA 10% 46 9 37 End of Year 2023

R0BEFER

Recruitment of talents and improvement ~ BEAA REEET 10% 46 19 27 End of Year 2023
of employee training and employee EIIFE TEHHE R0B3FFER
benefit system

Working capital and general corporate LREEER—RAA 10% 46 34 12 NA
purposes B TEH

Total A&t 100% 460 228 232

Events after the Reporting Period R EHRER

On 26 February 2021, Mr. Jiang Dagiang resigned as a
non-executive Director and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 26 February 2021 for further details.

On 25 March 2021, Mr. Li Yonggang was appointed as a joint
company secretary of the Company. Please refer to the
announcement dated 25 March 2021 for further details.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material events
after the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Annual Dividend

The Board of the Company recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HKS$6.2 cents (equivalent to RMB5.2 cents) per
share.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities
during the Reporting Period.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group primarily operates in the PRC and the majority of
transactions were denominated and settled in RMB. The Group
will continue to monitor foreign exchange activities and
safeguard the cash value of the Group with its best efforts.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

The Group is committed to implementing high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company and enhance the corporate
value as well as the responsibility commitments. The Company
has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Listing Rules”) as its corporate governance standards and, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code since the listing of the Company on 7 July 2020 up to
the date of this report.

The Directors will use their best endeavors to procure the
Company to continue to comply with the CG Code.

Annual General Meeting
An annual general meeting (the “Annual General Meeting")

has been scheduled to be convened at 10 a.m. on 18 June
2021.
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Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the rights to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 15 June 2021 to 18 June 2021,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. All transfer documents of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30
p.m. on 11 June 2021.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on or about 23 July
2021. For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 6 July 2021 to 8 July 2021, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, all transfer documents of the
Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 5 July 2021.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code for
dealing in securities in the Company by the Directors.

The Directors have confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code since the listing of the
Company on 7 July 2020 up to the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Review of Annual Results by the Audit Committee

The Board has established its audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of
the Listing Rules and code provision C.3 of the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group, oversee the audit
process, provide advice and comments to the Board, perform
other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by the
Board.

The Audit Committee consists of five members, including
Mr. Yim Kai Pung, Mr. He Jie, Mr. Luo Yanbing, Ms. Wang Fen
and Mr. Jing Zhishan. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. Yim Kai Pung, an independent non-executive Director who
possesses appropriate professional accounting and related
financial management expertise.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 and confirmed that it has complied with all
applicable accounting principles, standards and requirements,
and made sufficient disclosures. The Audit Committee has also
discussed the matters of audit and financial reporting.

The figures in respect of the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and the related notes thereto for
the year ended 31 December 2020 as set out in this report
have been agreed by the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, to
the amounts set out in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year. The work performed by Ernst & Young
in this respect did not constitute an assurance engagement in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing, Hong
Kong Standards on Review Engagements or Hong Kong
Standards on Assurance Engagements issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
consequently, no assurance has been expressed by Ernst &
Young on this report.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HE Jie (fiJ$£), aged 58, was appointed as our chairman of the
Board and non-executive Director on March 16, 2020. He is primarily
responsible for assisting the planning of corporate strategy of our
Group. From March 2018 to January 2021, Mr. He Jie was the
executive director and chief executive officer of Redsun Properties
Group Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 1996), a company that is
controlled by Mr. Zeng, the ultimate Controlling Shareholder. In
January 2021, Mr. He Jie resigned as an executive director and the
chief executive officer of Redsun Properties Group Limited and

became a vice president of Hong Yang Group Company Limited.

Mr. He Jie joined Hong Yang Group Company as a vice president in
October 2012, and remained in position until March 2018. He served
as the president of Hong Yang Group Company’'s properties
department from May 2017 to March 2018, during which he was
responsible for the business operation of real estates. Prior to joining
Hong Yang Group Company, Mr. He Jie was the executive president
of Tianzheng Group Nanjing Properties Co., Ltd. CRIESE B R & %
BMRAF]), and was primarily in charge of the company's business
and management, formulating properties development strategies and
properties investment from April 2005 to July 2012. He served as the
executive president of Tianzheng Group Shanghai Investment Co,
Ltd. (KIESEE E)IREAFR A F]) from December 2001 to March
2005, during which his responsibilities included managing the
company’s business operations, formulating investment and
management procedures, and articulating and implementing the
company'’s investment plans. He has over 20 years of experience of

business management and operations in the real estate industry.

Mr. He Jie received a bachelor degree in laser technology from
Zhejiang University (T AZ2) in the PRC in July 1985. He later
obtained a master degree in engineering from the same university in
June 1988. In April 2003, Mr. He Jie obtained a master of business
administration degree from China Europe International Business

School (FF BRI BR T 2Fr).
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Mr. LUO Yanbing (B T), aged 46, was appointed as our non-  ZEMIZ 54 » 4657 * R2020F3 A 16 B EZ T AIEH
executive Director on March 16, 2020. Mr. Luo Yanbing is primarily {725 c B A LA T EEHEHAEBNEL LER
responsible for providing strategic advice and recommendations on  }E it B B \EEL%&:‘E o ZE U S AR 2018F 3 AN
the operations and management of our Group. Mr. Luo Yanbing — ASARZSEE - EEBNIRAE - %fh%/%l% CFEAE
joined Hong Yang Group Company in March 2018 as the assistant ~ SAFGEBIREBLERRREEIE - RIIAGLSEE
president and the chief information officer, and was mainly A ' ZBYE AR 201191 A E2018F 2 A EEFIIE
responsible for the information system infrastructure and workflow — BREBEBRMHBR QG (LEFEHFRX SR MH AR
management of Hong Yang Group Company. Prior to joining Hong ~ 601155) ME B BB REREEE T 28 &5
Yang Group Company, Mr. Luo Yanbing was the general manager of ~ BAbERR - BM T ERFPEEMETEES/IER
the information department and the chief information officer of &%4&@!#)?7?@%&%@10@5’7%&%’3 °

Seazen Group Co., Ltd. (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code:

601155) from January 2011 to February 2018 and was mainly

responsible for the information system infrastructure. Mr. Luo

Yanbing has over ten years of experience in information system

infrastructure and innovative technology in the PRC real estate

industry.

Mr. Luo Yanbing obtained a bachelor degree in electrical motor and ~ Z& Y = e £ 501998 7 B S P BIE M K BB E 28
control from Fuzhou University (481 K E2) in the PRC in July 1998. M EIEHIE+ 26T - HEER M 2007F7 AESHE
He later obtained a master degree in software engineering from BB ANZBE (4 TIZEE LB -

Shanghai Jiao Tong University (£ 2238 A E) in the PRC in July

2007.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG Guang (#3), aged 41, was appointed as our executive
Director on March 16, 2020 and executive president in December
2019. Prior to that, he had been our vice president since he joined
our Group in January 2019. Mr. Yang Guang is primarily responsible
for the overall management of our Group. He has approximately 21

years of experience in property management services.

Mr. Yang Guang was the general manager of the Beijing branch of
Longhu Property Service Group Co., Ltd. (BB EREEEEFR A
7)) from September 2016 to January 2017, the vice general manager
of the Sunan branch of Longhu Property Service Group Co., Ltd. from
February 2017 to August 2017, and the general manager of the
Nanjing branch, Hefei branch and Xuzhou branch of Longhu
Property Service Group Co., Ltd. from August 2017 to January 2019,
during which he was mainly responsible for the operational

management and overall development.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Yang Guang was also the vice general
manager of Xin Cheng Yue Property Management Services Co., Ltd.
(PRI R ¥ 2 PR 5 AR 1D B PR 2 &)) (previously known as Jiangsu
Xin Cheng Property Management Services Co., Ltd. (T &R 73k 4%
RIFEMR A from July 2014 to May 2015, the vice general
manager and Changzhou branch general manager of Xin Cheng Yue
Property Management Services Co., Ltd. from May 2015 to February
2016, and the vice general manager and Nanjing branch general
manager of Xin Cheng Yue Property Management Services Co., Ltd.
from February 2016 to September 2016, during which he was mainly
responsible for assisting the planning of business strategies, business
operations, and the management and development of its Changzhou
branch and Nanjing branch. From June 2013 to August 2014, Mr.
Yang Guang was the vice general manager of the Taizhou Wanda
Commercial Plaza Management Co,, Ltd. RN B ZESHEEES
FR A R]), during which he was mainly responsible for property
management. Prior to that, Mr. Yang Guang joined Nanjing Red Star
International Furniture Decoration City Co., Ltd. (F R 4L 2 BFR R (2
E AR AA]) as the department head of the property
department in September 2007. He was also the manager of Nanjing
China Merchants Property Management Co., Ltd. (F R IAHE B %
EIRHMR A A]) from July 1999 to May 2005.
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Mr. Yang Guang received a graduation certificate for the completion
of the tourism management course at Nanjing Normal University (%
REDEKZ)
qualified as a National Property Management Enterprise Manager (&
Bl E IR bR
Department of the Ministry of Urban-Rural Development (3% &8 A
EHAF 7)) and the Housing and Real Estate Department of the
Ministry of Urban-Rural Development (% Sf {3 85 HhE 2 7)) of
the PRC in July 2002.

in the PRC in January 2009. Mr. Yang Guang was

) by the Human Resources and Education

Ms. ZENG Zixi (& T E&), whose former name was Zeng Cheng (
#£), aged 28, was appointed as our executive Director on March 1
2020 and our vice president since October 31, 2018. She had been
our assistant president from March 2017 to October 2018 and the
vice general manager of our operational management department
when she joined our Group in September 2016, and remained in
position until March 2017. Ms. Zeng Zixi is primarily responsible for
the operational management of our Group. From July 2016 to
September 2016, Ms. Zeng Zixi was the general manager of Nanjing
Hong Yang Plaza (F§ R 5AP% &%) business operation department of
Nanjing Hong Yang Business Management Co., Ltd. (F 5 oA R i 2
EBERAT),

ultimate Controlling Shareholder, and was mainly responsible for the

a company that is controlled by Mr. Zeng, the

operational management of the project Nanjing Hong Yang Plaza.
She has approximately four years of experience in property
management services. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zeng Zixi
worked as an analyst in ABC International Holdings Limited from July
2015 to June 2016, where she was mainly responsible for assisting in

securities trading clearing and accounts maintenance.

Ms. Zeng Zixi graduated from Renmin University of China (FFEBI AR
N

degree in journalism. Ms. Zeng Zixi is the daughter of Mr. Zeng, who

in the PRC in July 2015, where she obtained a bachelor

is our ultimate Controlling Shareholder.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. JING Zhishan (&= & L), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on June 12, 2020. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group. Since 2018, Mr. Jing Zhishan has been
the consultant of Shanghai Yongsheng Property Management Co.,
Ltd. (/KA EEIEZ/AR]), a subsidiary of Ever Sunshine Lifestyle
CkFHAEERBEEBR D F]) (Stock
Exchange stock code: 1995). From July 2012 to November 2017, Mr.

Services Group Limited

Jing was the general manager of Shanghai Yongsheng Property
Management Co., Ltd. where he was mainly responsible for the
overall operational management. From July 2011 to July 2012, he was
the director of the property operational management department of
Longfor Property Service Group Limited (RS ERISEBER QD
Al), where he was responsible for the group-wide quality control,
business development and departmental daily affairs management.
From January 2010 to June 2011, he was the general manager of
Beijing Longfor Property Management Co. Ltd. (Jt REE R EE
AR AF]). From July 2009 to December 2009, Mr. Jing Zhishan was
the district general manager of Chongging Xinlonghu Property
Company (E E ¥ 5 ¥ 3 A 7). From January 2007 to June 2009,
Mr. Jing Zhishan was the general manager of Chongging Hailan
Yuntian Property Management Co,, Ltd. (EEBHZERAMEEE AR
[R 2 A]), where he was responsible for the operational management
of the company. From May 2005 to December 2006, Mr. Jing Zhishan
was the administrative officer and legal officer of Chongqing No.1
Construction (Group) Co, Lid. (BEEF —ZEEB AR AN

he was responsible for the legal and administrative management.

), where

From May 2001 to May 2005, he was the general manager of
Chongging Tianjiao Joyful Life Services Corporation (EE XEBE £
JERIEAD B PR A F]), where he was responsible for the operational
management of the company. From July 1997 to May 2001, Mr. Jing
Zhishan was the director of legal counsel office and deputy director
of general plant office of Chongging Huayu Electric Group Co. Ltd.
(EEEREREEBRAAF)
legal advisory affairs and related administrative affairs of the

, where he was responsible for the

company. He has over 19 years of experience in business

management.
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Mr. Jing Zhishan is a qualified lawyer at Sichuan Provincial
Department of Justice (PUJI1%& B1)AE2) since 1991 and a certified
property manager authorized by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development and the Ministry of Personnel since 2011 in the
PRC. He obtained a bachelor degree in economics and management
from CPC Chongging Party School Hanshou College (F HBE M E
E R HIXEPT) in the PRC in December 2000. He later obtained a
master degree in business administration from Asia Macau
International Open University (21 CRFT) BIBE AR K E) in Macao
in February 2004.

Ms. WANG Fen (£ %), aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on June 12, 2020. She is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group. Ms. Wang Fen has been the
independent Director of Guirenniao Co., Ltd. (B AR AR A F)
(Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 603555) since May 2017. She
was an assistant professor of the School of Management and
Economics of Beijing Institute of Technology (3t 32 T KE) since
July 2001. She was also the human resources director and principal
of Haidilao University of Sichuan Haidilao Catering Corporation Ltd.
(M) IMEEBE KD ER AR from November 2007 to December
2012, where she was mainly responsible for the planning of human
resources development and the operational management of Haidilao
University. Ms. Wang Fen has been the management consultant of
various companies since 2013, including Beijing Jiangnan Green Tea
Catering Co., Ltd. Qb ROTEAARE AR 2 F]), Jingruan Beauty
Management Co., Ltd. (BFIEEREEER A F) and Beijing
Hongying Times Educational Technology Co., Ltd (1t F AT #2 5 X 21
B R B R AF]). She has over seven years of experience in

experience in business management.

Ms. Wang Fen obtained a bachelor degree in management
engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology in the PRC in July
1988. She later obtained a master degree in management
engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (/828 K2 in
the PRC in March 1995, and a doctor degree in management science
and engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology in the PRC in

July 2005.
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Mr. YIM Kai Pung (BR#ME), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on June 12, 2020. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group. Mr. Yim Kai Pung has been the
managing director of CCTH CPA Limited since July 2010. Mr. Yim Kai
Pung was the executive director of Sanyuan Group Limited (= JT5
EBR A AR]) from March 2009 to September 2009, and was re-
designated as the non-executive director from September 2009 to
December 2009. He was also the executive director of Heng Xin
China Holdings Limited (1B /i BIE[% B R A A]) from December
2006 to June 2007, the independent non-executive director of China
Automobile New Retail (Holdings) Limited (FF BI)SHE #1 =& (3E/%)
AR AF]) (Stock Exchange stock code: 526) from September 2005
to June 2006, the independent non-executive director of Success
Universe Group Limited (B fEERIRAF R 2 &) (Stock Exchange stock
code: 487) from March 2004 to March 2012, the independent non-
executive director of Greens Holdings Limited (& Z %A R A 7))
(Stock Exchange stock code: 1318) from October 2009 to January
2015, the independent non-executive director of HNA Technology
Investments Holdings Limited (B EH I EIE KRB BR A F]) (Stock
Exchange stock code: 2086) from June 2014 to September 2017, and
the independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Finance
Investment Holding Group Limited (B & B EIEREEBR A
A]) (Stock Exchange stock code: 7) from July 2017 to May 2019. He
has over 30 years of experience in auditing, taxation and provision of
finance consultancy services for companies in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

Mr. Yim Kai Pung obtained a bachelor degree of accountancy with
honors from the City University of Hong Kong (previously known as
the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) in November 1993. As a
Practising Certified Public Accountant, he has been an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of the United Kingdom since 1993.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operation of our business. The following table sets
forth certain information regarding the members of our senior
management.

Position(s) in our Company

e N [0 A

YANG Guang 41 Executive Director and
executive president

15 4158 MITEFRINITAE

ZENG Zixi 28 Executive Director and vice
president

8RR 2875% HMITEEREIER

CHENG Jian 42 Vice president

g 428% Bl

JIA Jie 37 Chief financial officer

G 375% MM

LIU Kesheng 44 General manager of the
business development
department

27 B 4455 IMNREBEREP AL

Mr. YANG Guang (#3£), aged 41, was appointed as our executive
Director on March 16, 2020 and executive president in December
2019. Please refer to the subsection headed “— Board of Directors”
above for details of his biography.

Ms. ZENG Zixi (' ¥ &), whose former name was Zeng Cheng (&
#£), aged 28, was appointed as our executive Director on March 16,
2020 and vice president in October 2018. Please refer to the
subsection headed “— Board of Directors” above for details of her
biography.
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Time of joining

our Group Roles and responsibilities
0 A 2 &= 8 B R BERSHE
January 2019 Responsible for the overall
management of our Group
20194F1 A BEASENERER
September 2016 Responsible for the operational
management of our Group
2016%F9 A BEAEENELER
September 2014 Responsible for the business
expansion of our Group
2014459 A BEASENEBREERE
December 2019 Responsible for the finance
function of our Group
20195128 BEASENI BB
October 2012 Responsible for the business

development of our Group

20124108 BEAEEMNERERE
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Mr. CHENG Jian (FX#2), aged 42, has been our vice president since
July 2019. He is primarily responsible for the business expansion of
our Group. He is currently an executive director of a number of our
subsidiaries including Nanjing Hong Yang Property Management and
Nanjing Hong Life Property Management. He was the assistant
president and general manager of Nanjing Hong Yang Property
Management, from August 2016 to July 2019, during which he was
mainly responsible for the implementation of strategies and the
overall budget management of our Group. From September 2014 to
August 2016, Mr. Cheng Jian served as our vice general manager and
was mainly responsible for the annual operational and budget
planning. He was the vice general manager of the management
BHEHRERE
, a subsidiary of Nanjing Redsun, from July 2011 to

office of Wuxi Suyuan Tanxiwan Property Co., Ltd. (
EXARRDA)
September 2014, during which he was mainly responsible for the
overall operational management and the annual operational and

budget planning.

Prior to joining Nanjing Redsun, he also served as a vice general
manager and project manager of Nanjing City Yincheng Property
Services Co,, Ltd. (R R RN Y ZE R HE R A 7)) from April 2003 to
October 2010, an assistant to the manager at Pengji Property Jinshan
(BE E ¥ 2 £ 1WKE) of Shenzhen Pengji Property
Management Co, Ltd. CRIIBEE D EE IR B A F]) from January
2002 to March 2003, and an administrative assistant at Nanjing
(Fa 2 RALES 1L )
Property Management from 2000 to 2001. He has over

Mansion

Yadong Xianhe Villa of Nanjing Ya Dong
19 years of

experience in the property management industry.

Mr. Cheng Jian received a certificate for the completion of the
Yincheng Property Senior Manager EMBA course (SR 3k b 2 &= A 48
BT EEEBE T (EMBA) #%2) at Nanjing University (F§ R AZ2) in
April 2009. He was qualified as a National Property Management
(ZEEMEEBRPELRE
Resources and Education Department of the Ministry of Urban-Rural
Development (2% #BAZE# B 7)) and the Housing and Real Estate
Department of the Ministry of Urban-Rural Development (&% 35 {E
FEHLE HhE % 7)) of the PRC in June 2002.

Enterprise Manager ) by the Human
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Mr. JIA Jie (B), aged 37, has been our chief financial officer since
December 30, 2019. He is primarily responsible for the finance
function of our Group. Mr. Jia Jie has also been the independent
director of Huanrui Century Union Co., Ltd. (B 42 Bt & I B R
2 A]) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange stock code: 000892) since
December 2019. He was the vice general manager of Hong Yang
Group Company’s finance management department of its property
development division from July 2017 to March 2018. He was the vice
general manager of the finance management department of Hong
Yang Group Company from November 2018 to December 2019.
From March 2018 to November 2018, Mr. Jia Jie was the chief
financial officer of Redsun Properties.

Prior to joining Redsun Properties, from March 2014 to June 2017,
Mr. Jia Jie was the budget analysis officer of Xinyuan (China) Real
Estate Co, Ltd. (e (FE)EXER AR, a company that
engages in real estate development and property management,
where he was primarily responsible for the company’s performance
planning and management, investment budget and evaluation,
management of investor relationships and reporting to the directors.
He served as the finance manager of Ningbo Longfor Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (BEEEMNBE X AR A)), a real estate
development company, from September 2012 to February 2014,
where he was responsible for the company’s performance-planning
management, internal control, and project finance management. He
was the vice finance manager from March 2010 to March 2012, and
the finance manager from April 2012 to September 2012, of Taiyuan
Wan Da Plaza Co, Ltd. (KREZEEBARAF), a commercial
property investment company, where he was responsible for the
company’s tax, audit, internal control, and assisting the general
manager in completing financing tasks. Mr. Jia Jie also worked as the
consultant of KPMG China from September 2008 to March 2010. He
has over ten years of experience in the real estate and property

investment industry.
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Mr. Jia Jie obtained a bachelor degree in finance from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics (24t 8142 K £2) in the PRC in
June 2005. He then acquired a master degree in finance from the
same university in December 2007. In July 2020, Mr. Jia Jie acquired a
master of business administration degree from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University (1t R BB EEE IR ERT) in the PRC.
Mr. Jia Jie acquired an intermediate accountant licence from the
Bureau of Human Resources and Social Security of Dalian in May
2008. Mr. Jia Jie has been a registered member of The Chinese

Institute of Certified Public Accountants since December 2009.

Mr. LIU Kesheng (25 ), aged 44, has been our general manager
of the business development department since July 15, 2019. He is
primarily responsible for the business development of our Group. He
was the vice general manager of our Sunan branch from January
2019 to July 2019 and the person in charge of the general
management office of our Changzhou branch from August 2018 to
January 2019, during which he was mainly responsible for our
operational management. He was also the project manager of our
Jiangbei branch from May 2015 to August 2018, during which he was
responsible for the management of several projects including Solaris
Institution (JB B 22 F), Great Time at Joy Peak East District (15 I& ¥
JE ), Great Time at Joy Peak West District (15 I£ 85 ¢ B 7 @)
and Swallow River Residence (B Yt B fE&). He has over 17 years of

experience in the property management industry.

Mr. Liu Kesheng graduated from the Southwest University (787 A
2 in the PRC in July 2019, majoring in administrative management.
He also obtained the Nanjing Property Management Practitioner
Certificate (FARTMYWEBEHEAELL) from the Nanjing Real
Estate Education Training Centre (B REMEHF HFIIF L) in May
2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Yonggang, was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company on 25 March 2021.

Mr. Li, aged 44, has been the head of listing office of Hong Yang
Group Company Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, since September 2016. He is primarily responsible for the
securities affairs and compliance matters of the Group.
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Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in the corporate governance
and company secretarial field. Before joining the Company, from
2000 to 2008, he served as a financial staff of Anhui BBCA
Biochemical Co. Ltd, LTD (now renamed as COFCO Biochemical
(Anhui) Co., Ltd., SZ000930) and Anhui Fengyuan Pharmaceutical Co,,
Ltd. (52000153), and served as a chief financial officer of BBCA France
SAS and BBCA Belgium NV, the deputy head of financial department
and investment development department of Anhui Fengyuan Group
Co., Limited. From 2008 to 2011, he served as secretary to the Board
and chief financial officer of Anhui Tiger Biotechnology Co., Ltd. From
2011 to 2016, he served as the deputy general manager and
secretary to the Board of Taifu Industrial Co., Ltd. (now renamed as
Shandong Geo-Mineral Co., Ltd., SZ000409). Since April 2019, he has
been appointed as a joint company secretary of Redsun Properties
Group Limited (stock code: 1996.HK).

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor degree of economics from Henan
University of Technology in June 2000, a master degree of
management from Anhui University of Finance and Economics in
June 2013 and an undergraduate diploma in law from Nanjing
University in July 2020. Mr. Li was awarded the qualification of Middle
Grade Accountant by the Personnel Department in Anhui Province in
May 2009, and he was awarded the qualification of Middle Grade
Economist by the Human Resources and Social Security Department
in Shandong Province in November 2014.

With extensive working experience, Mr. Li is familiar with the PRC
laws, company secretarial and compliance matters of the Company.

Mr. WONG Yu Kit (ZE#) was appointed as the company
secretary of our Company on March 16, 2020. Mr. Wong is a
president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited
and has over 10 years of experience in the corporate services field.
He obtained a bachelor's degree in Business Administration and
Management from the University of Huddersfield in the United
Kingdom in November 2007, and a master's degree in corporate
governance from The Open University of Hong Kong in November
2013. He is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered Governance Institute. He is
currently the company secretary of China Chunlai Education Group
Co., Ltd. (Stock Exchange stock code: 1969), China Xinhua Education
Group Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 2779), Yincheng
International Holding Co., Ltd. (Stock Exchange stock code: 1902) and
Sitoy Group Holdings Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 1023). He
is also currently the joint company secretary of Jiangsu Innovative
Ecological New Materials Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 2116),
FingerTango Inc. (Stock Exchange stock code: 6860), Denox
Environmental & Technology Holdings Limited (Stock Exchange stock
code: 1452), Shanghai Gench Education Group Limited (Stock
Exchange stock code: 1525) and Roiserv Lifestyle Services Co., Ltd.
(Stock Exchange stock code: 2146).
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The Board presents the directors’ report for the financial year ended
31 December 2020.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands under the
Cayman Companies Law, as an exempted company with limited
liability on 12 December 2019. The shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) were listed on the Stock Exchange on 7 July 2020 (the
“Listing Date").

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS

The Group is a well-recognized comprehensive community service
provider in Jiangsu province, China, with strong and balanced
property management abilities in the management of residential and
commercial properties. Through the Group's continued development
over the years, it has established its regional leading position in the
property management market of Jiangsu province and are
well-recognized nationwide. The Group provides a wide range of
property management services to property owners, residents and
tenants. It also provides value-added services to non-property
owners, primarily property developers and other property
management companies and community value-added services to

residential property owners and residents.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Group are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group in this annual report. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year
ended 31 December 2020. As at the date of this annual report, the
Board has no intention to significantly change the principal business
of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of

the Group in this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are set out in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Outlook for 2021". An analysis of the Group's performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”. Save as
disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Report — Subsequent
Events After The Reporting Period” in this annual report, the Group
has no significant events after the end of the financial year ended
31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Management Discussion
and Analysis — Material Acquisitions and Disposals” in this annual
report, during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in this
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity in this annual report. As at 31 December 2020,
the distributable reserve of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB149.1 million.
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DIVIDEND

The Board recommends payment of a final dividend of HK$6.2 cents
(equivalent to RMB5.2 cents) per share. A circular containing, among
other things, further information relating to the proposed distribution
of final dividend and the forthcoming annual general meeting will be
despatched to the shareholders in due course.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

The table below sets forth the types of our major customers for each
of our three business lines.

g

EXeARERARE AEREI (BERAR
%s52m)  HA (AP ERE) & kAR E MEE
PR IBF K& 0 — 2 B R KR 8 E B R % 3%
TR

TEFEFRHES

FERF
TRV BM=ZHGEBRESENTIEEFLHE -

Business line Major customers E 3 FEEF

Property Property owners, residents and tenants, YEEE R ¥ FRPLKHEP -EEXZEEB
management property owners’ associations and property ghkEMERER

services developers

Value-added services Property developers and other property FEHEEIBERE EHERERREMMEESIE
to non-property management companies NC]

owners.

Community value- Property owners and residents R E R XEXREP

added services

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue derived from sales to
our five largest customers accounted for approximately 35.9% of the
total revenue and revenue derived from sales of the Group to the
single largest customer accounted for approximately 19.1% of the
total revenue of the Group during the same period.
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All of our five largest customers of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 were connected persons of the Group. Among
others, Redsun Materials City Group and Redsun Business World are
associates of the Controlling Shareholders. Redsun Materials City is
owned as to 100% by Mr. Zeng Huansha, a Controlling Shareholder.
Redsun Business World is owned as to 90% by Ms. Zeng Suging (%
%£)5), the sister of Mr. Zeng Huansha, and 10% by Ms. Chen Sihong
(FR B4L), spouse of Mr. Zeng Huansha. As of the Latest Practicable
Date, unless otherwise disclosed in this annual report, none of our
Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders which, to the
knowledge of our Directors, owns more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company, had any interest in any of the five largest
customers of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Major Suppliers

The table below sets forth the types of our major suppliers for each
of our three business lines.
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Business line Major suppliers EF 3 FTEMHER

Property Sub-contractors providing security, cleaning, LES-BEN REEZTR - BE - HEE
management greening and gardening, and repair and 2 LARBERRERBNS
services maintenance services B

Value-added services  Sub-contractors providing cleaning, greening FEHETIBERS RHBEER HZIEREZE UK
to non-property and gardening, and repair and maintenance HERRERBOSEH
owners services

Community value-  Vendors providing resident services 1 @I E RS RIEEERBHER

added services

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the five largest suppliers of
the Group, which are all independent third parties, accounted for
approximately 28.3% of the total purchases of the Group; and
purchases from our single largest supplier accounted for
approximately 6.9% of the total purchases of the Group during the
same period.

As of the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company, had any interest in any of the five largest suppliers.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that the employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to corporate sustainability and are keen on developing
long-term relationships with stakeholders. The Company places
significant emphasis on human capital and strives to foster an
environment in which the employee can develop their full potential
and to assist their personal and professional growth. The Company
provides a fair and safe workplace, promoting diversity to its staff,
providing competitive remuneration and benefits and career
development opportunities based on their merits and performance.
The Group also puts on-going efforts to provide adequate trainings
and development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry
and, at the same time, improve their performance and self-fulfillment
in their positions. The Company understands that it is important to
maintain good relationship with customers. The Group has
established procedures in place for handling customers’ complaints
and customer satisfaction surveys in order to ensure customers’
complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner. The Group
is also dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as
long-term business partners to ensure stable supplies of materials.
The Group reinforces business partnerships with suppliers and
contractors by recurring communication in proactive and effective

manner so as to ensure quality and delivery.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has 415,000,000
Shares in issue.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Non-executive Directors

Mr. He Jie (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Dagiang (resigned on 26 February 2021)
Mr. Luo Yanbing

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Guang
Ms. Zeng Zixi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jing Zhishan
Ms. Wang Fen
Mr. Yim Kai Pung

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. Yang Guang and Ms. Zeng Zixi, as executive Directors,
has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date respectively.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from 12 June 2020.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all the independent non-executive Directors are

considered to be independent pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the controlling shareholders of the
Group or the Directors was engaged or had interest in any business,
apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business, which
would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS

Deed of Non-Competition

The Group's controlling shareholders, namely, Mr. Zeng Huansha,
Hong Yang Group (Holdings), Hong Yang International Limited
("Hong Yang International’), Hong Yang Group Company Limited
("Hong Yang Group Company’) and Redsun Services Group
(Holdings) Limited ("Redsun Services Group (Holdings)") (together,
the “Covenantors’) entered into a deed of non-competition (the
“Deed of Non-Competition”) in favor of the Company for ourselves
and as trustee for the benefit of each of our subsidiaries on 16 June
2020, pursuant to which each of the Covenantors has, among other
things, irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken, jointly and
severally, with the Company that, each of the Covenantors shall not,
and shall procure that his/its close associates (other than members of
our Group) will not, directly or indirectly, carry on, engage in, invest
in, participate in, attempt to participate in, render any services to,
provide any financial support to or otherwise be involved in or
interested in, whether alone or jointly with another person and
whether directly or indirectly or on behalf of or to assist or act in
concert with any other person, any business or investment activities
in the PRC and Hong Kong which are the same as, similar to or in
competition with the business carried on or contemplated to be
carried on by any member of the Group from time to time (the
“Restricted Business”).
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The Deed of Non-Competition shall expire on the earlier of (i) the
date when the Covenantors and, as the case may be, any of their
close associates, cease to hold, or otherwise be interested in,
beneficially in aggregate whether directly or indirectly, 30% or more
(or such other percentage of shareholding as stipulated in the Listing
Rules to constitute a controlling shareholder) of the issued share
capital of the Company; or (ii) the date on which the Shares cease to
be listed on the Stock Exchange (except for temporary suspension of
the trading of the shares).

Annual Review

The Covenantors have confirmed that they did not refer, or to
procure the referral of, any investment or commercial opportunities
relating to the Restricted Business to the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
Covenantors in respect of the compliance by them and their close
associates with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of
Non-Competition and assessed whether the Covenantors and their
close associates have complied with the terms of the Deed of
Non-Competition, and were satisfied that each of the Covenantors
has complied with its/his undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, details of the
Company’'s continuing connected transactions for the year ended

31 December 2020 are as follows:

Provision of Parking Space Sales and Leasing Agency
Services to Redsun Properties and its Associates

On March 11, 2020, Nanjing Hong Yang Property Management
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Nanjing Hong Yang
Property Management Group’), a indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a parking space sales
and leasing agency services framework agreement with Redsun
Properties, pursuant to which we agreed to provide sales and
leasing agency services to Redsun Properties and its associates
in respect of the unsold parking spaces of Redsun Properties
and its associates (the “Parking Space Sales and Leasing
Agency Services Framework Agreement”). The Parking Space
Sales and Leasing Agency Services Framework Agreement took
effect on 11 March 2020 and will be valid until December 31,
2022, renewable by mutual agreement of the parties.

Pricing policy

The agency fees for the provision of sales and leasing agency
services in respect of unsold parking spaces shall be calculated
based on the following:

Sales/leasing agency fee = contract prices of the sales/leasing
of the subject parking spaces x agreed rate of agency fee

The contract prices of the sales/leasing of the subject parking
spaces shall be determined with reference to the prevailing
market price charged by other independent third party
services providers to Redsun Properties and its associates in
respect of comparable locations. The rate of the sales/leasing
agency fee in respect of the parking spaces of each specific
project is subject to the relevant definitive agreements to be
entered into between the relevant members of the Nanjing
Hong Yang Property Management Group and Redsun
Properties and its associates, and shall be determined after
arm’s length negotiations between the relevant parties with
reference to prevailing market price taking into account of
prices charged by independent third parties services providers
in respect of comparable services and locations.
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The annual caps for the maximum aggregate agency fees to be BHZE20202F12A30BE=EFE&F  BRk
charged by the Nanjing Hong Yang Property Management YEEEEEREBEEEE RAERERS
Group to Redsun Properties and its associates pursuant to ﬂ: EfpE oL S E R HBE AR HER
Parking Space Sales and Leasing Agency Services Framework BEREMNFEE LR H 5= ARB10,747,000
Agreement for each of the three years ending December 31, 7T~ AR#12,892,0007T & A R #15,142,0007T ©
2022 is RMB10,747,000, RMB12,892,000 and RMB15,142,000,
respectively.
Redsun Properties is owned as to 72.77% by Mr. Zeng SAGHERAARERIRRGBDEEHRB
Huansha, a controlling shareholder of the Company. Thus, 7277% ° Bt - SARG MO EE B B MDD K AR
Redsun Properties is an associate of Mr. Zeng Huansha and A BAfMABRARNEEAL-
therefore a connected person of the Company.
2. Provision of management services by the Group 2. FAEEREEERYE
(i)  Provision of Property Management Services to () [EAFHERBEHBAERYFEER
Redsun Properties and its Associates Vi
The Group has entered into the following framework REBEFI A TIERTGZE - UREARE
agreement to regulate the transactions between the B oL [GHbE R ABEA Z FRRHZIE
Group and Redsun Properties and its Associates in MEBEEREMETHZS (NEEER
relation to the provision of a variety of property BKAEERGE])
management services (the “Property Management
Services Master Framework Agreement”):
Date of agreement: 11 March 2020 HEBHE . 202038118
Effective period: From 11 March 2020 to 31 December 2022, B XH] 20206F3 A1 H E20229F 128318 + 7
renewable by mutual agreement of the HEFHEEHEER
parties
Parties: Nanjing Hong Yang Property Management  &J 477 : HRSAGMEEEBR AT EARK
Co. Ltd. (as service provider); and ) &k
Redsun Properties (as service recipient) shfGthE (1ERRBES )

065 /



/ . Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2020

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EXERE

Scope of services:

\\ 066

(a) Pre-delivery property management and

related services

Members of the Nanjing Hong Yang
Property Management Group shall provide
pre-delivery property management and
related services Redsun Properties and its
associates, including but not limited to
planning and design, equipment
selection, inspection for each unit,
cleaning, gardening, maintenance of
public order and security in the phases of
property preparation, general layout as
well as construction drawings, execution,
completion and delivery period in respect
of the property projects of Redsun
Properties and its associates.

(b) Display units and property sales venues

management services

Members of the Nanjing Hong Yang
Property Management Group shall provide
management and related services to the
display units and property sales venues of
the property projects during the sales
period of the property projects of Redsun
Properties and its associates, including but
not limited to cleaning, gardening,
maintenance of public order and security
services to the aforesaid venue.

(c) Pre-delivery property management

services for unsold properties

Members of the Nanjing Hong Yang
Property Management Group shall provide
pre-delivery property management
services to Redsun Properties and its
associates for unsold properties (including
car parking spaces), including but not
limited to security, cleaning, gardening,

repair and maintenance.
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Pricing Policy:

(d)Commercial properties management

services

Members of the Nanjing Hong Yang
Property Management Group shall provide
management and related services to the
commercial properties including office
areas, hotels and shopping malls owned
or operated by Redsun Properties and its
associates and relevant common areas,
including but not limited to cleaning,
gardening, maintenance of public order
and security services to the aforesaid

venues.

(collectively, the “Property Management
Services”)

The relevant members of the Nanjing Hong
Yang Property Management Group shall,
where they are selected following the
relevant tender processes and other
quotation procedures for selection of services
providers, provide management and related
services to Redsun Properties and its
associates according to the tender and
quotation documents and definitive
management services agreements to be
entered into between relevant members of
the Nanjing Hong Yang Property
Management Group and Redsun Properties
and its associates from time to time.

B
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The management fees payable by Redsun
Properties and its associates shall be
determined based on arm’s length
negotiation between Redsun Properties and
its associates and members of the Nanjing
Hong Yang Property Management Group,
with reference to a wide range of factors
including but not limited to (i) nature, age,
infrastructure features, geographical location
and neighborhood profile of the relevant
properties; (ii) prevailing market price
charged by other independent third party
services providers to Redsun Properties and
its associates in respect of comparable
services; and (iii) any applicable rates
recommended by the relevant government
authorities.

The transactions contemplated under the
Property Management Services Master
Framework Agreement shall be on normal
commercial terms, on terms no more
favorable than those offered to independent
third party services providers in respect of
comparable services and on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of our
Company and our Shareholders as a whole.

The annual caps for the annual service fees paid by Redsun

Properties and its associates to the Nanjing Hong Yang Property

Management Group in relation to the Property Management Services

pursuant to Property Management Services Master Framework

Agreement for the three years ending December 31, 2022 is
RMB226,933,000, RMB284,171,000 and RMB325,973,000, respectively.

Redsun Properties is owned as to 72.77% by Mr. Zeng Huansha, a

controlling shareholder of the Company. Thus, Redsun Properties is

an associate of Mr. Zeng Huansha and therefore a connected person

of the Company.
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(i) Provision of Management Services to the Redsun

Materials City Group and Redsun Business World

(a)

Provision of management services to
commercial properties of the Redsun Materials
City Group

The Company (as service provider) entered into a
framework management services agreement with
Jiangsu Redsun Industrial Raw Materials City Co.,
Ltd. ("Redsun Materials City”) (as service
recipient) (the “Redsun Materials City
Management Services Agreement”) on 16 June
2020, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
provide Redsun Materials City and its subsidiaries
(the "Redsun Materials City Group”) with
management and related services to its
specialized home furnishing and construction
materials centers and shopping malls, including
but not limited to cleaning, gardening,
maintenance of public order and security services
to the aforesaid venues. The Redsun Materials City
Management Services Agreement has been
effective upon the Listing will be valid until
31 December 2022 and the term may be renewed
as the parties may mutually agree, subject to
compliance with the requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

The service fees to be charged under the Redsun
Materials City Management Services Agreement
shall be determined after arm’s length
negotiations with reference to (i) the anticipated
operational costs (including labor costs); and (ii)
the prevailing market price for similar services
taking into account the size and location of the
commercial properties to be managed by our
Group, and shall be no more favorable than those
offered to independent third parties.
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(b)

The annual caps for the amounts of service fees
payable to us by the Redsun Materials City Group
in relation to its commercial properties pursuant
to the Redsun Materials City Management Services
Agreement for each of the three years ending
31 December 2022 is RMB125,855,000,
RMB143,111,000 and RMB155,160,000, respectively.

Redsun Properties is owned as to 72.77% by
Mr. Zeng Huansha, a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Thus, Redsun Properties is an
associate of Mr. Zeng Huansha and therefore a

connected person of the Company.

Provision of management services to the
commercial complex of Redsun Business World

Our Company (as service provider) entered into a
management services agreement with Nanjing
Redsun Business World Co., Ltd. ("Redsun
Business World") (as service recipient) (the
“Redsun Business World Management Services
Agreement’) on 16 June 2020, pursuant to which
we agreed to provide Redsun Business World with
management and related services to Nanjing
Redsun Business World Mall (F8 AL A5 %K
), a commercial complex for specialized
home furnishing and construction materials,
including but not limited to cleaning, gardening,
maintenance of public order and security services
to the aforesaid venues. The Redsun Business
World Management Services Agreement shall be
effective upon the Listing and will be valid until
31 December 2022 and the term may be renewed
as the parties may mutually agree, subject to
compliance with the requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

(b)
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The service fees to be charged under the Redsun
Business World Management Services Agreement
shall be determined after arm’s length
negotiations with reference to (i) the anticipated
operational costs (including labor costs); and (ii)
the prevailing market price for similar services of
similar properties, and shall be no more favorable

than those offered to independent third parties.

The annual caps for the amounts of service fees
payable to us by amounts of service fees payable
to us by Redsun Business World pursuant to the
Redsun Business World Management Services
Agreement for each of the three years ending
31 December 2022 is RMB12,341,000,
RMB13,235,000 and RMB14,270,000, respectively.

Redsun Business World is wholly-owned by
Mr. Zeng Huansha, a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Thus, Redsun Business World is an
associate of Mr. Zeng Huansha and therefore a

connected person of the Company.

The aggregated annual caps under the Redsun
Materials City Management Services Agreement
and the Redsun Business World Management
Services Agreement for each of the three years
ending December 31, 2022 is RMB138,196,000,
RMB156,346,000 and RMB169,439,000, respectively.
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Confirmation from the independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions mentioned above and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of the business of the Group, on normal commercial
terms or better, and in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation from the auditor

The Company's auditor has been engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) "Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Board of Directors has received an unqualified
letter from the auditor of the Company in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules, stating that the auditor has not noticed
that any of the above continuing connected transactions:

(@)  have not been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company;

(b)  for the connected transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group have not been entered into in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, in all
material aspects;

(c)  have not been entered into in accordance with the terms of
the relevant agreements governing such continuing connected

transactions in all material aspects; and

(d)  have exceeded the relevant caps for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 is contained in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group in this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in this annual report
and in the paragraphs headed “Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this section, no
Director or Controlling Shareholder of the Company has any material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent
companies were a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include, among
others:

(i) We may not be able to grow our property management
portfolio as planned, which may have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
The Group will continue to expand its property management
portfolio by proactive market-oriented expansion and strategic
acquisition to add to the scale of its property under
management.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group's historical results may not be indicative of its future
prospects and results of operation and its future growth may
not materialize as planned, and failure to manage any future
growth effectively may have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. The
Group will continue to uplift its operation and management
capability and market competitiveness and seize market
opportunities for achieving continual growth in operating
results.

Termination or non-renewal of the Group’s preliminary property
management service contracts or property management
service contracts could have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition and results of operations. The
Group will continue to enhance quality and uplift service
capability, gain customers’ recognition, and increase contract

renewal rate.

A majority of our revenue is generated from property
management services the Group provides to projects
developed by Redsun Properties Group and properties owned
by associates of the Controlling Shareholders, which the Group
does not have control over. The Group will continue to
expand its coverage to properties developed by third-party
developers and reduce reliance on properties developed by

related parties.

The Group faces certain risks associated with the outbreak of
COVID-19. The Group will continue to adopt pandemic
prevention measures according to governments’ arrangements
to guard itself against the adverse effects of COVID-19.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to

applicable laws, rules and regulations which have a significant impact

to the Group. As at the date of this annual report, except as

disclosed in the annual report, the Group complied with, in all

material respects, all the relevant and applicable PRC laws and

regulations governing the business of property management and the

Group has obtained all licenses, permits and certificates for the

purpose of operating its business.
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(ii)

(if)

(iv)
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As at the date of this annual report, the Company’s joint ventures
and associated company were not involved in and the Board is not
aware of any non-compliance incidents that might adversely affect
the value of the Company's interests in them.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the
"SFQ")) which were required to be entered in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were
otherwise required, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below:

Interests in shares of associated corporations
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RAFREY  ARFNGELERBEARLEY
FAEZERY TABEATEREMTTREEEART
REFHNEEEETNEE -

EENBETHRAERAQAHEBEEE
HRG  HEROREEEPHESERAR

HZE2020F 128318 EERARRESITHRAER
AARKEBHEZBE (TERBBEOFENEBZFR
HEED ((BHFREBEMRG ) EXVIE) kG - 18R
RO REEER  BHERARRREESKBEK
BIE32HEFEMERRMP B R R IBIZESTRIZER
MARB KBRS AR IT

RIECEE R D VRS

Approximate

Name of associated Number of percentage

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest shares interested of shareholding
EERBNRG

EEpA B EE A EEME HEO REMOE D
Jiang Dagiang® Redsun Properties Beneficial owner 16,018,922 0.48%
FiERY Sh 5 3 B EmEBA
He Jie® Redsun Properties Beneficial owner 9,605,922 0.29%
fafEe 5h 5 3 B EREA A

m

The number of shares interested represents (i) 11,814,000
underlying shares and 7,357,000 underlying shares granted to
Mr. Jiang Dagiang and Mr. He lJie respectively subject to the
pre-IPO share options of Redsun Properties; and (ii) the shares
granted and vested to Mr. Jiang Dagiang and Mr. He Jie
respectively pursuant to the share award scheme adopted by
the board of directors of Redsun Properties on April 2, 2020. In
2020, 4,205,000 award shares and 2,249,000 award shares were
granted to Mr. Jiang Dagiang and Mr. He Jie respectively, of
which 78 award shares for each of them were sold by the
trustee of the scheme to settle the handling fees upon
vesting.

() HEEZOROBEEROIDARTRERLEE
T fr] 52 45 A #9 11,814,000 3% 48 B8 A% 15 K. 7,357,000
REFRBERL (D - B LB E B X AR E SR
BEMRERYIRIR ¢ K () IRIR ARG HIEE B /& 722020
FAA2BRMN BN REFTEDRIRTREB
FA B 1 o o A TR SR AE 9 BRAD © FR2020%F -
B9 Bl 17 §5 32 58 5T A4 % (] 38 5E 4 9% 4,205,000
P& 8BRS 17 % 2,249,000 A% HEED 1D » E A& 78f%
BERONEBEATEZTADINAFES
AHE  UENFEE -
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(2)  Mr. Jiang Dagiang had resigned as a non-executive Director and ~ (2) HEERIEECHIIFATESREETTHFMNE
a member of the remuneration committee of the Board with BENE  B2021F 2260 BAER -

effect from 26 February 2021.

(3)  Mr. He Jie had resigned as an executive director, the chief  (3) fAIELXLEEBILGHENTES  TTHAH
executive officer of Redsun Properties and a member of the ARG ESEESHFMEESKE - 52021
remuneration committee of the board of Redsun Properties F1H29BBAERK -
with effect from 29 January 2021.

Interests in debentures of associated corporations R LEEREENER
Amount of Amount of
Name of associated Currency of debentures debentures in
Name of Director corporation debentures bought same class in issue
ERITREE
EEpA BB EE A EEREN FrBANBERERE EERHE
Jiang Dagiang"” Redsun Properties uss 1,000,000 250,000,000
RiERo L5 Hh B =V
(1) Mr. Jiang Dagiang had resigned as a non-executive Director and () BEREFECHEIDNTEETREFTSHNE
a member of the remuneration committee of the Board with BENE  B2021F 22600 BAER -

effect from 26 February 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2020, none of the B EXHETEEI  HZE2020F 128318 MEEER
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or AR BHREITEHA B RAR G s BB LB MR H
short positions in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of — HHEM M REEEF  BEARAR R RIRERZ S L
the Company or its associated corporations, recorded in the register — E&HIZE 352617 B M & i it P B S SR IR IZ 4 <7 Al
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to be  7BIBEIAA T LB PR E (s MIAE -

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in the

Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company =)

Long positions in the Shares of the Company

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2020, as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO, the following persons, other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company, had an interest of 5% or more in

the Shares or underlying Shares:

BESRHE

FTERRNAD RO KRG AR KX

RAEALERG I E
BLARFIPTE - BLE20209F 12318 » AR AR
5 5B 336 18 A 7 B 0B &0 M Prac 8k -
BRESHARGEETHRABIN -
AR D P A% A ERER
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EXEHRE

TNAIA R Bk

Number of Approximate
Name of Substantial Shareholder Nature of Interest shares percentage
FERRE®E EaEtE RHEE BMABED
Redsun Services Group (Holdings)® Beneficial owner 301,994,000 72.77%
ShES RIS SR E (12 ) O EREAA
Hong Yang Group Company Interest in controlled corporation 301,994,000 72.77%
ENCE SR RErEER
Hong Yang International™ Interest in controlled corporation 301,994,000 72.77%
ShFG BIER 0 LB R
Hong Yang Group (Holdings)" Interest in controlled corporation 301,994,000 72.77%
shEs &= (FERR) @ Ry EEER
Mr. Zeng Huansha™ Interest in controlled corporation 301,994,000 72.77%
B e RErEER
Ms. Chen Sihong? Interest of spouse 301,994,000 72.77%
PREBALLZ T [N e

Notes: B 5E

M

Redsun Services Group (Holdings) is wholly owned by Hong Yang Group
Company, which in turn is wholly owned by Hong Yang International,
which in turn is owned as to 50% and 50% by Hong Yang Group
(Holdings) (@ company wholly owned by Mr. Zeng Huansha) and
Mr. Zeng Huansha, respectively. Accordingly, each of Hong Yang Group
Company, Hong Yang International, Hong Yang Group (Holdings) and
Mr. Zeng Huansha is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Redsun Services Group (Holdings) by virtue of the SFO.

Ms. Chen Sihong is the spouse of Mr. Zeng Huansha and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Zeng Huansha is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

WS RRISEE () Mok EEE2ERE - MolGE

EELBEBE2EES - ML EBAAGEE (3F
BI(BEBRDEELERBENAG) REKRDEES
RIEA 50% K& 50% 4 o it - RIFES REAEKG -

ENCESE RN 1EE A

FEBREA/NLEREEE GER) HAENRNTHES

s o

Q BREBARETRGHRDEENERS Bt BEEHFR
;51 ﬁlJ AR R B IR 55 A A HE A0 AL An o R

L

3 = %
a\r'

LB EE () kBB KL
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company had
not been notified of any persons (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in
the Shares or underlying Shares that were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2020.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no any rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there
any such rights exercised by them. Also, there was no arrangement
to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party that would enable the

Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTING
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company, or the law of Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated under which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in

this annual report.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had 4,119 employees in total, of
which 3,396 employees were engaged in property management and
related services for residential properties and 723 employees were
engaged in property management and related services for

commercial properties.

The emolument of the employees of the Group is mainly determined
based on their duties, performance and the prevailing market level in
the respective regions. The Group has formulated a systematic and
market-competitive employee incentive plan and a comprehensive
talent cultivation scheme based on its business to attract and retain
talents through offering competitive salary packages, comprehensive
talent training strategies, internal promotion system and a caring
corporate culture.

In addition, focusing on the entire process of talent cultivation and
development, the Group has also formulated the systematic “five-
talent scheme”, for enhancing the quality of talents and broadening
its pool of talents. The Group has designed training programmes
including the “leadership scheme”, “brigadier scheme”, “housekeeping
academy” and "management trainee programme” for the key talents,
in which systematic arrangements are implemented to provide the
employees of the Group with clear development path and secure the
demand for talents in different business segments and levels. The
Group believes that talent cultivation scheme of the Group will
enhance team building, improve team capability, and provide talent
pipelines for the business development of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Environmental Protection

The Group is subject to PRC laws in relation to environment
protection matters. The Group considers the protection of the
environment to be important and have implemented measures in
the operation of our businesses to ensure its compliance with all
applicable requirements. Given the nature of its operations, the
Group believes it is not subject to material environmental liability risk

or compliance costs.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, no fines or penalties for non-compliance of PRC
environmental laws had been imposed on the Group, and the Group
had not been subject to any material administrative penalties due to

violation of environmental laws in the PRC.

Social Responsibility

The Group has entered into employment contracts with its
employees in accordance with the applicable PRC laws and

regulations.

The Group maintains social welfare insurance for its full-time
employees in the PRC, including pension insurance, medical
insurance, personal injury insurance, unemployment insurance and
maternity insurance, in accordance with the relevant PRC laws and

regulations.

Health and Work Safety

The employee's administrative measures adopted by the Group
contain policies and procedures regarding work safety and
occupational health issues. The Group provides its employees with
annual medical checks and safety training, and the construction sites
of the Group are equipped with safety equipment including gloves,

boots and hats.
The operational management department of the Group is

responsible for recording and handling work accidents as well as

maintaining health and work safety compliance records.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Group did not encounter any material safety
accident, there were no material claims for personal or property
damages and no material compensation was paid to employees in
respect of claims for personal or property damages related to safety
accident.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The articles of association of the Company provides that the
Directors, managing directors, alternate Directors, auditors, secretary
and other officers for the time being of the Company and the
trustees (if any) for the time being acting in relation to any of the
affairs of the Company, and their respective executors or
administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or
any of their executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or
trusts. The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance in respect of legal action against Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2020.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 26 February 2021, Mr. Jiang Dagiang resigned as a non-executive
Director and a member of the remuneration committee of the Board.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26
February 2021 for further details.

On 25 March 2021, Mr. Li Yonggang was appointed as a joint
company secretary of the Company. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2021 for further
details.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material events after the
Reporting Period.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules requires there to be an open market in
the securities for which listing is sought and a sufficient public float
of an issuer’s listed securities to be maintained. This normally means
that at least 25% of the issuer’s total issued share capital must at all
times be held by the public.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made
charitable and other donations in a total amount of RMB1.08 million.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been audited by Ernst & Young. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company's
auditor is to be proposed at the AGM.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult an expert.

For and on behalf of the Board
Redsun Services Group Limited
He Jie

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to implementing high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders
and enhance the corporate value as well as the responsibility
commitments. The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance.

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
7 July 2020 (the “Listing Date")To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the period commencing
from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report (the
“Relevant Period”). The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
will use their best endeavors to procure the Company to continue to
comply with the CG Code.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each Director is provided with the necessary induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under relevant statutes, by-laws, laws, rules and regulations. The
Company will continue to arrange regular seminars to provide the
Directors with updates on the latest developments and changes in
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided with
regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge his duty.

During the Reporting Period, the Company provided training
materials to the Directors and the management of the Company
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements.
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The Board assumes the responsibility of leadership and control
of the Company, and supervises and approves significant
decisions regarding financial performance, strategic
development objectives and operations of the Company. The
Board delegates to the management authority and
responsibility for the Company’s daily operations and
businesses management according to the Board's instructions.
The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Board (collectively, the “Board
Committees”), and has delegated to the Board Committees
various duties. All the Board Committees perform their distinct

roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference.

TEERRE
Types of Continuous
Professional
Development Training
HESERREIER
Reading materials
Name of Director EEHE RO E MR
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. He Jie Al L v
Mr. Jiang Dagiang® BERELED v
Mr. Luo Yanbing U v
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yang Guang BREE v
Ms. Zeng Zixi BfERLt v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. Jing Zhishan kg v
Ms. Wang Fen FEZL v
Mr. Yim Kai Pung BRAENS e & v
Note: B 5E
(1) Mr. Jiang Dagiang had resigned as a non-executive Director and a () BERLEEHEFNTEEREFETTNEEFK
member of the remuneration committee of the Board with effect from 8 B2021F2A26HBAEM -
26 February 2021.
THE BOARD BEEg
1. Responsibilities 1. BE

EZeaHRERERARR X EEREL
BEARBHHRIR  REERBEEREHDN
ERRE - EFERNEEERBIBREEFTEN
ERAERARRMARREREHEENES
MEE -BEFEECRU=-EL2E8E NEFE
BTEZZES FHZEQRERZEE (K
WRIEEEEE]) YRAEEZESZRZRA
RE - -FMAEZZESURBESENREESR
BERITIRNEE -



All Directors shall at all times ensure that they carry out duties
in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders.

Board Composition

Non-executive Directors
Mr. He Jie (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Dagiang"

Mr. Luo Yanbing

Executive Directors
Mr. Yang Guang
Ms. Zeng Zixi

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jing Zhishan

Ms. Wang Fen

Mr. Yim Kai Pung

Note:

(1) Mr. Jiang Dagiang had resigned as a non-executive Director and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Board with
effect from 26 February 2021.

There is no material financial, business, family or other
relationship between any members of the Board. The
biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report. All the Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, bring a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning. The
independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on
the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company.

During the Relevant Period, the Board at all times met the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules by the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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During the Relevant Period, the Company also complied with
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, which relates to the
appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board. The Company has
received a confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all the independent non-executive
Directors are considered to be independent pursuant to the

Listing Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors has entered into an appointment

letter with the Company for a term of three years.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company have been separated as required by Code Provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
Mr. He Jie served as the Chairman of Company and Mr. Yang
Guang served as the executive president of the Company (the
"Executive President”).

Board Meetings

Code Provision A.1.1 of the CG Code prescribes that at least
four regular Board meetings should be held in each year at
approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of
majority of directors, either in person or through electronic

means of communication.

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly. Notice of not less than 14 days is given of
all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with the
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda. For
other committee meetings, 7 days' notice is given. The agenda
and accompanying board papers are despatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before
meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
these documents and be adequately prepared. When the
Directors or committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they are advised of the matters to be discussed and
given an opportunity to make their views known to the
chairman prior to the meeting.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are EEeeR T EgRRNgRLHE
recorded in detail and include the matters considered by the ﬁ&@?ﬁiiﬁﬁéé@ﬁﬁ%ﬁEﬁ%H&PﬁL
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, BHRE  BREFRERHOEMERE - Xﬁ%
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes geRhTEEgRNERLHEREIER
of each Board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the ERTAHENGERNEAARREES ﬁfﬂi
Directors within a reasonable time after the date on which the EEME ERIELERT ©
meeting is held so that they have an opportunity to request
amendments.
The Company did not convene an annual general meeting, RENZE2020F 12 A3HIEFEREEARFHA
and the Board convened 5 Board meetings during the year Bl AR EARKREEFTFRAE  MES
ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual BEBITSREEGEE - TRIJIZFEES
report. The table below sets forth the details of the attendance FHRAOLEFS

at these Board meetings:

Number of meetings attended/
held during the Director’s term of office

ESNERALE SBTEERY

Annual
Name of Director EEnE Board meetings general meeting
EZgeiR BRRBEFAE
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. He Jie a4 sE 4t 5/5 N/AZT ¥ F
Mr. Jiang Daqiang" BiEALAED 5/5 N/AZT i FA
Mr. Luo Yanbing A 5/5 N/AZ i A
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yang Guang o Pibitas 5/5 N/AZ i A
Ms. Zeng Zixi BFERLt 5/5 N/AT i AR
Independent Non-executive Directors B HITEE
Mr. Jing Zhishan SELEE 5/5 N/AT i AR
Ms. Wang Fen TELZL 5/5 N/AZ 38 A
Mr. Yim Kai Pung B A IS S A 5/5 N/AZ i A
Note: B &E
(1) Mr. Jiang Dagiang had resigned as a non-executive Director and M BEREECHIIFNTEZIRESTSHNE
a member of the remuneration committee of the Board with BEKE8  B2021F 2268 BERK -

effect from 26 February 2021.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established an audit committee, a remuneration

committee and a nomination committee. Each of these committees

has specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their

authority and duties. The chairmen of these committees will report

their

findings and recommendations to the Board after each

meeting.

\\ 088

Audit Committee

Our Board has established an audit committee in compliance
with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and Code C3 of
the CG Code, and has adopted written terms of reference. The
primary duties of our audit committee are to review and
monitor the Group’s financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control system, to oversee the audit
process, to provide advice and comments to our Board, and to
perform other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned
by the Board. Our audit committee currently consists of two
non-executive Directors, being Mr. He Jie and Mr. Luo Yanbing,
and three independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Jing
Zhishan, Ms. Wang Fen and Mr. Yim Kai Pung. Our audit
committee is currently chaired by Mr. Yim Kai Pung, who
possesses suitable professional qualifications.

Our audit committee convened 2 meetings during the
Relevant Period. The table below sets forth the details of the

attendance at these meetings:

EEZETE

ZIK’AETEﬁJZ**’f ZBg FHZESQRREEZE
€ -BLREBEREH %Eﬂﬁ%%ﬁ - B SIBR EL B
REBE ZFZEENEIRNERREAEFTEW
SHBERNEBEES -

1. BREE®
EESCRELTARRAEINGREEI2ERD
¥ERTATUEGKRIEZEZES I E
RNEEBESHE BREZEGNTEREAR
R RRRASENVHERER BRERE
MAMPELZRG  EEEXBRE RNEZTCR
HEZLER YETESSAURZRNEM
BEREF BRLZECHAEMABIERTE
ERMRELERBWREE)  R=FRBUIE
HWITEE (SESLEE TERTREEEE
) B - BREE SRR ARER AL FE
B HBEBHEEEER-

RIAREHIRE  ERRESAM2RE#E - TRH
e A - ohE

Number of meetings
attended/held during
the Director’s

Name of committee member ZEEREHA term of office
ESREHAEES

BITEEBRE

Mr. Yim Kai Pung (Chairman) ERAENS o A () 2/2
Mr. He Jie Gk e 2/2
Mr. Luo Yanbin UL 2/2
Mr. Jing Zhishan sELEE 2/2
Ms. Wang Fen FEZL 2/2



Our audit committee has reviewed the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 and confirmed that it has complied all
applicable accounting principles, standards and requirements,
and made sufficient disclosures. The audit committee has also
discussed the matters of audit and financial reporting. Our
audit committee has also reviewed the significant issues on
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control and risk management systems and connected
transactions, and have discussed with the auditor of the
Company about the tasks they performed.

Our audit committee has reviewed the remuneration of the
auditor for the year ended 31 December 2020 and has
recommended the Board to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the
auditor of the Company for the year ending 31 December
2021, subject to approval by the Shareholders at the AGM.

The work performed by our audit committee during the
Relevant Period included, among others, the following:

reviewed the unaudited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the six months ended
30 June 2020;

reviewed the cash flow projections and monitored the
Company's overall financial condition;

reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2020;

made recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of auditor for the year 2021;

reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the
Company and made recommendations to the Board on
the improvement of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company;

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of the
internal audit function of the Company and made
recommendations to the Board on the improvement of
the internal audit function of the Company; and

reviewed the arrangements which employees can raise
concerns on possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters, and the investigation
of these matters for appropriate follow-up actions.

Remuneration Committee

Our Board has established a remuneration committee in
compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules and
Code B.1.1 to B.1.5 of the CG Code, and has adopted written
terms of reference. The primary duties of our remuneration
committee are to establish, review and make recommendations
to the Directors on our policy and structure concerning
remuneration of the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies concerning such remuneration, determine
the terms of the specific remuneration package of each
executive Director and senior management and review and
approve performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives. Our remuneration committee
currently consists of one executive Director, being
Ms. Zeng Zixi, and three independent non-executive Directors,
being Mr. Jing Zhishan, Ms. Wang Fen and Mr. Yim Kai Pung.
Our remuneration committee is currently chaired by
Ms. Wang Fen.
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Our remuneration committee convened 1 meeting during the
Relevant Period. The table below sets forth the details of the
attendance at the meeting:

TEERRE

RIAREHIRE  FMEE @AM IRERE - TRH
SIZEGHRHHERS

Number of meetings
attended/held during
the Director’s

Name of committee member ZEEHRBEHA term of office
EEREHRALEE

BITEBRE

Ms. Wang Fen (Chairman) TELLT(FE) 1
Ms. Zeng Zixi BFERLZ+ 1/1
Mr. Jing Zhishan sElkE N
Mr. Yim Kai Pung A NS S A N

The major work performed by our remuneration committee
during the Relevant Period included, among others, the
following:

reviewed and made recommendations to the Board of
the remuneration packages and overall benefits for the
Directors and the senior management of the Company;

made recommendations to the Board in relation to all
consultancy agreements and service contracts or any
variations, renewals or modifications thereof, entered
into between the Company and the Directors and senior
management of the Company or any associate company
of any of them;

considered what details of the remuneration/benefits of
the Directors should be reported in the Company's
corporate governance report in the annual report and
how those details should be presented, including
determining the policy for the remuneration of Directors,
assessing performance of executive Directors and
approving the terms of executive Directors' service
contracts; and

FHNZE SN ERMEETHEIETERRE (K
hRIE)ATRIE:

COE BN o
B MR e F IR G2

i
%

RARFEEERARNASREREERH
LRI B8 2 B 5T SV P R A W e S AR 7%
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WMEOFI, FEFE - RRSFBHER
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TEENRARMERTEEREE O
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made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for formulating

remuneration policy.

Compensation of the Directors and senior
management

The Directors and members of our senior management receive
compensation from our Company in the form of salaries,
bonuses and other benefits in kind such as contributions to

pension plans.

The Company incurred expenses in relation to remuneration
(including fees, salaries, contributions to pension schemes and
social welfare, discretionary bonuses, housing and other
allowances and other benefits in kind) for the Directors for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB2,853,000.

The Company incurred expenses in relation to remuneration
(including fees, salaries, contributions to pension schemes and
social welfare, discretionary bonuses, housing and other
allowances and other benefits in kind) for our Company’s five
highest paid individuals (including the Directors) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB4,769,000.

None of the Directors had waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Our Board will review and determine the remuneration and
compensation packages of the Directors and senior
management and will receive recommendation from our
remuneration committee which will take into account salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of our

Company.
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For additional information on the Directors’ remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2020 as well as information on
the highest paid individuals, please refer to Notes 8 and 9 in
the Accountants’ Report.

In addition, pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code,
the annual remuneration of members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2020
is set out below:
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EBREEEBKENEE2020F12A31HIEFE
NEEFEREMT ¢

Number of

Remuneration band N E persons
AE

HKS$1T million above 1008 BT £ 1
HK$500,000 to HK$1 million 508 B ILE1008 8T 4

Nomination Committee

Our Board has established a nomination committee in
compliance with Code A5 of the CG Code, and has adopted
written terms of reference. The primary duties of our
nomination committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of our Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the composition of our Board, identify, select or
make recommendations to our Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorship, and ensuring the
diversity of our Board members, assess the independence of
our independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to our Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. Our nomination
committee currently consists of one executive Director, being
Mr. Yang Guang, one non-executive director, being Mr. He Jie,
and three independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Jing
Zhishan, Ms. Wang Fen and Mr. Yim Kai Pung. Our nomination
committee is currently chaired by Mr. He Jie.

REEES
EEECRBOEEIATRITRIFASIRKILER
2ZEg URMEEDBERE - -REZES
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Our nomination committee convened 1 meeting during the PIEREERE  IREZESBMIREE - TRHE
Relevant Period. The table below sets forth the details of the PZEFme LS
attendance at the meeting:

Number of meetings
attended/held during
the Director’s

Name of committee member ZEEREHR term of office
EEREIHRAEES
BITFBREY
Mr. He Jie (Chairman) AL E (FE) 1/1
Mr. Yang Guang BT E 1/1
Ms. Wang Fen TELZ+L 1/1
Mr. Jing Zhishan SELEE /1
Mr. Yim Kai Pung ER NG o 1/1
The work performed by our nomination committee included, REZEENEBEHMETOIERE (EhE
among others, the following: FIUNTEIE
reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of . ERNEFGNEE AR ENEZFT
the Board; i
assessed the independence of the independent . B IERMITE B L

non-executive Directors;

made recommendations to the Board on the . REARET T EETNESTDREHES
appointment and re-appointment of Directors; and BE R

reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on . BEIRABRRU I AEECREERRE
the nomination policy. & e

\\ 094



Nomination Policy

(i)

(ii)

Objective

The nomination committee shall nominate suitable candidates
to the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to
the Shareholders for election as the Directors at general

meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

The nomination committee may, as it considers appropriate,
nominate a number of candidates more than the number of
Directors to be appointed or re-appointed at a general
meeting, or the number of casual vacancies to be filled.

Selection Criteria

In assessing a proposed candidate for the recommendation of
appointment or re-appointment of the members of the Board,
the factors would be used as reference by the nomination

committee include but not limited to the following:

(@) integrity;

(b)  accomplishment and experience in the industry of which
the Company is a part;

(c)  commitment in respect of available time and relevant

interest;

(d)  diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional

experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

(e)  fulfilment of independence guidelines for the
appointment of independent non-executive Directors as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and

() any factors as the nomination committee or the Board
may from time to time consider appropriate.

RABE

(i)

(ii)
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The nomination committee will ask proposed candidates to
submit the necessary personal information in a prescribed
form.

The nomination committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or
re-appointment of any existing members of the Board shall be
made in accordance with the Articles of Association of the

Company and other applicable rules and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the nomination committee shall call a
meeting of the nomination committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from the members of the Board, if any, for
consideration by the nomination committee prior to its
meeting. The nomination committee may also put forward

candidates for consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to
the Board,
adequate due diligence in respect of such individual candidate

the nomination committee shall undertake
and make recommendations for the Board's consideration and

approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing members of
the Board, the Committee shall make recommendations to the
Board for its consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election at a general

meeting.

Please refer to the “Procedures for Appointment, Election and
Removal of Directors’, which is available on the Company’s
website, for procedures for Shareholders’ nomination of any

proposed candidate for election as a Director.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a

general meeting.

(ifi)
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Board Diversity Policy

In order to enhance the effectiveness of our Board and to maintain
the high standard of corporate governance, the Company has
adopted the board diversity policy which sets out the objective and
approach to achieve and maintain diversity of our Board. Pursuant to
the board diversity policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors when
selecting the candidates to our Board, including but not limited to
gender, skills, age, professional experience, knowledge, cultural,
education background, ethnicity and length of service. The ultimate
decision of the appointment will be based on merit and the
contribution which the selected candidates will bring to our Board.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including
overall management and strategic development, human resources,
information technology, accounting and financial management, risk
management and corporate governance. They obtained degrees in
various majors including economics, business administration, and
accounting studies. The Board has three independent non-executive
Directors with different industry backgrounds, representing more than
one third of the members of our Board. Furthermore, our Board has
two female members, and has a wide range of age, ranging from 28
years old to 58 years old. Taking into account our existing business
model and specific needs as well as the different background of the
Directors, the composition of our Board satisfies our board diversity

policy.

Our nomination committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity of
our Board members. Our nomination committee will review the
board diversity policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness and the Company will disclose in its corporate
governance report about the implementation of the board diversity
policy on an annual basis.

4, Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board met one
time to review the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company, the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this section
headed “Corporate Governance and Other Information”.

ABRBEEERAR . —s=s555 @ \

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE
EEELNBE
RESEFENREREFRELEEAKFE Ao

ADRMEZTSZ LR HEJIZHRERES
LM BNEITE - REBEEFSZTEBE - K
NREEBRIEEETSANERERZHERERM HRE
@K%%Ayﬁﬂ: He @R EARNIER - e~ F
%Zﬁﬁ ME Xt BEER  BERERS
EHE REOZERESBRIEAEERE ZHNRAAK
BEABRREFTEWAMBERMMARE

EXARHENAREKRE  BREEREIE MR
B ANER BB Stk UBER BT
BEREEER EFRETRAEXRNEN - BRELHE
B ITREEREFNZ EFEN=-"RBIFHTE
EHAETRANTEER  ABIGEFENEN=D
Z—HA bkt EEQCEMBLMESREKE &
FENFIRBEERE N F28E585 - %&%Jﬁﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂ%
BENX ARFELEENTRER  EFEAKT
REFEZTEBEK-

REZESAERREFTENENZ T - REBERE
ERTHRNESTEZ LB  UEREKEAX
% BARRSFEREXE A BRERERRE=SS

TACBEREERENR

4, TEERB
EE N E,\@ﬁ B AT RISF AR DS
{6 FT & A BB RE o

REZE20208 12A3BLIEFE  EFEHRTIX
EERARTARAMPEEGBR R TR %
ERANTSREEENEIRISESEERE
FiIN/N ﬂ%L?iﬁ&&iﬁﬁEﬁEﬁﬂwﬁ&%‘ﬁ\
BETFRNERIBN NRRIETEEERT
AR ERASIPEEAREMER I NEEE
#} e

097 /




/ . Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2020

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code for dealing in
securities in the Company by the Directors. After specific enquiries
made to all Directors, the Directors have confirmed compliance with
the required standard set out in the Model Code since the listing of
the Company on the Listing Date up to the date of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Board has absolute discretion in determining
whether to pay dividend, subject to the approval of the Shareholders
(if applicable). The Dividend Policy aims to enable the Shareholders
to participate in the profits of the Company and for the Company to
retain adequate liquidity for grasping future growth opportunities. In
determining whether to recommend a declaration of dividend and
the amount of dividend to be paid, the Board will evaluate the
Company's earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital
requirements, prevailing economic conditions, future prospects and
any other factors that the Directors deem relevant. The Board may
pay dividend as appeared to the Board to be justified by the profits
of the Company. The Board may also from time to time pay interim
dividend or special dividend. The Board will review the Dividend
Policy from time to time and may make appropriate changes if
considered necessary.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF ANY OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Relevant
Period.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to our Company and the
knowledge of the Directors, our Company maintained sufficient
public float during the Relevant Period.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fee paid/payable to the
external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and
non-audit services is set out as follows:
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Year ended
31 December
2020

B 220205
12A31HILEE
RMB million
ARKBHER

Audit and related service Eiz LR 2.1
Non-audit service IEE RIS 0

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020 which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant period. The Directors consider that the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been prepared in conformity with all applicable accounting
standards and requirements and reflect amounts that are based on
the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment
of the Board and the management. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis. The
statements of the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibility on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and for reviewing their
effectiveness.

The Company recognizes that risk management is critical to the
success of any property management companies in the PRC. Key
operational risks that the Company face include changes in general
market conditions and the regulatory environment of the PRC
property management market, local economic environment,
expansion risks relating to entering into new cities or geographic
regions, ability to timely complete our projects with sound quality,
available financing to support our growth, competition from other
property management companies and our ability to promote and

serve the property owners in a timely fashion.

In order to meet these challenges, the Company have adopted, a
series of internal control policies, procedures and plans that are
designed to reasonably assure effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and

regulations.

In order to ensure the effective implementation of such internal
control policies, the Company has adopted various on-going

measures, including the following:

The Board is responsible and has general powers over the
management and conduct of the business of the Group. Any
significant business decision involving material risks are
reviewed, analyzed and approved at the Board level to ensure
a thorough examination of the associated risks at our highest

corporate governance body.

The Executive President is responsible for the Board regarding
the effectiveness of comprehensive risk management, which in
turn is accountable to the general meetings of the Company.
The Executive President is able to authorize relevant
department leaders who take charge of the establishment and

daily operation of the risk management systems.
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The risk management department of the Company is
responsible for proposing risk management strategies,
formulating rules and regulations on risk management,
preparing annual risk management assessments and reports,
guiding all departments and subsidiaries on relevant tasks, and
conducting risk management trainings. It is also in charge of
designing a comprehensive risk management evaluation
system, and supervising the implementation of risk

management measures.

Each of functional departments and subsidiaries of the
Company is in charge of the daily business operations and risk
monitoring, and is responsible for the supervision of the
respective fields of operations on a daily basis as well as the
supervision and approval of any material business decisions of
the city and project companies of the Group.

Internal Control

The internal control system of the Company is designed to provide
reasonable and adequate assurance for effective and efficient
operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance with

applicable laws and regulations.

Our internal control system covers all major aspects of our
operations. To effectively implement such processes, the Company
has a set of comprehensive policies and guidelines which set out
details regarding the internal control standards, segregation of
responsibilities, approval procedures and personnel accountability in
each aspect. The Company also carry out regular internal
assessments and training to ensure our employees are equipped

with sufficient knowledge on such policies and guidelines.
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Information Disclosure

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. In particular, the Company has put in place a robust
framework for the disclosure of inside information in compliance
with the SFO. The framework sets out the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information in
a timely manner so as to allow all the stakeholders to apprehend the
latest position of the Company. The framework and its effectiveness
are subject to review by the Board on a regular basis.

Internal Audit

The Company has an internal audit function. The primary role of the
internal audit function is to help the Board and the senior
management of the Company to protect the assets, reputation and
sustainability of the Company. The internal audit function provides
independent and objective assurance as to whether the design and
operational effectiveness of the Company's framework of risk
management, control and governance processes, as designed and
represented by the Company's management, is adequate. The
internal audit function of the Company is independent of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.

Results of audit work together with an assessment of the overall risk
management and control framework are reported to the Audit
Committee as appropriate. The internal audit function also reviews
the Company’'s management’s action plans in relation to audit
findings and verifies the adequacy and effectiveness of the mitigating
controls before formally closing the issue.

Company Secretary

The Company has engaged SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, external service provider, and Mr. Wong Yu Kit has
been appointed as the Company’s company secretary. lts primary
contact person at the Company is Mr. Li Yonggang, a joint company
secretary of the Company (appointed on 25 March 2021).

The company secretary attended sufficient professional training as

required under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2020 to update his skills and knowledge.
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Shareholders
Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company is committed to pursue active dialogue with
Shareholders as well as to provide timely disclosure of information
concerning the Company’s material developments to its
Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

Annual general meeting of the Company serves as an effective forum
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Notice
of annual general meeting together with the meeting materials will
be despatched to all Shareholders not less than 21 days and not less
than 20 clear business days before the annual general meeting. As
one of the measures to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and
rights, separate resolutions will be proposed at general meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors,
for Shareholders’ consideration and voting. In addition, the Company
regards annual general meeting as an important event, and all
Directors, the chairmen of all Board Committees, senior management
and external auditor will attend the annual general meeting of the
Company to address Shareholders’ inquiries. If the chairmen of the
Board or each Board Committee fail to attend the meeting, then
other members of each Board Committee will be invited to attend
the annual general meeting and answer Shareholders’ inquiries
thereat. All resolutions proposed at general meetings will be voted
by poll. The voting results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company
(www.rsunservice.hk) on the same day of the relevant general
meetings.

(www.hkexnews.hk)

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website (www.rsunservice.hk), where the latest information and
updates on its business operation and development, corporate
governance practice, contact information of investor relations and
other information are published for the public’s access.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

In accordance with article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at the general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the rights, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to process to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the articles of association
of the Company and the Cayman Islands Companies Law. However,
Shareholders who wish to propose resolutions may follow article 64
of the articles of association of the Company for requisitioning an
extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution at such
meeting. The requirements and procedures of article 64 are set out
above.

Shareholders may at any time lodge the aforesaid requisition to the
Board in writing at the Company's principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit 6111-12, 61/F, The Center, No. 99 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the investor relations which contact
details are as follows:

Address: Unit 6111-12, 61/F, The Center, No. 99 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong
Email: rsuntouzizhe@rsun.com
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Amendment to the Memorandum and Articles of
Associations

During the Relevant Period, there has not been any change in the

Company’s memorandum and articles of association.

On behalf of the Board

Redsun Services Group Limited
He Jie

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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Community value-added services ‘

Redsun Services provides community value-added
services to residential property owners and residents
to improve their living experiences with an aim to
preserve and increase the value of their properties.
The Group's community value-added services for
residential properties primarily includes, among
others, (i) property brokerage services, (i) property
decoration services, (iii) community convenience
services, (iv) common area value-added services and
(v) assets management services.

BAREESMEET REPREMEEEERS -
NEHEEEER  EEERAMERETE -
EEMENHBEERBEIZREOEEFRND
R () EFERS : GDEEBRERRS (VA
AREERS RV EEEERBES




/ . Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2020

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR dHERERES

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

This is the first “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” (the
"ESG Report” or the “Report”) published by Redsun Services Group
Limited, reporting to all stakeholders with focused disclosure on the
Group’s management, practice and performance in economic,
environmental, social and governance terms. Part of this Report
involves disclosures relating to Hong Yang Group Co., Ltd. ("Hong
Yang Group Company’), the parent company of the Group.

Period Covered by the Report

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020 (the “Reporting Period”). Retrospective reference may be made
where applicable.

Scope and Coverage of the Report

The Report covers Redsun Services Group Limited and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”, "Redsun Services’, “we” or “us”).

Basis of Preparation

The Report has been prepared with reference to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report Guide set out in appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The scope of the ESG
Report, the collection of relevant materials and data, its preparation
based on available information and the review of information set out
in the Report have been determined on the basis of the
identification and priority of importance of stakeholders and the
material issues relating to ESG, to ensure the completeness,
materiality, truthfulness and balance of the Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Sources and Warranty of Reliabilty

Data and information disclosed in the Report are derived from the
Group's statistical reports and formal documents, after the verification
of relevant departments. The Group undertakes to the effect that the
Report does not contain any misrepresentation or misleading
statements, and takes responsibility for the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of the Report.

Languages and Formats
The Report is available in electronic version, in Chinese language and
English language. For more information regarding Redsun Services'
background, business development and philosophy of its sustainable
development, please refer to the official website of Redsun Services
(http://www.rsunservice.hk/).

Confirmation and Approval

The Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March
2021 after confirmation by the management.

Contact Details

Email: rsuntouzizhe@rsun.com
Address:
District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province

Hong Yang Building, No. 9 Dagiao North Road, Pukou

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

For 17 years since its inception, Redsun Services has always sought
to be an enterprise of conscience, with steadfast adherence to the
motto of “professionalism and building credibility for the long term”
by actively performing its social responsibilities. Year 2020 was a
special year, when COVID-19 started to draw the society’s attention
to the nature and value of property enterprises in terms of the
provision of public services. In 2020, amidst the dual pressure from
COVID-19 and market plunge, we successfully became listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. On a new starting point, we uphold the
strategy of “penetrating the Greater Jiangsu Region, strengthening
foothold in the Yangtze River Delta Region and expanding into major
(MEXLE  AR=/ MHEBHE) ©
achieve rapid growth with quality.

metropolitan areas”
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For customer services, Redsun Services has established a service
system that advocates harmonious community upon a
“customer-oriented” principle, with comprehensive coverage of all life
services being delivered in the form of smart communities. We
integrate online and offline services through an intelligent service
collection platform and a perfect management system. Through the
Red Life APP, the “400" call center and customer service centers, we
provide customers with both convenient and fast online service
mode and offline service space for face-to-face communication and
interaction to meet the needs of different customer groups. For
environmental protection, we build green and environment-friendly
spaces for work and living. Optimized energy saving design and the
use of energy saving facilities minimize energy consumption in the
course of operation and ensure the reasonable use of energy
resources. We organize a wide range of environment-related activities
and promote a culture of sustainable development in office spaces as
well as venues of operations. For employment, we keep improving
our staff benefits and employee care initiatives, provide safe,
comfortable, free and fair working atmosphere, enhance our
attractiveness to talents for an overall upgrade of staff quality,
incentivize internal momentum, and in turn support the mutual
growth of employees and the enterprise. For industrial cooperation,
we are well aware that the property industry is inherently one that
carries social responsibilities by nature, where industry players are
endowed with higher social values than commercial values. We
continually explore business development in the management of
livelihood-related services, by collaborating with governments and
universities in forming new modes of operation, with a view to
creating larger service values and social values. For charity, Redsun
Services actively assumes the social responsibilities as a major
enterprise. Since the outbreak of COVID-19, we have proactively
integrated resources available from different channels and formed a
cooperation mechanism with participation from the government,
business enterprises, social organizations and community residents, to

join hands in fighting the pandemic.
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In our future development, we will continue to adhere to the original
vision of “making lives warmer (GEAE)EE B)RE)” and firmly capture
the opportunities presented by the high-quality economic
development of China and the favorable policies available in the
Yangtze River Delta Region, by providing its customers with warm
property management services, upgraded community value-added
services, and deeply-filled value-added services to non-property
owners, and reward on its staff members and shareholders with
high-quality sustainable growth. Meanwhile, we will focus on the
three dimensions of ‘“expanding scale, increasing revenue and
improving services’, aiming at achieving a rapid growth with quality,
and becoming a venerable good life operator.

ABOUT REDSUN SERVICES

Corporate Profile

Established in Nanjing in 2003, Redsun Services is a fast-growing
comprehensive community service provider with a regional focus on
the Yangtze River Delta. It commands a regional leading position in
the property management market of Jiangsu province and
well-recognized nationwide. In pursuit of its vision of “making lives
warmer’ (GEAEE AR E), Redsun Services has provided and
endeavors to continue to “provide customers with high-quality
services with sincerity (VASAFE + &R T5). We were recognized
as one of the Top 100 Property Management Companies by China
Index Academy for four consecutive years since 2017 and ranked
25th among the 2020 Top 100 Property Management Companies.

Adhering to its belief of “good service comes with good reputation
and good reputation comes with good future”, Redsun Services
commits itself to delivering good services with love and dedication
and uses its actual deeds to let residents genuinely feel the warmth.
Upholding the notion of “making lives warmer” (B4 E B IR E),
Redsun Services marches forward, aiming at becoming a venerable
good life operator.
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Leveraging the “dual-driven”" development strategy of Redsun Group,
and being a hands-on good life operator, Redsun Services is
well-versed with customer needs and commits itself to creating a
property service system that covers the entire lifecycle; in terms of
discipline, environment, engineering and customer services, it
provides safe and rest-assuring living environment to property
owners and contributes to the properties’ value preservation and
appreciation. Redsun Services focuses on major metropolitan areas
including Nanjing, Shanghai, Tianjin, Chongging, Chengdu, Xi‘an,
Hefei, Wuhan, Changsha and so forth. As at the end of the Reporting
Period, the Group had three major business lines namely property
management services, community value-added services and
value-added services to non-property owners, which constitute the
comprehensive services that we provide customers with and cover
the entire property management value chain:

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Residential properties: security, cleaning, greening and
gardening, facility management, and repairs and maintenance
services

Commercial properties: shopping malls, home improvement
and furnishings malls, hotels and them park

Other properties: office buildings, schools and so forth

RaRohS R E S RmER | HRBE - sABRBIE
REFERELRBORARTE  FEEPFXR
BORTERBRNOMERRBEEER - {KF - R% -
TREMEROESE  SEEREZE  ZONEE
RE ERFEEMNREEEE LABRBEERE
RoLbB KRR -BE -KE AL AR HEZE-
EDVEROHTE - BEREHR  AEECHED
EXEBRS  LRIBERSEMIFRERERE =KX
BEBHG  BREMRATFPERNGERBABEE
A EEREEE

MEEERY

EEWE: LR BE KCEREE REEER
HEIBIRE RIS

BEME : BYHO  KERS  REHK - BE
kEXEAHE
Hip% 5578 - BR%F

VALUE-ADDED SERVICES TO NON-PROPERTY OWNERS FEFEERE

Consulting services to other property management companies,
helping them provide better services to their customers
Preliminary planning and design consultancy services to
property developers for property development projects

Sales assistance services to property developers

Inspection services to property developers

mMEMYEEEQBREERRY  RATFREH
B IR

MM ERME IR S EM B IR R AR E &
R T AR S

I7) 5 11 22 79 3% A e 1 16 6 AR 7%

I7) 5 110 2 79 3% R e 11 e LA AR 7%

&= 1 E RS

COMMUNITY VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

Property brokerage services
Property decoration services
Community convenience services
Common area value-added services
Assets management services

The “dual-driven” development strategy as in “dual-driven in property
and commerce and dual-driven in property and capital” proposed by
Redsun Group
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Awards and Accolades

The Group appreciates the recognitions from society and seeks to live
up to expectations in the course of its ongoing development. During
the Reporting Period, the Group was granted the following awards

and accolades:
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NAME OF AWARD/ACCOLADE
REEH
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S TH L5 28
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ROREMESTHE - MEDPN - AREESNHE
BREBWMT

PHOTO

GRANTED BY ILLUSTRATION
AR REE R

13 May

5H13H

26 May

5A26H

28 May

5H28H

12 August

8H12H

18 August

8H18H

20 August

8H20H

16 November
1M H16H

Top 100 Property Management
Companies in China

TEMERFEREE

Potential Unicorn Property Service
Company
MERBKEEENBAHE

Top 10 Capital Attention China
Property Management Company

TEMELEEANRIE TR

Top 100 Blue Chip Property
Companies

EZMxaacx

Top 40 China Property Companies in
terms of branding value

B 1 mm R B B TOP40

Top 50 China Property Companies in
terms of overall strength
B (B4R E B HTOPS0

IPO Award for Best Growth Potential
HEK K IPOLE

China Index Academy v

e ek Ea

China Property Management -3
Institute wmmREmamin
= P PN d".-—f**:

TEYMEERGE

EH Consulting ol

] ~se

The Economic Observer
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EH Consulting "T‘
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REDSUN « SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND
MANAGEMENT

Energy conversation, reduction of waste disposal and emission, and
in turn lessening the burden on the environment of the planet earth
in the course of production and operation whilst developing
business at the same time have become a widely-regarded issue in
recent years. The Group sees environmental, social and governance
as an integral part of corporate management. It seeks to continually
optimize its management system and upgrade corporate system
while growing its financial strengths, so as to make greater
contributions to sustainable social and corporate development
together with its stakeholders in tandem with the enhancement of

customer, shareholder and staff satisfactions.

Compliant Operations

Redsun Services seeks to safeguard the interests of all stakeholders as
a whole by ceaselessly uplifting its internal corporate management
and proactively identifying potential risk factors and devising
contingency plans. The Group’'s ongoing enhancement of its risk
control construction is by means of a top-down risk management
regime encompassing a headquarters-regional companies-project
commencement hierarchy, where business risk items of each
business line are further identified by reference to the top ten risk
items and contingency plans against risks are devised. For the risks
within a business line, the Group has in place a three-tier alert
control and three lines of defense against risks. In addition, the Group
advocates risk awareness to its senior management and internal staff
members, by means of specifying categories, clarifying rules,
explaining cases and adjusting mechanisms, for enhancing their

awareness in this aspect.
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Business Ethics

Redsun Services adopts a “zero tolerance” policy against corruption.
Strictly complying with laws and regulations including the
Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China and
the Interim Regulations Concerning the Prohibition of Commercial
Briberies, the Group remains its steadfast commitment to combating
corruptions, briberies, fraudulent acts and so forth. In order to share
and disseminate the “sunshine culture” in a timely manner, to create
a corruption-free working atmosphere for its staff members, and to
make available a working environment that facilitates fair
cooperation, mutual trust and a win-win situation for its business
partners, the Group has devised its Redsun Group's System of
Declaration of Conflict of Interests (545 ¥ 2 & B Fl) &= & 22 B2 3Rk 5
J€) and the List of Prohibited Acts and Behaviors of Corruption (8§
ITHEIERTRIIT B
Company’s Rules for Administering Complaints and Whistle-blowing
FRFERMEPEPE) and its official WeChat account for filing
complaints and whistle-blowing named “Corruption-free Redsun” (5k

), on the basis of Hong Yang Group

1E5AF5). Redsun Services' own codifications stated above set out
specific procedures for handling declarations of conflicts of interests
and specific acts and behaviors which are considered corruptive and
therefore prohibited, whereby the prevention against corruptions can
be further solidified and working environment favorable to fair
competition can be made available.

Various channels for filing complaints and whistle-blowing are
available at the Group, for example the Chairman of the Board’s
Mailbox for Complaints and Whistle-blowing, the Audit and
Surveillance Center's Mailbox for Whistle-blowing, the Audit and
Surveillance Center's Hotline for Complaints and Whistle-blowing and
so forth. Upon receiving a whistleblower’s filing, the risk control
department of the Group will, in a timely manner, take up the case,
ascertain the approach to investigation, issue its investigation report
and recommendations, and give timely feedback on the result of
investigation. Meanwhile, the personal data of a whistleblower and
the details of his/her filing are to be handled in strict confidence.
Any transmission of the filed materials to the complained entity(ies)
or individual(s) is strictly prohibited. Any indulgence or shelter of the
complained or any retaliation against the complainant will be duly
accounted for by the Group.
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For better staff awareness against corruption and to create a sound
and clean-handed atmosphere entailing integrity, promotion and
training activities in advocacy of anti-corruption are organized from
time to time for the Group's various functional units. During the
Reporting Period, a total of six training sessions in advocacy of
anti-corruption were organized and were joined by 326 participants.
During the Reporting Period, the Group had no corruption cases
being handled by any judiciary bodies.

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

In strict compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations
relating to the protection of intellectual property rights including the
Copyrights Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Trademark Law
of the People’s Republic of China and the Patents Law of the
People’s Republic of China, we devised and issued the System for
Administering Intellectual Property Rights (&0 &% 2 #E & 32 % )
during the Reporting Period. The System enables the standardized
administration of patents and technical knowhow, trademark rights,
copyrights, trade secrets and other intellectual property rights
protected by China’'s laws and regulations, contributing to the
continuous uplift of the Group’s level of administration of intellectual
property rights.

Information Security and Privacy Protection

In the course of building an ecosystem of good living, information
security and privacy protection have become important factors of
increasing concern of customers. We strictly comply with laws and
regulations including the System for Administering the Graded
Protection of Information Security ({5 B &Z 2 EMIREZEHE),
and have devised our own System for Controlling Risks Pertaining to
Information Security (182 % % &l fg & 1% §l/2)

among others, network security and information platform security.

which regulates,

For network security, we require our internal staff members to
regularly adjust their firewall strategy and strengthen the supervision
and examination of computer viruses. For business partners such as
suppliers, unauthorized connection to production setting or database
of the company’s internal information platform is not allowed. In the
course of administering information platform security, our system
administrators regularly arrange for security examinations and
maintenances and, pursuant to the Procedures for Application for
Information System Authorizations ({5 /8 & #t # R B & i 12),
administer data authorizations on the information platform to
prevent divulgence of information on customers.
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Further, for attaining an increasingly higher level of administration of  Itt4) * AN BERFPIEEF & RXFEMEEKE - #
our own platform system, we have adopted procedures such as Pt REHERIEH] - BIEHE D « FHIIEEE RI2RkAE

control of system authorizations, data backup and training and
guidance to ensure the security, confidentiality and completeness of

personal data. During the Reporting Period, we had no incidence of o

significant customer privacy intrusion or loss of customer data.

CONTROL OF SYSTEM
AUTHORIZATIONS
AR

DATA BACKUP

BEED

TRAINING AND GUIDANCE
BAEE

ADMINISTERING CUSTOMER PRIVACY
EFRALER

To administer user authorization matrix, and timely allocation and
removal of user authorization based on positions; to adopt strategy
for protecting account password security.
MIFRAFACERERER  REEUEERFHEMWE A
FRER : F RT3

To ensure platform stability and data security and to, in the process
of data transmission and saving, ensure the prompt identification of
information or data tampering, whether unauthorized or otherwise,
as well as data recovery.

BRIENETUEMNSMBERL 2T - EBEES - FREGBET -
HEAR(E B S BB AR A4 M T A Bl A AR R S35 R B 3R A
BURIRIE -

To compile and revise operating manuals, and to organize relevant
training activities, such as one-on-one training for new users,
training on new function delivery, guidance on operating individual
applications and so forth.

B RAERTIRIEFN - WABMEBOEINES - 1 - FRF—
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Administering Customer Privacy

During the Reporting Period, we organized the “Network Security
Promotion Month” activity for all staff members of the Group. We
used our office software to deliver and promote knowledge relating
to network security, to continually uplift staff members’ awareness of
privacy and information security, in pursuit of the culture
construction in respect of information security of the company.
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“Network Security Promotion Month” activity
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ESG Work Mechanism

The notion of social responsibilities is embedded in the Group's
strategic development goals and is put to implementation in our
daily corporate operation and management as well as innovative
activities. To ensure the efficacy of ESG management and to further
safeguard the operation of the company, our directors are fully
responsible for matters related to ESG management, coordinate the
direction of ESG strategies and corporate development, and continue
to strengthen corporate governance. An ESG taskforce has been
formed comprising members from the finance department, risk
control department, human resources department, social and
commercial operations department, data and information
department, investment strategies department and operational
management department, to implement policies related to ESG in
day-to-day work.

Communication with Stakeholders

It is the Group's belief that the synchronized progression and
advancement hand-in-hand with its stakeholders represents a
long-lasting momentum to drive the corporate development of the
Group. To fully comprehend the needs of our stakeholders and listen
to the society’s expectations on the Group, we have identified those
stakeholders which are closely related to our corporate development
on the basis of our own scope of business and nature of operation,
created a multitude of channels and built a real-time, effective and
long-lasting communication mechanism, and also responded
specifically to stakeholders with actual deeds. During the Reporting
Period, by various means (formal and informal, online and offline), the
Group enabled stakeholders’ participation in our major
decision-making processes and other adjustments in strategies, and
also obtained their views and expectations, so that the Group is in a
better position to devise more effective management decisions.
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WAYS OF COMMUNICATION

STAKEHOLDER KEY ISSUE OF CONCERN AND RESPONSE FREQUENCY
Fl 25 16 BA 75 BENEERE BEENESX BE IR
Shareholders/investors Financial performance —  General meetings General meetings are held at
Compliance with laws and — Investor conferences least once a year
regulations —  Conferences for Investor conferences and
Risk management disseminating business on-site visits are arranged at
results irregular time intervals

— Press releases/

announcements
—  On-site visits
RE &S ROBER — RKREXEg BRERGBERIBIT K
BEAR — REERESE wREEREE MBS ART
[\ B B FER — EEBhg EBRERTT
— Bk RE
—  RIGAN
Government/regulatory  Compliance with laws and —  On-site visits At irregular time intervals
bodies regulations —  Seminars
Information security
Anti-corruption
BT,/ B E BEAR —  HI5AM T EH
ERZE — &%
& 8
Business partners Administering intellectual —  On-site visits At irregular time intervals
property rights —  Seminars
Information security
Exchanges with industry peers
BERH M EREE —  H5AM NiEHA
EREE — 'K

TERR
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KEY ISSUE OF CONCERN
BN EERE

Information security

Quality of customer services
Management of sensitive
customer information

EERE
EPREEE
EFHRERER

Remuneration package
Employee health and safety
Employee development and
training

¥ EF

ETRFEEZE
8 T %R EE

Compliance with laws and
regulations
Impact of business on society

BIEER
Xt enyge

Contribution to community
Charity and benevolence
o=y )

Sz
NTEE

WAYS OF COMMUNICATION
AND RESPONSE
BEOES R

—  Online promotion
—  Telephone/Email
—  WeChat/Weibo
—  Questionnaire

—  Seminars

— BRE®E

— BHBEFHBMH
—  BE/ME

— M5

o
g #%

—  Interviews with
employees

— Internal emails

— Internal WeChat account

— BIm#

—  REER

— REMREARR

—  Press releases/
announcements

—  Press interview

—  Meetings

— FER %

— K&

— &

—  On-site visits

—  Seminars

—  BGAM

o
g #%
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FREQUENCY
R RE

At irregular time intervals

At irregular time intervals

At irregular time intervals

At irregular time intervals
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Materiality to stakeholders

ERRE

ESG Materiality Issues ESGE KM iEE

During the Reporting Period, we identified 5 ESG issues which are  ¥REHAAN - TR B AN E B EIE S LIRS A Y
highly important, 12 ESG issues which are moderately important and ~ Fz= A A EREMEHE - EEHEIT - 172
5 ESG issues which are lowly important to the Company by ordering  ¥11Z « BB A R AN BFIZE AR S AL R Y
the importance of various issues in terms of their influence on the  FIEZEMEBEZRREETHF @ SHHER AR AS
Group's strategic operation and their influence on stakeholders, — EE EHSIHESGH#E » REEZH12IEESGHEE A
taking into account media analysis, industry benchmarks, on-site  RIKE EBHSIBESGHE ° = /E B BHESGHE EEK
interviews and outcomes of questionnaires conducted with internal ~ ANRERNBHEB B - HABSEARRS AFMAIEF
and external stakeholders. Those highly important ESG issues BEEANE -

constitute the key parts of the contents of this Report, which are

disclosed in details in this Report.

MATERIALITY MATRIX OF REDSUN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED
LB REREEER AR EX R

High
=
e Environmental issues
Product safe;y and quality = fiz 2% B
Green construction ® Euu§2$u§5.¥ag%§§;g 0 R
Prodgt safety © o * health an
Climate change ® Em%ZE o BEERERTE | P
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Supply chain _~ package property rights = Eﬁﬂs
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BEES § Business development .
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@ Industrial \ @R i
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REDSUN « QUALITY SERVICES

Attaching importance to the good living of property owners, Redsun
Services endeavours to building a system of full living services and
serving each and every property owner and his/her family. We
recognize the needs of property owners, continually uplift customer
satisfaction, aiming to achieve good living by way of delivering
full-process and fully-resourced living services with warmth.

Dedicated Services

Committed to building a comprehensive service and product system,
Redsun Services has built its core business covering the three
services namely basic property services, value-added property
services and harmonious community services, forming close linkage
among quality services throughout the entire lifecycle, thereby
delivering good living to property owners.

Basic Property Service System

The basic property service system entails standards that customers
can visualize. Manuals of standards are in place to enable such
visualization in basic construction, equipment and facilities
management and services. Based on the management of community
objects, we strive to build up the level of refined management for
basic property services such as safety and security management,
environmental management, equipment maintenance and customer
services. In addition, based on the particular product system and
positioning, we seek to deliver quality and harmonious living for
residents by setting a graded “Redsun property service and product
prototype” set of standards.
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purchasing and so forth.

PRODUCT POSITIONING: Smart community, “highly satisfied” customer base, service innovation, industry
signpost and brand premium, delivering prestiged service experience to customers, and convenience in
experiencing high-tech smart community

SERVICE FEATURES: Focus on customer satisfaction; Service brings about satisfaction, and satisfaction

brings about sales orders

EmEM: E2HE [RmFE REEH TXER REEE KEFTREZARKGE
B BBMRERHENERE
BHFE : BETFPME REBERBE MHERSIEE]

PRODUCT POSITIONING: Attaining average standard, with suitable products and sustainable and healthy
development

SERVICE FEATURES: Mainstream service product line, with suitable and replicable service standards, and
sustainable and healthy operation

EmEN RO EmER  FERE
RBRE : TARBERS RESEELIER  FEREES

PRODUCT POSITIONING: Risk prevention and control, mainly for loss mitigation and operation
enhancement

SERVICE FEATURES: Bottom-line services with sharing, enhanced management, to avoid touching
business bottom lines and to guard against risk-related events

EmEM : ERHE - TEHE  LEREX
BRBHE : FEL  HEELH BEREN HBEBESKNRBREASEMH

Value-added Property Service System IBEYFERERERE

Redsun Services' provision of customized value-added services brings  SARG RIS A RUEMISERY - BEETRZIEERE
happiness and peace of mind to property owners living in Redsun  SAFG4LE A BE ORISR « B IR B[R ERARZ A
communities. Our apprehension and integration of community & ZHEREBERBEAGT HEEE DBH
resources supports the creation of an ecosystem of community B RKEBR%E HEREER C£ESE  £EBT
value-added services encompassing move-in ready residences, elderly ~ BEBERBENNLRIBERBS EERER

care community, time-sharing education, domestic services,

community e-commerce, community finance, groceries, group
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Harmonious Community Service System Fl 7 4t BB HR 7% 8 &

As a good life operator, Redsun Services has established and  {EAFIFEEELREE - sAGRIEEL W BEME
advocated a harmonious community service system. On a +(LEMRBER  BMBF[—UUEFAEER|HH
customer-oriented approach, we are concerned about the creation of 2+ BT X T HRBE S S EEME TR AT -
service scenarios vis-a-vis property owners as well as their feelings SERESHM  BEEFTTRETHELET - B2
towards the services provided. We are committed to bringing a good & ¥kt - BEAPAY L& b -

life to property owners, in a hope to create a pleasant community

culture with strong neighborhood bonding.

During the Reporting Period, by organizing vivid activities full of fun  FREHAN - HPBBEBLERFTRET - £FEED
and love, we shared community good life with property owners, fEFES)  BEIEMEISAGHEF HZHEEFEE -
tagging our Redsun communities with a label of “‘communities of — TE#S [REEE - BB E | TER AR MAGHTE
warm neighborhood”. =X R IR o

nil BERITES

wit2 HEDyEEE

Festival for Redsun’s Property Owners

sh N EREE

Volunteering services offered to residents

SREERED

Starlight Film Festival

EREWELD

Live show in Mid-autumn Festival /
PG EEE
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KICKING OFF THE “REJUVENATION WITH HEART AND LOVE FOR
FAMILY PLAN” PROGRAM IN 2020
RRE)2020F BE[ LAV R - B KGHE

Community spaces are important for linking up cities
with residential areas; important carrier of good life
scenarios; and important places for communication and
exchanges among neighbours. It was the third
consecutive year since 2018 that Redsun Services spent
special-purpose funds on uplifting the quality of old
communities that had been delivered quite some years
ago. These represented enhancements in both a
tangible and intangible sense, in that they improved
property owners' experience as well as their sensations,
seeing their lives lightened up with every single change
in life scenarios.

During the Reporting Period, we kicked off the
“Rejuvenation With Heart And Love For Family Plan”
program in 2020. By having interviews and researches
with property owners, we listened to the genuine
feelings of property owners, dug into the genuine
needs of old property owners regarding community
areas and supporting facilities, and pragmatically
furnished solutions of comfortable living experience to
property owners, well ahead of schedule. The program
lasted for 102 days covering more than 60 projects in
seven cities, with more than 150 enhancement projects,
refreshing community spaces for more than 120,000
property owners and bringing forth happy lives.

HEBRERRETEREEFENEESHM  EREUHLESRNERER  CRBEIXRNERS
o B20185F - SAERBEEE=FRAZHEESANERINEFNEHERERERT  BE
EIRAERBRIHENTEMFEST  EREEAMERSSONE  REEEREY

WEHA - HPIRRE2020F Z [ ALK - BXGE] - BBEHREINES  #B - WIEXEE
BELE ZREXRTHEE HEERERBROTR  YE/XIREFINEATENARRRER
FER - NRFHBIHER102K - BE7EMRTOREER - BB150ERABUIER - R1I2BEXET
M ERER - REZRATE -
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Safety Protection

Redsun Services remains its utmost concerns about the safety of
stakeholders. By upgrading safety management system, regularly
identifying safety risks and devising corresponding measures, raising
employees’ safe operation capability and enhancing physical
installations, it seeks to protect the safety of all stakeholders at all of
its operations.

Safety Management

The Group has devised and implemented systems and processes
relating to safety management, including the “Operating Guide for
Orderly and Professional Internal Management”, the “Operating Guide
for Safety Examination”, the “Operating Guide for Fire Safety
Management” and the “Operating Procedures for Handling
Emergencies”. To prevent potential safety risks, the Group has devised
clear work plan for safety risk identification, which sets out 12
standards applicable to six safety red lines for business segments
including fire safety, electricity supply and distribution, elevators,
employees’ behaviour, special-purpose operations and common
spaces. In addition, the Group regularly commences risk-related
investigations and assessment and safety examination, devises
problem-specific rectification plans, with pre-set timelines and

specifying responsible persons.

The Group ceaselessly fosters the maintenance and upgrade of safety
system applicable to communities for which the Group manages
properties. By upgrading smart safety equipment and remote update
of surveillance system, the Group makes ongoing effort to provide
safety protection capability to the respective venues of operations.
During the Reporting Period, we commenced the “Rejuvenation With
Heart And Love For Family Plan” program. We conducted full-scale
examination and testing on the operation of safety-related
equipment and facilities including engine room, pump room, fire
safety system, surveillance system, door access system, vehicle
management system, electronic fences etc. Emergency call buttons
are also installed in all new residential projects, thereby providing

safer community lives to all stakeholders.
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Management of Patrolling and Surveillance E - s

ANB24/ AT TR E R X AR 8 R

24-hour manned roster, closely monitoring the situations at
every single corner in the communities

24-hour non-stop safety patrol on all key areas including
community main passages, key equipment and engine
rooms, and also areas with surveillance blindspots

Management of doorways and fencing walls

The use of facial recognition systems and door-access card
system at all exits and entrances

24-hour duty services at main exits and entrances

The installation of number plate recognition system at all
entrances to carparks

The installation of electronic fences at fencing walls for all-
weather control

Regular safety skill-drills

Skill-drill - activities are held once a month, simulating
scenarios in fire safety, stranded elevators, flood fighting,
trapping burglars and so forth

Regular examination of fire safety passages and, working with
local police stations and competent fire-safety departments,
centralize the handling of obstacles at fire-safety passages
Organizing fire safety promotion activities per half year
Organizing a large-scale fire safety skill-drill session on 9 Nov
every year in collaboration with the fire services, the
communities, property owners and employees

Meanwhile, the Group stresses the safety of children, older adults and
the elderly. We have made available accessible passages and buttons
for disabled people in elevators, provided safety and protection alerts
at fitness equipment and children’s playground facilities, made plastic
slip-proof pavements, added edge guards and corner protectors and
so forth, ensuring safety in the elderly and children during their

journeys and living.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no material injuries
within its scope of business operations.

HEERE EEREHEE BB

& 3524/ T 2 2K E

P - BEERE
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Safety Training

Z 25

To ensure the implementation of safety policies and management  AMRZEZHERMNEEHEMNEAEEET  WAERTER
system and to boost the safety protection capability of the  2REfEN  AEBEEFAMNE IREREEHEIER
communities, the Group develops trainings for its employees on the 3| + HERIRYEE - BB EMERZEHIE - 5
handling of emergencies every month, which cover the identification ~ FIR{EEZREFII - T2 BHE - 2B EINE
of dangerous sources, risk assessment and risk control. Reqular — 3FFIEE) ©

trainings on operating standards, trainings on safety awareness and

trainings on knowledges about first-aid are conducted.

\ 130
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WINTER MASS TRAININGS: “SOLIDIFYING FOUNDATIONS AND

TRAINING UP ELITES”

[FEER EREEILFARIET

During the Reporting Period, we commenced two
winter mass training activities. By training ‘order
keepers” in a multi-dimensional and multifaceted
manner, the quality of property services can be
enhanced. Pursuant to the winter mass training
activities, a series of standardized management
practices are commenced, focusing on
standardizing documentations that record the
quality of order, organization and implementation
of safety management, how to improve property
decoration and management, and position
operating standards. Simulation exercises and on-

the-go trainings are also used to strengthen employees’ understanding of business and also their ability in

overall businesses.

HBEMA - HAKAFRMAEFTAREES  BEHUKFABETZHE  ZERNIIK - BN
MERBRENET - LFARTEPESEVFEECHEXHRE - 2B EEBEER - 0
MEMEREERE  HURFERERR - FIEECERRTEI  XBBERRKRE BRI

Mg B THEKEMORRE @ RIS EEEE

.

HESE THMA




AEREEEERAR - —s-25sE @ \

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERRE

Meanwhile, the Group recognizes that the safety levels at  It4h» AEBERAT BT E2/KFESFZEHEE A B
communities are closely related to the safety awareness of ZEEMKFERLZERIRENEEMEE  BRESSF
stakeholders as well as their safety rescue capability. To enhance the  #ABRAH K ESMIRAE T - NEBE BB E AKX - &
emergency rescue capability of stakeholders, the Group also  1GFEEEIEEEH -

collaborates with local fire services departments and proactively

commences fire safety skill-drill activities.

[ ] adie
adie

Fire drill called “Caring about fire safety and ensuring peaceful life”

[BEJEHRE » FRIREIEREE

The Group adheres to the main vision of fire safety,
namely “fire prevention as the base, with firefighting as
support”. To raise safety awareness among property
owners and employees regarding fire safety, raise the
ability to extinguish fire at an early stage, and
disseminate knowledges on fire fighting and evacuation,
we organized fire safety skill-drill and also seminars on
fire safety knowledges.

In 2020, the Group's Redsun Services Jiangbei Company
worked with government bodies such as Jiangbei New
District Taishan Party Construction Alliance to commence its annual fire
safety skill-drill. Meanwhile, more than 30 communities under Redsun
Services Jiangbei Company also commenced 20 fire skill-drill sessions out of
their own free will. To upgrade the promotion of safety awareness, the
Group also invited Jiangbei New District Fire Squadron to kick off a seminar
on fire safety knowledge, which drew attention to the importance of fire
safety by illustrating cases, and also taught the knowledge on how to
prevent and extinguish fire, and also the key points for escaping from a fire
field.

AREEEERER AT - BHES IR TN - BREXE BTEBR2EH - 7
BRI - IR RMSER R RIARAE T ED RS AT RN R 2
A -

20005 - AEMABRAETIATMA T EFERLERHASRA N EHNREE SN 22 8E -
A - ARSI A TS A BB ETEE T 205 EHR2EE - AESR2ERTENE -
AEEEEE AT B THHET —SET R NEREs  BARNTAERENR2E
\\\Eﬁvﬂﬁ%ﬂ~ﬁk%%*%%%%%$%%%o
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Communication with Customers

Redsun Services gives high regards to the establishment of close
customer relationship. By creating a professional and fine-tuned
system for customer communication and services, by understanding
customer needs, and by obtaining customers’ feedback, the Group
aims to provide solutions to the satisfaction of customers, and
ceaselessly create values for customers.

Customer Satisfaction

Redsun Services is committing to providing services of the highest
quality to its customers. It remains open to listening to the views and
needs of property owners. During the Reporting Period, founding
upon the Rules for Administering Customer Complaints (RF IR &
) issued by Hong Yang Group Company, we issued and
implemented the Property Group Rules for Administering Customer
Complaints (V2 EBEF#RFEEPHE). Meanwhile, based on the
actual business position, and upon the Redsun Services Classification
of Complaints (5A[5 RTEE IR FZMAAAME), the classification,
principles for handling, requirements for handling and relevant
appraisal mechanism were clarified and specified.

Our channels for customer complaints and feedback mainly include:
customer complaints by phone, customer complaints by APP and
direct feedback via Hong Butler. For each channel of feedback, we
have established comprehensive mechanisms of feedback in tackling
problems, and continually uplift our service quality by means of
fine-tuned management. During the Reporting Period, we prepared
and established the 400" call center, where service hotlines are
available to collect and classify property owners’ views and opinions,
record the same in the system and devise corresponding rectification
and follow-up plans, and ultimately uplift customers’ satisfaction with
our services. On this foundation, and by launching the “Management
to Listen” Program (B2¥277%)) and the “3611" Mechanism of
Response to Customer Complaints (“3611"%& F 1% sF £ ), we
seek to pursue fine-tuned service level and enable customers to feel
the philosophy and value of quality services.
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EFEBE

MEREEEERTPEZRAENEY  BARER
Xt BALEFPBREARTRER BETHREFRE
Ko EREFPRE  REFPREHEMENERAIR T
B REPAIEEE-

EFMEE
MERBHANBEFPREKEE RS - 161K IAR
BMEOLEERERRENEERER - REBPR - RMAE
MEEE T HNCEPIRFEEME)ZME - HMHIW
BEM(HEEERPRFEEIE)  UIRBEERAZE
BIER - ECGABRBEERFFRFAR)IS - HR
PIRFNERTESE - BRERA - RIEERIUNEH
MBI BIETT T BRI E K

HANEPRFAMRBREIEZRE FTRPEER
- BEPAPPIRGFASGEBLERERRER - ¥ &
BRERE RAEEITENHEEERERS -
BEBECEERBRARMORBEENRE - W
EHRN - WAIB I AL T 4000 Y oL - 38 3B AR 7%
AN ABRAXEINERMEZRETY B
BARSUHERENBRIRESE  FREREP
RAMBENIER - WAELER £ - HABEHEL TR
BTBIMB61 | RPRFERES - THERER
ERBEKF  BEPRXEBEAMRBIEIMEE -



ABBEBEEAERAR . —s=2558 @ \

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERRE

KICKING OFF THE “MANAGEMENT TO LISTEN” PROGRAM
BB ERITE

To gradually raise our level of customer services, the program conducts one-on-one online or offline
communications with property owners to whom the service is delivered, proactively listens to the view

and opinions of the property owners on our property services, and pushes and supervises rectifications via
the customer service work order system.

RRIRAZPIRIKY Lt BEMERINNETET SR LR TOER  THEEE
THMERGNEAMEZ  UBEFRIERREAMEEERTIE-
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alihe

LAUNCH OF “3611” MECHANISM OF RESPONSE TO CUSTOMER
COMPLAINTS
K361 IR FRFEERH

To gradually uplift our level of customer service, during the

Reporting Period, the “3611" Mechanism of Response to S mm o
Customer Complaints (“3611" & PR EE# H]) was launched,
whereby:
J0smnmmE
3: Responses to a customer's views must be responded S0 smwaanm
within 30 minutes; ] tznERaen
I +xnexnms

6: Basic problems must be solved within 60 minutes or,
36] F FEmELLY

where a solution is not yet available, a response must be o R

given to the customer within 60 minutes;

1: For problems not readily solvable, the reason must be
communicated to the customer within 60 minutes, and
written solution must be given to customer within 1 day,
maintaining full communication with customer;

1: After communicating with customer, re-visit must be

completed within 1 business day.

The mechanism of response enables the provision of @ﬂl!nﬂ:#ﬂ&&ﬂ?-OS?_s .....
professional and highly effective feedback on solution to
customers, and let them feel the standardized and well-regulated
services for customer complaints.

RBIRAZPRIEKY - MEHA - AFRGHEL 3611 FPRFEEMES] - B :

w

CBPWRENAEIODEANENE
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FEBREODEANRIR  BEABR  BDAGODEBREEPEE

FRBE BRI EIR 60N BARMTPENRE 1 RAGKEEERASE  YEEFF

1 HRETRE IETERATREE

BBZEREEE  TATPRMHEX SRONBANTERE FAPRXIKEBL FELCHOEFR
AR




To uplift the overall customer satisfaction and to define
improvements needed to satisfy customer needs in a targeted
manner, by means of the channels and dimensions namely the "400"
call center and third-party agencies for satisfaction investigation, we
embark upon investigation and analysis of satisfaction, so that we

FRMBE -

can fully uplift customer satisfaction with our service and

management level.

400 call center

40070 F 2N

During the Reporting Period, we
conducted sample re-visit on all
property projects via 400 hotline,
and reported on the outcome of
research. As at 31 December
2020, the overall satisfaction
score of our property projects
was 85.

HEHIA T A BiE40024R

BT AER BT DA -

WHAMBRETER HE
2020512 A318 g
MEERDAE8SD °

During the Reporting Period, we invited two
third-party agencies to investigate our
customer satisfaction:

WS A TR M E S =77 s S
B B B R S AR

Third-party investigation agency A:
Investigated 5 regions on a half-year span.
The investigation was conducted by way of
telephone hotline and online scanning;
=7 AFHIBA A F B BEIRE 2 B 5 (E
& ST AT ST LA B R AR L
RS AAE

Third-party investigation agency B: On a
month-to-month rolling basis, it mainly
investigated property owners who are at
stages 1 and 2. The score was 85 for year
2020.

E=TT BB I B ARBN A ETT

FERMEGAESI— —%F 20207F
B AEEREN8D °

BRTRABZFPHAEMNBEMEE - At HIE AR
WREP BRI - AR IBA00M AY LA
F=HREEAEREMERENEERERDEEH
BRI TIE - AEEREAEPHHFIRSE REEK
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CHANNELS OF SATISFACTION INVESTIGATION
MEERAERE
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To uplift satisfaction, we have adopted a multitude of measures: RTRAMEE  KRPMERRTZEEEE

We have devised 4 measures for uplifting satisfaction, namely “safeguarding
bottom line, regular training, focusing on process and keeping warmth”;

HE [FE - B - BBE RAE] 4EmERERITEE

Incorporating the outcome of monthly satisfaction investigation on regional
company to the performance appraisal of that regional company;

B AR AEWEERAEERMARE R RAERERT

We used mails or the system to push the opinions and views of property owners; the
system will then follow up on the completion of any rectification;
BEBHHAERANAEEINERMNERMXIAR - WEARRERBNERTK
SN 5

(=

MEASURES FOR UPLIFTING SATISFACTION
MEERAEE
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Responsible Marketing

During the course of marketing and services, the Group strictly
complies with laws and regulations and industry norms including the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law of
Protection of Consumer Interests of the People’s Republic of China,
to ensure that commercial promotions are conducted in a strict and
compliant manner. To ensure that writers and reviewers of
information for external dissemination can better comprehend the
contents for external dissemination, we govern the introduction and
release of projects or contents that violate laws and public morals,
thereby ensuring that our consumption groups receive accurate and
true promotions. During the Reporting Period, no penalty had been
imposed by regulatory bodies on us for any violation of relevant laws
and regulations due to marketing activities.

To regulate the Group’s acts on external dissemination of
information, and effectively foster the institutionalization and
standardization of brand building, we strictly complied with the
(54 B5 &= B an 2 &7 32 T i),

which requires that all members shall strictly comply with the

Manuals for Managing Redsun Brands

management requirements set out in the manual in the course of
brand building, advertising and promotion, with a view to jointly
protecting the brand image and reputation of the Company and
ceaselessly uplift the level of brand management of the Company.

Smart Technology and Innovation

Redsun Services expedites the application of digital technology, by
building on the empowerment of technology and using smart
technology to improve and uplift the quality of property services. In
the course of shared outcomes of digital research and development
and innovation, we uphold the importance of strengthening the
protection of intellectual property rights, customer information
security and privacy protection, seeking to continue to explore the

future of the industry in the role of a leader.
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Enhancements in Service Efficacy

To better link up our service system to the ecosystem of happy
community, we are thoroughly grasping the development trend of
the property service industry. By using mobile internet, internet of
things and big data technology, supported by the Red Life APP
smart service platform, Redsun Services smart control platform, we
are in search of a more convenient and more smart community that
adopts a “‘community+internet” O20 service model. Founding on our
superb property service experience, we have firmly held onto the
value premium of services, dug into customer needs, and built up
sound reputation of services and also achieved the strengths of
community comprehensive services with interactive online and

offline elements.

[ ) adie

alihe

AR 75 X BE 1R
BTEHNRBEMANRGEREFERERWERER

EFh o RAERALEVDERGENERBS - EF
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REDSUN TOWN INTEGRATED PLATFORM
hEERNE-BLTE

Whilst providing more diversified and
comprehensive services with warmth to
customers, Redsun Services embraces the
internet of things and has built a Redsun Smart
Town Integrated Platform that encompasses
"business integration + intelligent 10T". The
integrated smart platform is supported by a
frontline platform (namely the “Red Life APP")
and middle platforms (namely business middle
platform, 10T middle platform and data middle
platform), thereby continually uplift the daily
management efficiency and operating
capability, and providing property owners with
one-stop community services. With the
innovative technology, the platform was
awarded with the “2020 award for innovation in
digitized application in China property industry”.

ERZFPREEMZ T - 28 - ADRE WA - SASREBBELYBE  TEL[EB 8L
+EE2YB I NAR/NE— BT e  ZEE - REFemmEAAEEAPP) RRE(BREHR
hE YBHPERBBETE) AXE  THREAAENEERERBERS)  RETRHEEE -
LR %V BBFEAIFTORMEB I - RE2020FEFBEMERF HRAAIFHE] -
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REDSUN - ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Redsun Services attaches importance to green operation. By
upgrading its environmental management system, raising employees’
and property owners’ environmental awareness, implementing
missions of energy saving and emission reduction, and smart
applications, the Group seeks to achieve green, environment-friendly

living spaces and workplaces.

Green Design

In compliance with the Law of Energy Saving of the People's
Republic of China, and by means of optimizing energy saving design
and using energy saving equipment, the Group ensures the
reasonable utilization of energy, reduces energy use in the course of
operation, and raises energy utilization rate.

During the early-stage involvement before we take charge of
managing properties, we participate in the planning design and
construction of properties, and identify and improve potential energy
saving loopholes, so that we can keep uplifting the community’s
capability in energy saving and wastage reduction. The Group's team
on early-stage involvement keeps tracing the problems on energy
saving and wastage reduction as exposed in the property
management stage by those clubhouses already delivered and
communities already occupied. The team will propose
recommendations on energy saving and wastage reduction to the
design management team, in order to foster the upgrade of energy

saving designs.

R 4 ERERHE
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DESIGN FOR ENERGY SAVING AND EMISSION REDUCTION
B BE IR PERR 5T

\ | p . The use of LED in illumination where long-hour usage is required
. . . EEBEERANERHERALEDLE
/©\ . The use of both sensory and one-touch switches in public illuminations, and to avoid the use of
= incandescent lamps
EAHRARARAREMBENFRA - RS20 8ENER
Reduction of late night brightness by using multiple clock control in illuminations for greenery
areas
BEMRBBERI S R EES - FEELRAIRE
The use of control design with separate time, separate regions and separate modes for greenery
areas and for carparks
B [ A0 it AR EAER A 9 I 9 [2 9 BR 15 ol R 5t
The design of measurement lists to record the use of electricity in public areas, so that each unit
(block) can be measured separately and fee charges may differentiate
RAFEDRFARNLRE - MEIRET (B) B - ZRINE
All electricity switches in clubhouses are labelled to show the level of energy saving. On/off-as-
you-go versus long-lasting switch-on are in place, catering to lamps which consume more
energy and those which consume less energy
SRR AENEERBOAHERE  HHSRETNERENEEDHIRERNFHEH
HAE A ER
. The location and route of trash collection are taken into account in property design plan, based

E on government's requirements on trash classification

IR IR AT £7 3% 5 38 2 sRof 0 3R W 5= B R i 3R W SR B AR 3R B AR B A A M EE RR BT B R
Green Operation BEEE

In strict compliance with the Law of Promotion of Clean Production ~ ANEBBKRET(REARENBRSZEAREZE) -
of the People’s Republic of China, the Group has devised 26 internal  #ITE 26 EIRIRE BN ANTBERHIE  WELR ~ Wk
policies and systems for environmental management, covering J&“Ei% CBIEFR - BEEYA  BREERERS
greening, trash handling, dedicated cleaning, prevention and control mBGECRIRER BEEERERM)  CGRIRE
of harmful living things, environmental service providers and so forth. %i??ﬁf’ﬁ?a@>>§fmﬁﬁa 5l - 2AMERIREEEAKE -
The Group has also devised internal guidelines such as the  TEIRZEIRBERIR -

"Operating Guide for Environmental Supervisors/Managers” and the

“Operating Guide for Environmental Experts’, thereby ensuring the

level of environmental management in a holistic manner and

ceaselessly improve environmental performance.
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The Group traces and manages the supervision and control of
pollution and energy consumption throughout the Company, and
commences segregated control and management for pollutants
namely noises, solid disposals, waste water and so forth which are
produced in the managed areas. Meanwhile, in order to upgrade the
system of waste management, we have also devised the framework
for waste collection, classification and disposal, and imposed
contract-based controlled management for waste collectors and

processors.

Since 2012, Redsun Services has remained steadfast to implementing
the standard for quality and environmental system, which has passed
GB/T 24001-2016/1SO 14001 : 2015 environmental system
certification.

LT TS
D LETAMAE S TG TR BN

GB/T 24001-2016/1SO 14001 *

2015 Environmental System Certification @@ e R gy

GB/T 24001-2016/1SO 14001 :
2015RIBE RAE

el :liii#ﬂ'lluu-i W o

AEREEEERAR - —s-25sE @ \

R - HERERRE

REBEH 2 ARG EHENSESREES ML REENE
EEGHETREEE  HETERERGEBEFEE
HREE - EREEEEY - %K#E ) R R
BRI RTEEEVERRR BMEHET
REEEYIWE ”*E&Jfﬁiﬁzﬂﬁ + I 35 [B] U R g 22
BRI EHE RZEGER -

B2012F BAZK - sAEG R BRIFERITE S MIRIEE
ZIZH - HATC @IBGB/T 24001-2016/1SO 14001 : 2015

i&iiﬁﬂ/\u/u'%( ©

FREEGRWEEH

Itmnﬂﬂﬂ

ARFRALEA,
BBT 1408720147150 14009: 2014
smEmEEE
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[T T e T
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Water Resources Management KEFEE

With reference to the Rules for Administering the Conservative Use of ~ ANEBEZX BB ME L BKEERTE) ~ R NE T
Urban Water (T 8149 FA7/KE 4R E), the Opinion Concerning the  EEIKTENER) J«X&(ﬁ?ﬁﬁkﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ?)%ﬁ> '
Strengthened Water Saving in Industrial Uses (BR MM TE&/KT  BB/KERBERFMA - SKEREREMAR - SETE
EM)E R) and the Rules for Administering Water Resources in  Hite iS4 EZEi - MAKERAERE - AIRSKE
Nanjing (B R M /KEREZYHE), and by means of measures SRERFIAR  ANEBEBEB SEHIESNFI B KT
including the recycled use of water resources, the upgrade of T #a14 AL E AIE R ELIE YDA E ©

water-saving equipment and technology, the regular repair and

maintenance of equipment, the Group seeks to reduce the

consumption of water resources. To raise the recycled use of water

resources, water recycled from pools in the Group's projects is used

for watering trees and other plants in the communities.

Energy Management BEFE R

The Group is concerned about energy saving and wastage reduction AN EF)TE S BIEF AR BBEYEREH
in the course of operations. Unnecessary wastage of resources can be  #/TEEDE - MACEAEEIE RO THENE
minimized by reasonable allocation of the use of resources and  JFJHFE - RFIBBEREE TS U ERREREHR
strengthened management of corporate use of energy. By using a  EETEEL  EE/LMEFILHNERE  HWEIREE
data information platform, we have automated, [T-based and  JRBFEETTESIE » EREIREREHNE « 27 - [
centralized management of data on corporate consumption of B FIERBEELIER  BRASRIENRIEAR
energy. Supervision and control over the wastage of energy at  IRFTIRIEWE  HALBRRE o

different parts of operation enables the improved and enhanced use
of energy saving measures. Meanwhile, the renovation and upgrade
of our facilities such as smart applications and illumination can uplift
our service efficiency and minimize the wastage of resources.
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Wastes Management

Minimizing the generation of wastes and reasonable handling of
wastes are an integral part of the Group's efforts in minimizing
environmental impacts in the course of its business operation. The
order department and environmental department of each project of
the Group are in charge of the collection, classification and
channeling of wastes produced in the course of service delivery at
the regions that they are responsible for, as well as the management
of recycling and handling entities. The subsidiaries, branches and
procurement entities under the Group have pre-defined
requirements regarding the entities to which the handling of wastes
are outsourced, and agreements have been entered into to ensure
strict enforcement by the relevant entities. For refurbishment wastes
produced in the course of renovation works of property owners, the
Group stipulates that wastes must be collected in bags and stored
centrally at the temporary collection points that are labelled and
fenced, and must be cleared away within a certain period of time. In
addition, for minimizing resources wastage and environmental
pollution, recycling and reuse of resources are always the priority
choices for our handling of wastes. Recyclable wastes are collected
regularly and handled separately.

R 4 ERERHE

BRYEE

MAOBRYNEENAERERASEEXKELT
MORBZENERG D - AEREEHBKFIBRIR
BHMEERERERGBEPEEDHORE 2
B REERAZH  UREWRMEEEMEE - A%
BED TR REEMHNINEERYEE ELH
FEESK - WA MR A B AL BRI |NTT - A&
B EIREBEPELENREIRHBIGETAE
W& FEERARHENEORSEPERE I
FERIE —ERB HRBE - s REDERRE &
RESR RMAEREEREYRELZRERNE
Yo BRA - ERE AT R ETIE - X5
—ETRE -
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In proactive response to the government's call, and pursuant to the ~ AEEBHEEBTRR - BE(ERTAEFLE D
requirements of the Rules for Administering the Classification of — EEIEHE) (MR HABBERINEE A2 EH#
Domestic Trash in Nanjing (RS AERIR S BEEPX), the EAFRFEREG)  Q00F T HERFEHET
Rules for Fostering the Administration of Domestic Trash in Nanjing  {EB A R)EXMHER - BRI F D LE - #HEAE
as published by the of the Nanjing Municipal Government's General ~ N ERFEHIE M TIE - BB AN RSB ITIENE
Office (MEMMABBNINERART2EEELFIRERK i RO RKER RN RSB SRR BIRAHA
) and Proposed Implementation of Trash Classification of Jiangbei — IW{EARINMIZE(L 2 HEHE - R - BIRFAEENR
New District in 2020 Q0205 TIL BN R A B ITEERFER), the HERER  BRMEHEAEEHEEEN RS
Group has commenced trash classification and fostered the handling ~ E1f& + IEEE RN R HESE -

of domestic trash at fixed times and places. To support the

implementation of trash classification, we treat the planning and

design for the trash collection points and trash collection routes as a

standardized arrangement as part of the early-stage involvement?

and foster such implementation in particular. Meanwhile, to raise

property owners’ awareness of trash classification, we have placed

additional promotional materials about trash classification, both by

means of illuminated signs for promotion and wall-carried

advertisements.

Before

B A

Before
i3 Al

Refreshed promotions for trash classification

Wik 5 BME
2 Early-stage involvernent in property management refers to the process 2 BN ERAHN AL - EVEBERAREEEYE
of property management companies’ involvement in the planning 2R B2 EYERNRERFIMERAREE -

design and construction of properties before it takes charge of

\ managing properties.
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TYPE UNIT USAGE IN 2020
Sl B 2020 EFIE
Consumption of water resources

KEFEFE

Water for municipal use Tonnes 1,174,442.26
I A 7K N

Intensity of consumption of water resources Tonnes/ten thousand revenue 15.30
IKERHRETE NUVE- PN

Discharge of waste water

B8 7K B BR

Volume of discharge of waste water Tonnes 939,553.81
BEKEE N E AE

Hazardous wastes

BEERY

Disposed toners and ink cartridges Kg 9.30
REMR S22 T

Batteries Kg 9.30
REE) T

Other wastes Kg 9.30
H b BERY) T

Total volume of hazardous wastes Kg 27.90
EEBEMHEE T

Intensity of hazardous wastes Kg/ten thousand revenue 3.63
EEREMETE TR/ BTRA

Total volume of non-hazardous wastes

BEBRNEE

Office waste kg 38,495.00
MAEREEY T

Printing paper Kg 465.00
FTENR 4 T

Other wastes kg 3,757.00
H b BEERY) T

Total volume of non-hazardous wastes Kg 42,717.00
BEEBRVHEE T

Intensity of non-hazardous wastes Kg/ten thousand revenue 0.56
BEBEENTE TR/ BTRA
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thousand revenue
W_aiRE £/ EBTRA

TYPE UNIT USAGE IN 2020

Sl B 2020 EFIE

Consumption of energy

BERH 3

Electricity purchased kWh 35,773,150.33

SNBE T FLBF

Indirect consumption of energy tonnes of standard coal 4,396.52

AL IRHFE S WA AR X

Consolidated energy consumption tonnes of standard coal 4,396.52

fRa e B 432 B

Intensity of consolidated energy consumption tonnes of standard coal/ten thousand 0.06
revenue

AR E WAIRIE, & T A

Total volume of greenhouse gas emission

BERBAERE

Scope 2 greenhouse gas emission tonnes of CO2 equivalent 25,123.79

i REREBYNE WAL EE

Total greenhouse gas emission tonnes of CO2 equivalent 25,123.79

BERBHREE WS b EE

Intensity of greenhouse gas emission tonnes of CO2 equivalent/ten 033
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Green Culture

Redsun Services is committed to promoting a culture of sustainable
development in offices and places of operations. We foster green
offices, commence various environmental activities to continually
raise the environment awareness of employees and property owners

and advocate the green development of the corporation.

Advocating Green Offices

The Group proactively advocates green offices and has formulated
corresponding measures for energy saving. At offices, it is required to
switch off power of equipment when not in use. Inspection checks
are conducted in person to ensure implementation as such, and to
avoid equipment from staying in a power-ready state for a long time.
Paperless offices are proactively promoted. Electronic versions are
used for circulation of documents. Double-sided printing is required
to minimize the use of office papers. For daily consumables such as
refills for pens and gloves, one-for-one exchange is required for any
replacement, and the returned used materials so collected are
discarded regularly by warehouse keepers. Meanwhile, we also
encourage employees to use public transport for their journeys.

Environmental Activities

To arouse property owners' and employees’ awareness of energy
saving and environmental protection and empower the construction
of green communities, during the Reporting Period, the Group
organized trainings on energy saving and environmental protection
as well as promotional activities. At our daily sub-team meetings, we
express the requirements of organizing trainings on energy saving
and environmental protection to all departments, which would
commence their respective training activities; such sort of trainings
are also included in the various business trainings. We also organize
activities for building community environment and community
culture, advocate property owners’ involvement in activities such as
Beautiful City and Community (FE¥ZEE), Farth Hour, Charitable
Walks and so forth, calling for property owners’ response to and

involvement in contributing to the community environment.

R 4 ERERHE

FEe Xt

SMERRBH NN EB M A E FUEL A AT FE &R
£ HMHBHEESER R  FRZENRFREE
TERSETEHXTIMRARED  MBEENREH
& o

EEFEEIH A
AP EENA - LHE T IR -
WABEEABMBENES REFARTERR
& RERBRMBESN  HEREEELHA
BB E T TSR - TEBRALE -
SREEMTETR RSN ABENER - HRE
% FEZEELRIASHETUERTHEAR
Al ABREERTH A WEEKES - A
HPESE THRMA LB -

R RIRZ B

RRSETHEBTMHERFREH  HtgetRm
BER - WMERAR AEEHBEETINETHESHER
REFNIREEES - RMEEAFHASH LAZH
FIEZEREIRRAVIZIIE K - W i B AFFT A BFRREE
MEIED  RRZEEBRI DS FHEMAERRE
FEE I - RAEMABTRRERELEXEE
B BEXTI2EXIREE  HWIKARBE—/E A
SRS ERY  RAFTIEBERLRZENEBREHR

fm
NN
=)

P
o

147 /




/ . Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2020

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERRE

K 148

“Earth Hour” Lights-off Activity
[ ER— /B B BB

During the Reporting Period, to advocate green living, and in
response to the call of the World Wide Fund for Nature (WWF)
for actions to combat global climate change, we commenced
an "Earth Hour" Lights-off Activity. We invited property owners
to turn off, for one hour, non-essential electric products, to
enjoy the natural darkness and sounds bestowed by our
universe.

BEHN RESHZELEE  BEREREAESTWWHE
HBeRRERELCNES  RARRT X/ INEE
AE) c RABFEIMAM TV ENREER /K - HHER
MEMERRR REBANES -

°
i
i
BE
ag

IR TFEEINE HE

FEX

i = (Earth Hour| REEAEREE &
(WHFIEHNTE THEEMAEN—REn
ETEES, REATRNE=ARS-T
EMAHEEMNARE20:30
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REDSUN - PRESSING AHEAD TOGETHER

Talents are the core powerhouse of an enterprise to drive the steady
and sustainable corporate development. We fully respect and protect
the basic interests of each and every employee. Employee
management system is revised and upgraded from time to time.
While aiming to build up a fair and equitable, energetic, highly
efficient and harmonious working environment, we also care about
employees’ growth and their benefits. We attempt to line up
employees’ benefits and corporate benefits and work together with

them in achieving the strategic goals of the enterprise.

Overview of Workforce

Redsun Services remains its steadfast adherence to its motto of
"Talents are the base of prosperous growth and development, both
of a state and of a business” (BILAA YL » 2 LA ). On the basis of
protecting the basic interests of our employees, we recruit talents
from three channels, namely external recruitment, internal referral
and re-joining. By having a structure of management over
interviewers, interview processes, grant of job offers and reference
checks, corruptive and manipulative acts can be avoided in the
recruitment process. Meanwhile, with the Group’s priority
management of internal talents, it integrates internal human
resources to make sure that all positions are filled with quality talents

and all talents are put in the suitable positions.

We keep our workforce structure under regular optimization,
integrating human resources and reasonably allocating according to
age, gender, functions, geographical regions and so forth, and
fostering effective cooperation among employees. During the
Reporting Period, the Group had a total headcount of 4,119.

R 4 ERERHE

Shi% - B F g

AT REERINAIFEZEROZLOIE - HFIFRD
ESEMRES B THMELED  THEHETE
BHE TEEIEERR  GERNTEEAXIFLAR
E-BRED  SHMETERRENORE  BIET
k- IEETIRAM BHEIMNGZEECENGEES
—E RERCENBRESEMARSS -

ETHR

AR R B IBIAAL Y - RIS B0 AT
DoHMERBEIREARERNEM L - #INEERA
B AEEBM _RAR=ZEREETATSIE B
BEAEEE HaREEE BREENERHEAE
R -EREEABRETLROLEENERER - F
B AERBEEBABASBEERE  BERHBATE
R EE-EAELAEENAT B—EATHEES
M RENL
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Breakdown by age (Number of people) Breakdown by gender (Number of people)
BREREADETHER (A) BRI &S EITHER(A)

M Below 30 ® Above 30 m Male B Female
305 AT but below 40 BMHET ZHEET
RRER305%
/INFR407R,
1 Above 40 7 50 and above
but below 50 505504 £
APRET405%
/INA505%
Breakdown by job position (Number of people) Breakdown by position (Number of people)
RBREZETHER(AN) RENVESBEIER(AN)
88
2%

B Senior management M Middle management W First tier employees W Others

SEERAE TEEEAER —REBT F—REBT

I General staff
AEEBET
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Employee Care

In strict compliance with the laws and regulations relating to labour
and social security including the Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Redsun Services enters into labour contracts with all employees,
prohibiting forced labour or the use of child labour while requiring
the timely payment of remuneration and contribution to social
insurance and the provision of safe workplaces, protecting the
legitimate interests of employees against infringement.

In 2020, the Group conducted a survey on staff dedication, which
revealed a score of 84, remaining flat compared to the previous year.
Going forward, the Group plans to build an even more dedicated
workforce by providing incentives, learning and development
opportunities and more open atmosphere for the expression of
opinions, thereby achieving both staff satisfaction and corporate
development. During the Reporting Period, the turnover rate of the
Group's first tier employees was 11.11%.

Remuneration Package

The Group attracts and retains talents by offering competitive
remuneration packages, which are determined based on the
individual's duties and the prevailing market rate at the locality,
together with a caring corporate culture. In tandem with uplifting our
service quality to ensure that high-end services are provided to
customers and further diversifying our sources of revenue, the Group
has earmarked approximately 10% of the proceeds from equity
financing for the ongoing recruitment of talents and the
improvement of staff training and staff fringe benefits, with a view to
supporting the sustainable business development of the Group.

R 4 ERERHE

ETHEE

SMEIRIEBRIEET(REARRKMBEEE) (hFE
ARKMBEHARZE) - (PEARLMEE SRR
HF)EHH R EREENR  RBRERBB TR
LEHER - ZULBRBNETREMET - 1RE S H B
Mgt g R  REXEIHESHE  UREET

BERETZRE -

200F - AEERBETETIHMEERSE  ASERAE
84 + B L FERF - REBARNKGTERBME - 2
EOHFEENREEBITEFHRENEIRM  BRE
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THIRAEA111% o

FriWiE 7

AEERBEETRE MZMEB A HI5KFEE &
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REEBWRYG  YWE— TS ERERR - AEEK
RIESERBLNANEEBREATURBEET
BIRETRAMGE UAXBEBNAFEER -
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BEMA - AEER T RAETRHEBRBENERE
Mo BRETREEMBHBNEE  2FETR
AT

During the Reporting Period, apart from the state-stipulated basic
staff benefits, the Group also provided other benefits and allowances,
including but not limited to the following:

ALLOWANCE/COMPASSIONATE
BENEFITS
A RE

HOLIDAY ENTITLEMENTS
L3 RER

INSURANCE

Statutory holidays (New Year's
Day, Chinese New Year, Dragon
Boat Festival, Mid-Autumn Festival
and so forth)

Statutory leaves (annual leaves,
marriage leaves, sick leaves,
maternity leaves and so forth)

Social insurance (Basic pension
fund, basic health insurance,
work-related injury insurance,
unemployment insurance,
maternity insurance)

Housing fund

Supplemental commercial

High temperature allowance
Employee care fund

Annual body check-up
Long-term service allowance

Certificate subsidy

insurance (accident-related injury
insurance and accident-related

medical insurance)

) H_‘E’IﬂEXE (tE - BE - HF HEaRR (EARERER - EX =R B
CRIRERE) BREARR ITHRE XER ETHEES
>£E1Exﬂ;ﬁ(¢f7kfﬁi CERR B EFRR) BETFERE
& ERF) FEAER . AR ERE
mABERR (BIMEERR - - & E A
BINEERR)

STAFF BENEFITS
BI®EA

BIE#H

The Group fully recognizes that corporate development would not ~AEBEFNTCENERETIHAT —BETNRIRE
have been possible without the contribution of each employee. To Bl e B TREE TRE ZHETRIEMED  AEE
BRUTEIWAERES - EA%EE TATHEERA KRR
BUATHRESEANGHR BT NRFERE
THEES :

Employee Support

offer help and care to those employees in difficulties, the Group has
established a staff care fund. An employee may apply for the use of
the staff care fund when his/her difficulties meet the following
conditions for using the fund:

BIRAREFR BB REBERKRHEK
AFEREIMGE T -

When the employee or his/her children, spouse or parents
suffer(s) from serious illness or accidents causing serious
injuries or fatality;

BTAAREEBERBRLEETARS
EEAMPEEKRELX -

When the employee's direct family suffers significant financial
loss due to force majeure in significant natural disaster.
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In 2020, the Group upgraded the fund so that the targeted
beneficiaries extended from employees to property owners and
tenants. In case of difficulties caused by serious illness, serious bodily
harm, significant financial loss and so forth, the staff care fund may
lend a helping hand promptly, providing the warmth of protection
and the love of safeguard.

Communication with Employees

The Group strives to create a simple and sunshining atmosphere of
communication. An open, fair and systematic communication
mechanism is in place, whereby staff seminars, general manager’s
meetings, survey on staff dedication, irregular survey of satisfaction
and so forth are available to ensure that there are always some
channels of communication with the employees and channels of

information dissemination.

Besides, we also encourage employees to express their opinions and
suggestions on work to their supervisors directly, which would be
helpful for continually enhancing the services offered by Redsun
Services. When the employees consider that they are under unfair
treatment or their personal interests are being undermined, or when
they have different opinions on the Group's measures of operation
and management, or when any requirements of the Company are
found to be violated, the Group encourages the employees to select
the appropriate channels and file their complaints/reflections to the
Company. Such channels include feedback to the immediate
supervisor, direct complaints to the human resources and

administration department, or complaints to the sub-team leaders.

Staff Activities

In 2020, the Group proactively responded to the 3C healthy program
initiated by Redsun Group, namely Club, Calorie and Care. On a
nationwide basis, a number of staff fitness clubs were formed, to
continually practice the geek spirit of “Health, Hard Work and

Benevolence”.

R - HERERRE

2020 AEBEHBEEESHETHR  BEHREGEKR
AETEREIXE BF TEBEAKR AFE
AEE HMEERBAERHR  BEESATURE
R ZF - BtfiE E—m AR REMEHTE -

ETEHE
$Elﬁﬂ EIERSE %%W%Lﬁi'ﬂiﬁ
W RIE - ZRGEREBES  BREETIEAT  AK

Iiﬁﬁﬁ R E Kmﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ*sﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ :
BRETABEEO FEEBEER

o HFERBE T EE R EAR TEREERM
gg@"k gﬁbgi\’z’ﬁﬁ&%&%ixth ° EH/\IWL,\ XJE:”Z:/L\\
ESFREAMNGRE  SHAEELLEEERES

TRAER  ARRERRATSEATHERE - &

EEBRHETREEENRREBEARAFNR X
o BRI REERRE EXE  BERADITEER
W EBER o

ETTE

20204 - K%%ﬁ*@ﬁﬁﬁgéAﬁ%%lﬁ*iMSCﬁE§+

2 B Bl g B (CLUB) ~ 24 &) (CALORIE) =R
(CARR)] * EEBRF4EET yi;l&%ﬁéﬁéﬁﬂ "
BRTIERE BB KEINGEREE®-
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Meanwhile, the Group has high regards for the bodily health of its
employees. Various outdoor team building activities are organized to
encourage employees’ active participation in sports activities, to
boost their bodily health, enrich their lives, raise their satisfaction as
well as happiness.

Team building in Team building in
Zhejiang region Jiangnan region

5T B TR E S ERE

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any
work-related fatality. Work-related injury totaled 6 incidents and the
200,000-rated loss of working hours® was 3.43.

Development of Talents

The Group considers that employees’ growth and development are
instrumental to sustainable corporate development. By devising a
holistic talent cultivation program and incentive scheme, a
comprehensive talent cultivation strategy and internal promotion
system, we are able to strengthen team building, uplift team
capability and provide talents to support the business development
of the Group.

3 200,000-rated loss of working hours = (number of people injured/actual

total working hours) X 200,000
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AN REBEIFFERE TN HEBRER - ZXEHFP
WE’J@EE@J HENE TGS HEHEE BT @ 1248
B LEETARE RESEBImEEREER-

Badminton competition in
Jiangsu region

o MO D
THAAREEGS

Redsun Services’ staff team building and sports activities

AERBEETIEE -BEEEY

BEHN AEERBLEETRTIRT RN ELES
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Staff Training

Based on the requirements of the particular positions at different
levels, the Group has devised a series of training activities, namely
“Redsun methodology training program”, “Leadership scheme’,
“Litigation agent training”, “Brigadier scheme” and so forth, to ensure
employees at different levels may achieve personal development and
uplift their ability in the Group. In addition, the Group has also
formed a systematic “five talents program” centered at the whole
progress of talent cultivation and development, thereby raising
talents’ quality and expanding the pool of talents. Meanwhile, the
Group provides clear career path for its employees, to satisfy the
needs for talents at different business segments and hierarchical

levels.

During the Reporting Period, based on different training programs,
the Group provided the corresponding trainings as follows:

Redsun methodology training program

In April 2020, via online learning, the Group provided the
“Redsun methodology — highly efficient meetings” course
to 95 employees.

In December 2020, via online learning, the Group provided
the “"Redsun methodology — structural thinking and
systematic projection” course to 156 employees.

Leadership scheme HEETE

In July 2020, the Group provided the “Leadership scheme”
training course to 23 employees. The course covered
strengthening the panoramic vision of business and
awareness of risk control and so forth.

On 9 October 2020, the Group provided the “Leadership
scheme” training course to 26 employees. The course
covered the digest of strategic planning, analysis of cases of
investment laws and regulations, the importance of team
efforts and so forth.

AEREEEERAR - —s-25sE @ \
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AR FC R AL F

Litigation agent training

2020F7 A - AEBEM 1045 B TIRHEFRNRE
AJEBIIRE  RAREFLREORN - F
RIEBAMEBAEEMA - FAREENEE -
FAREBONFE  FARBEAERNEE #F
FHRSE -

In July 2020, the Group provided the ‘Litigation agent”
training course to 104 employees. The course covered the
validity of litigation agents, the qualification and legal status
of litigation agents, the scope of rights of litigation agents,
the approach adopted by litigation agents, the formation,
change and release of the litigation agent relationship and
so forth.

T8

Brigadier scheme

In August 2020, the Group provided the “Brigadier scheme” 20204F 8 AR BRS04 B TR [ E T2
&

training course to 50 employees. The course covered FERIE -
external counterparts, scenario-based leadership and so

forth.

Staff training programs
BTEYIRE

Driving business development with talents and forging a talents
supply chain for the property group are the strategic missions of the
Group. To cultivate a high-performance culture that attaches
importance to fighters and contributors, and adopt the change to
“prioritizing internal talents supply”, in 2020, the Group's project of
Achieving Performance and Training People Effectively (3 & 4 %
M E ) was duly launched in Nanjing. Managers were arranged to
participate in a one-day activity of team learning, joint innovation,
self-evaluation and hands-on practice, to put theories to the actual
management practice as a manager, truly practice their counselling
methods, turn knowledge into management acts and behaviors,
uplift their own leadership and also train people effectively, thereby

achieving performance.
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Scenario-based training to learn the do’s and don’t’s

B RAMm

Learning the do's and don't's and identifying weak areas
through role plays, observing behaviors, small group
discussions, and manager’s self reflection on management
scenarios.

RBAAEHE TRERE /AW ERERIEERE
BIER  BRAR  KAMR -

“Achieving Performance and Training People Effectively” project in 2020

20200 (EZENEREA)ER

AEREEEERAR - —s-25sE @ \

R 4 ERERHE

Thinking out of the box and achieving self-enhancement

BN FEAR

By case illustrations, scenario-based simulations, joint
innovation and so forth, the lecturer guided the managers
through brainstorming and appreciation of the underlying
logic of the course.

EMBBARERT  BREH BEKASHATES
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During the Reporting Period, the Group provided 45,516 hours of  $REEIA - ANEE A2 EE 8 TIRME 7 H5t45516/
staff training, with an average of 11.05 hours per employee. Details KB TiFHl - ETFHZIEREAN/NE BIX

are as follows: FFEIBEMT
CATEGORY UNIT 2020
E 5l B 2020 F

Hours of training by gender and category

BRI SR B R Bl 5 HY R I R B

Total hours of training of male employees hours 30,041
S B TREIF B B
Total hours of training of female employees hours 15,475
£ B T 4855 30 8 INBS

Average hours of training by gender

BRI B DN E T FIEIIRE

Average hours of training of male employees hours 1112
S B T 9 IRF 8 /N
Average hours of training of female employees hours 10.91
7 8 T ¥ 15 91 A 8L aNis

Total hours of training by job position

RERBINE THEIRH

Total hours of training of senior management hours 1,634
SARERBEEIIRR aNis
Total hours of training of middle management hours 8,725
PREEIEABBIEIIRE aNis
Total hours of training of general staff hours 35,157
HEB THEIIRK /N

Average hours of training by job position

BERARB D NE T FIIEIIR R

Average hours of training of senior management hours 74.28
= 8B 1R E T 150 R 8K N
Average hours of training of middle management hours 30.09
hEEIEA B FIGEIIRE aNs
Average hours of training of general staff hours 9.23
e R B
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REDSUN - COOPERATION FOR WIN-WIN

Redsun Services is committed to providing high-quality services to
property owners. We continually optimize our supply chain
management and establish fair and transparent supply chain.
Meanwhile, we are concerned about the future of the property
industry and join hands with the rest of the industry to explore new

models of industrial development and identify new opportunities.

Supplier Management

The Group has established a comprehensive supply chain
management system, encompassing supplier admission system,
supplier appraisal system and supplier control processes. Meanwhile,
Redsun Services, as part of the anti-corruption league, remains
committed to responsible procurement and it collaborates with

different parties in building a transparent and fair supply chain.

The Group stresses localized procurement and is actively involved in
local economic development, making contribution to the local
environment, society and sustainable development. Based on the
business characteristics of the particular projects, and upon satisfying
the Group's requirements in terms of product offerings, prices,
services and after-sale services, the Group prioritizes the engagement
of local suppliers. During the Reporting Period, the Group's local
procurement in terms of purchase amount accounted for

approximately 70% of the total spending on procurement.

R 4 ERERHE
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As of 31 December 2020, we had a total of 640 suppliers, which are  E £2020F 128310 B EBEBAOREER @ &
classified by geographical regions as follows: HENZRDRE ST

Number of suppliers by geographical regions

ZimEE DN HEERE (X)

0%

M Eastern Chinaregion [ Northwestern Chinaregion M Central China region

R [R [ispl@: il iR
B Southern China region B Northern China region
Ezpap:ilt bR
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Supplier Appraisal

The Group remains its adherence to the principle of “evaluation
before admission and engagement”. To regulate the supplier
admission management and build a comprehensive supplier
management system, the Group has devised a Property Group's
Protocol of Supplier Management (#1352 B FEREE IR 12), which
defines the process of supplier admission, supplier appraisal
benchmarks and the graded assessment system, setting out more
comprehensive guidelines for the Group’s recruitment of excellent

suppliers.

Before admitting a supplier, the Group examines it on-site and
prepares an examination report. Upon verification by the examination
taskforce, an admission approval process will be initiated, and
suppliers that fail the approval process will be included in a
restricted supplier list directly. An all-round qualification review is
conducted on the supplier by examining its corporate scale, working
environment, manpower allocation and organizational structure,
overall management model, and those on-site parameters that
correspond to the particular category of suppliers. Suppliers that are
involved in large-scale service outsourcing and construction projects
are required to pass the corresponding ISO certifications; at the same
time, its environmental performance including the use of processes
that save energy and reduce wastage is also a parameter of our

on-site examination.

ABBEBEEAERAR . —s=2558 @ \
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To ensure a supplier's service delivery and its quality, we conduct
weekly and monthly review while the supplier performs its
contractual duties. Based on the outcomes of such review, a Detailed
Service Examination/Appraisal Scoring (BRT§R&E/ZE % 7F 2 4 Al)
form will be completed, followed by the issue of a rectification
report addressing the underperformed items and a follow-up on such
rectification, which will lead to rewards and penalties depending on
the particular scenarios. In addition, for those suppliers already
admitted, we conduct half-yearly and yearly assessment by referring
to the Annual Supplier Assessment Form (& & Z (& 3%), which
enables the overall assessment of a supplier, spanning across safe
and civilized construction, monthly contractual performance,
coordination capability of on-site persons-in-charge, and construction
process. Suppliers would be classified into five categories namely
excellent, good, passed, failed and blacklisted. A supplier assessed to
be failed is not allowed to participate in any procurement activities
of Redsun Services within 2 years. A blacklisted supplier, that has
serious misconduct in the course of cooperation, will be permanently

restricted.

Anti-corruptive Supplier Management

The Group remains its adherence to sunshine procurement, and has
zero tolerance for those suppliers that have integrity problems or
violate their integrity commitments. We have set out clear channels
for filing complaints and whistleblowing, as part of our endeavours to
building a corruption-free supply chain. Our examination of suppliers
at different parts of cooperation includes the parameter of business
ethics. We see a supplier's integrity as an important parameter when
deciding whether it can be admitted. An anti-corruption agreement
is required to be signed by all suppliers and a compliance audit is
conducted at irregular time intervals during the contract
performance.

Communication and Collaboration with Suppliers

To ensure the prompt communication and implementation of our
management standards and management requirements, we regularly
arrange trainings on core indicators such as safety, anti-corruption
and environment. Based on the outcome of supplier assessment, we
organize on-site interviews and special-purpose trainings to help
suppliers in uplifting their business levels. To ensure that suppliers’
quality standards are in line with the Group's, we regularly conduct
promotion and training activities on safety civilization, anti-corruption

and environment.
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Meanwhile, in the course of projects, we seek to ensure successful
project implementation by having timely communications on any
issues identified in the course of cooperation, by phone calls or
meetings. In addition, there is at least one formal communication per
month between the Group and a supplier, apart from the annual
suppliers’ conference. Excellent suppliers are publicly praised. A
platform of exchange and interaction with suppliers is conducive to

future cooperation.

Adhering to the motto of “professionalism and building credibility for
the long term”, the Group cares about coordinated development of
supply chain and proactively helps suppliers on overcoming difficult
times of operation. During the Reporting Period, to alleviate the
impact of COVID-19 on micro and small suppliers, we responded to
the government’s call and granted to those affected micro and small
suppliers tax concessions that were commensurate with the

government’s tax policy.

Strategic Cooperation

Redsun Services embraces the value of “openness, inclusion and
mutual benefits and win-win". By working with government bodies,
education institutions and other business enterprises, we build a
cooperation platform for mutual progression and, upon innovative
spirits and a win-win notion, we foster the high-quality development
of business enterprises and the industry in line with the new
urbanization of the nation.

Cooperation with Business Enterprises

We are keen on entering into strategic cooperation with excellent
enterprises that share the same values as we do. We continually
explore new models and new directions of cooperation, with
ongoing upgrade and expansion of our cooperation platform, with a

view to achieving mutual victories with our business partners.
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Summit for Fintech-Empowered Smart Properties/Smart Cities 2020

2020 B - R MEEBYE BB H T S HE

Redsun Services is an active participant in industry summits, for exchanging precious experience with and learning from other
property services operators about smart properties, and coordinating different parties in exploring the future digitized and
intelligent transformation of the property industry. During the Reporting Period, we participated in the Summit for Fintech-
empowered Smart Properties/Smart Cities 2020 organized by China Property Management. The summit enabled thorough
discussions and exchanges that focused on issues including the construction of smart properties, reshaping of business
models, application of smart technology and smart service innovations. Mr. Luo Yanbing, non-executive director of the Group,
participated in the interactive forum named “Smart Properties and Capital Going Public” and gave a talk.
WERBERZETENES  IRBPEVERBGEERETZYENEELR  BRSTHRREZMETERRE
FAb - BEACER c BEMBR  RM2IKFEMEEE)R RO 202005 - BERESEME CEH TS EBRE -
WEEREEMERER BXEAERE BRElNRER SERBAFEFRERRAEHFNZIN - AEBEFERITE
FREUL2EEYRB(EEMEEERLET) » WEHRIFE -

China Property New Era Ceremony 2020 — Summit for Good Life Service Innovation 2020

2020 Bl b AR ARBR B — 2020 E A SE R AIF LS

At the Summit for Good Life Service Innovation 2020, Mr. Yang Guang, executive director and executive president of Redsun
Services, participated in the “Sailing Through the Storm 2020” Top 10 Property CEO Summit Dialogue, and explored how the
property management industry responded to the new challenges under COVID-19 and how they grasped opportunities and
swiftly developed.

FE2020E4F B RIS BIFTIE G VM X D &5 [ 2020k i £ EIRBBIFNIES | |- SABERBATESHRRUITERIG K2 HE
[FEAMBOR2020 | W% + RCEOR IEH 5 - S EBBRITE A EER B T KBRMEIERSE  RERERERT
et e

Release of Research Result on the Top 100 China Property Services Enterprises 2020 cum 13th Summit for the Top 100

China Property Services Entrepreneurs

220P A EBBEEREEMARRBMAEEE+ZEFENERBEEREXRES

During the Reporting Period, Redsun Services participated in the “Release of Research Result on the Top 100 China Property
Services Enterprises 2020 cum 13th Summit for the Top 100 China Property Services Entrepreneurs” organized by China Index
Academy and China Property Top 10 Research Unit and undertaken by China Index Holding (CIH) and China Index Academy.
Mr. Yang Guang, executive president of the Group, participated in interactive dialogue and gave a talk on Redsun Services’
“customer-oriented” service system, its responses to COVID-19, community cultural construction and the development direction
of Redsun Services going forward.

WMEHN - SAERB2MEFEARER - REFHETOPIOMFRAAEZ I - IR CH) « FIEFFE &M [ 202094 E
MERBARCERAANREMSGEE T = ETEAVERBEABREERES | - AEBRTRAG L ELELREHY
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B Eh
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Cooperation with Government Bodies and Education B~ RIERZ
Institutions

Redsun Services continually explores and develops the scopes of — SAFZRIETENER - BHEM T RARGE RSB - &
management for municipal life services, and works with government BREMeREFLRITERCEZEENEN B
bodies and tertiary institutions in forging a new model of operation, ~ RAIEFE ARG EEEL SEE -

seeking to create higher service values and social values.

[ ) adle

P N
“Joint efforts of government body and business enterprise, under

coordinated governance” — Strategic cooperation of Redsun Services
with Taishan Street

(B HEVEE] — A RBER UHERVERSERR

During the Reporting Period, Redsun Services entered into
strategic cooperation with Taishan Street, Jiangbei New
District, Nanjing, by signing a strategic agreement of “joint
efforts of government body and business enterprise, under
coordinated governance”. By blending our advanced
management concepts and standardized work processes and

Taishan Street’s city construction, we seek to foster innovative
social governance, uplift the efficacy of municipal
management, strengthen ecological and environmental
protection and refresh city image, thereby bringing new

experience of life services to the residents.

WEMA - SLERBEBRATIAFRF UETEEIBRAFERE R (REHRE  HRIAE]
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alihe

“Bold Pursuit Leads to Excellence” — Strategic school-business
cooperation between Redsun Services and Changzhou University

[BER B8] — ABRBEEEMNABETREEKSE

To create better conditions and provide more support to
university graduates’ job search, during the Reporting
Period, Redsun Services entered into strategic
cooperation with Changzhou University by signing the
“School-Business Strategic Cooperation Agreement”.
Changzhou University issued to Redsun Services the
documentation “Learning Base for Changzhou University
Students”, while Redsun Services issued to Changzhou
University the documentation “Redsun Services Group's
School-Business Cooperation Base”. By organizing tailor-
made professional courses, jointly developing the system of

training courses, jointly integrating teachers’ qualifications, designing tailor-made executive MBA and so
forth, Changzhou University and Redsun Services will engage in thorough and comprehensive cooperation
to keep enhancing graduates’ employability.
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REDSUN « WARM SOCIETY

Redsun Services is an enterprise that highly regards human care. We
care about people’s living and environmental protection and
proactively take on social responsibilities. Working closely with
various charitable organizations, we try our best and seek to give
back to society with our actual deeds, aiming at mutual progression
and development with society.

Combating COVID-19

Since the start of COVID-19, Redsun Services has always closely
monitored the development of the pandemic and activated its
emergency plans at the right time, seeking to protect the health and
safety of property owners and employees.

At the early stage of COVID-19 outbreak, the Group responded
promptly by setting up a backup team for planning any actions
against COVID-19 on an urgent basis, which included requiring all
employees to report their body temperature and route of journeys of
the day, sending daily knowledge on prevention, resolving the
procurement of supplies by multiple ways, enquiring about the body
health of employees on a daily basis as well as local control policies,
conducting disinfection three times a day for office areas and staff
dining areas, and allocating preventive supplies such as face masks to

employees.
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To secure pandemic prevention and control at the Group’s A TREAEEEKELHEMNZBHIETE K
operations, the Group was prompt in kicking off the following: FEEARFREBEOTIE:

+  Closing all minor exits and entrances and small passages and keeping only a main gateway for exit and entrance, and pedestri-
an paths were made solely one-way;
HEARTAIREA R R/MIPT - 1%1%5 EEHEAR - BATHARBLT
Courier services and food takeaways were handed over outside of the community, and disinfection with alcohol was needed
upon entrance to community; Entrance of vehicles and people from outside the community were not allowed; All people
entering and leaving from the community were subject to temperature check;
Closed-loop - R INEE)NRPINEEER - EABRETERES  INREBTABTGEANE : FTAASEDERRA
+ Quarantine at home for returning property owners in key regions; provision of full home-delivery services; and temperature
management check as required by community.

HEAXNERE . BYHEREEIERREE k 272 FPIRTS - WECALEITEEE R -

- Disinfection for 2 to 3 times per day for points of major touches, such as main exits and entrances, escalators, lobby and

garbage bins;

TEHACD - B KB URRSEEBEEHER2-3K

Used alcohol for 3 times per day for disinfecting elevator buttons, handles of unit doorways, letter boxes, newspaper boxes
. and milk boxes;

Systematic - ERHRE - BERPETF - FHE - PRETERESER - 8A3K

disinfection services +  Special garbage bins were placed at fixed locations for recycling disposed face masks at community; with gentle reminders of
“disinfected” and daily disinfection data sheet.

REMEHRIRTE . ERCHREEEEOBERERTRR SBR[ S NE | B A MRS -

Unified design of community main exits and entrances, and posting pandemic prevention knowledge on notice board of the
respectlve unit;

M—RABEETHALD - BT EMRAET R

Org anizin g . Tlmely release by community housekeeper of service updates on friends' moments and property owners’ groups;
5 - NRBRBEREMRRERE BN RS MRS
promotions for +  Keeping in touch with property owners for better service process.

pandemic prevention TR il B U
AR REE

Having access to supplier resources, communicating with various channels by dedicated personnels, and purchasing upon
verification of identity;
ITRHERER  EAHSEREETER  REAISEMHERE

+  Expanding channels for sourcing supplies by working with governmental departments and industry organizations;
HETERT © 1T MBI EN R Y B SR RIE ¢
Daily update of information about pandemic prevention supplies in drug stores and supermarkets near the community, and
timely alerts to property owners to remind purchases;

Securing pandemic

prevention supplies |8 BBRAR /NG RR S - ERBR ARSI - RN E RS
F}FEW ﬁﬁpﬁ « Where logistics arrangement was not secured, Red Life service personnels would drive to the suppliers’ venues for collection.
- UREEERBEAT - AAEEMERBAEBEERR LFINE ©

+ Working with the local street administrator, to undergo community pandemic checks, implement disinfection, stock taking,
graded reporting on information; and proactive cooperation in management and control and assist in buying and delivering
Working with daily supplies during periods of closed-loop management in case of suspected cases. )
9 . HES%I B - BRHFRERE HRERE - ABRE  EEERIEHRESIE - PRELRPISMAEEHME - YEEERR
the local street i BPEBERXEEAM -

administrator

Bl & #TE

Plans for pandemic prevention

BiRENE
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Meanwhile, the Group proactively integrates resources available from b4 » REEBHBEEHER  Bhhtesz 2
different channels and supports society in fighting the pandemic. A B ¥ t @ABNTEERZ HLXEAE
EEE - MERR - NEERBUATH

government, business enterprises, social organizations and I BHEHMEBRISE D

cooperation mechanism has been formed with participation from the — ##l - @

community residents, who share the vision of pandemic prevention.
During the Reporting Period, the Group contributed to society’s
pandemic prevention by way of the following:

Special-purpose
fund amounting
to RMB10 million
1,000BEEHES

120,000
medical masks

1NEFEBHROE

Pandemic prevention,

laminit.

mEBERE - REEE

100,000 pairs of
medical gloves

10EEBAFE

80,000 suits
of protective
clothing and
medical gowns
SEEMER
EEFATAR

Donations for combating COVID-19
BAEEME

R EmERAR - —2-255E @ \

R 4 ERERHE

200,000 pairs of
medical shoe
covers

088 BAEE

80,000
medical caps,
and disinfectants
and protective
goggles
SEEELER
HER - BEER
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Due to its positive performance during COVID-19, the Group was
ranked among “Top 30 Property Services Companies in China in
2020 with Satisfactory Performance amidst COVID-19" by Leju
Finance.

Top 30 Property Services Companies in China
in 2020 with Satisfactory Performance amidst
COVID-19

20207 B ¥ 3 FR 7 7 15 W BUE 2 263058

Good Community

Based on its listing status and backed by tens of thousands of users,
the Group is prepared to forge a complete and closed-loop industrial
ecosystem, with multiple business sectors that are complementary to
each other. The Group proactively explores the needs of residents,
integrates resources in society, fosters the construction of
harmonious communities of happy neighborhood, supports
poverty-alleviation deeds, and shares the construction and enjoyment
of good living.
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3

EHHE

AEBAETRARAER  LERFPRXE  HET
EEBMEXLRER  ZXREMEEHREE - A%
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R 4 ERERHE

hERBIREEE R |RET

Redsun Services’ Green Actions in “Party Activity Day”

Nl

During the Reporting Period, Redsun Services' Jiangbei
Company organized functional departments and
volunteers from different regions to attend and
participate in community green activities in the form of
“Party Activity Day’, focusing on the issues of the
particular projects. 50 volunteers joined to clear disposed
bricks, remove fallen leafs and branches and carry away
trashes from daily life, to reinstate the good views in the
community. Upholding a “Red Property” spirit, the activity
empowered good living with concrete works from
volunteers and brought more happy experience to every
family member.

WEHA - SMERETIEARNBEEESHH IR
FEEBRSRERE  ABBEAFIURERES
REMFHEARMERAAEES - B0 EME S
BRI - BRARER  BELESR A
MBS —RAR - BB A RERE - THBGIAO
BYVEINGEY  WEEEENSBRITIR/RELER
e RENUFXATKEZZREER -
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adie

Helping farmers with love and boosting cohesion in rural areas

EOME  ABRERERD

During the Reporting Period, Redsun Services
collaborated with Zhongshan County People’s
Government in promoting the mandarin oranges
produced in Zhongshan County. We introduced such
"winter sweetie” to residents in our communities by on-
site promotion activities held in the community. Group
purchases were arranged through our platform to bring
such high-quality Zhongshan mandarin oranges to more
people at low prices. At the same time, we had business
discussions with Zhongshan County regarding "how
Zhongshan mandarin orange products may form the
base upon which we can further strengthen the drive of
services, lead an expedited development of the industry,

f
[ ]
collaborate with various parties and create a sales i .
o "
platform for the industry’, and also reached some X y !
preliminary agreements on cooperation, with a view to i '

supporting the promotion of the brand of this variety of
mandarin oranges.

WEHRR - AEREREILFEARBTA BHEREEL
B RfPBBEERSHENES /EREMREKT
[(RAME] BEFeEBALAREZANESR
MERMESEEEM - o - FIEELFL 0
MAZEIIEHERSER  E—PRIERHKES - 3
BPEXMRBRE  IHAZH&E  TEEXHETF
BLETTRBAWR  WEKRNT A EHRZE - TEB

L HITEEMHmE

\\ 172



ABBEBEEAERAR . —s=2558 @ \

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERRE

APPENDICES B &

Appendix I: List of Laws and Regulations and Internal Mgk —  EEERRAIEHEEE

Policies

Laws and Regulations: EEESR

Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China (R EE AR A B RO%805)

Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China (hEAREMERTIEEHFE)

Interim Regulations Concerning the Prohibition of (AR IERBITANEITRE)
Commercial Briberies

Copyrights Law of the People’s Republic of China (R EE AR LMBIE B

Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China (rE ARKEFBEEEER)

Patents Law of the People’s Republic of China (R g ARZAMBEFE)

System for Administering the Graded Protection of (ERLZ2ERIREEEFE)
Information Security

Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China (R AR AMBEESEER)

Law of Protection of Consumer Interests of the (REARLMBIEE B ERREL)
People’s Republic of China

Law of Energy Saving of the People’s Republic of China (R AR ARBEE L 8LRED

Law of Promotion of Clean Production of the (REARLMBEREEREE)
People’s Republic of China

Rules for Administering the Conservative Use of Urban Water CHTE A AR EIRIRE)

Opinion Concerning the Strengthened Water Saving in CER s THEE/KITENER)
Industrial Uses

Rules for Administering Water Resources in Nanjing (FARMKEREEIDE)

Rules for Administering the Classification of Domestic Trash in (ERMAEENRE D BEEIE)
Nanjing

Rules for Fostering the Administration of Domestic Trash in (BB ABEANBERmE2EEEEENRE
Nanjing as published by the of the Nanjing Municipal AR
Government's General Office

Proposed Implementation of Trash Classification of Qo0 T BN IR DB ITIEE R
Jiangbei New District in 2020

Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China (pE ARKFMHLEE)

Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARKFBISB A RE)

Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China (hEE AR EMBEMLEREE)
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Internal Policies:

Rules for Administering Complaints and Whistle-blowing

Redsun Group's System of Declaration of Conflict of Interests
List of Prohibited Acts and Behaviors of Corruption

System for Administering Intellectual Property Rights

System for Controlling Risks Pertaining to Information Security
Procedures for Application for Information System Authorizations
Operating Guide for Orderly and Professional Internal Management
Operating Guide for Safety Examination

Operating Guide for Fire Safety Management

Operating Procedures for Handling Emergencies

Rules for Administering Customer Complaints

Property Group Rules for Administering Customer Complaints
Redsun Services Classification of Complaints

Manuals for Managing Redsun Brands

Operating Guide for Environmental Supervisors/Managers
Operating Guide for Environmental Experts

Property Group's Protocol of Supplier Management

Detailed Service Examination/Appraisal Scoring

Annual Supplier Assessment Form

School-Business Strategic Cooperation Agreement
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Appendix IIl: The Environmental, Social and Governance Mgk — BBBIMORE - HEREBRHREE
Reporting Guide Content Index Published by HKEX SIYARZEL|

SECTION IN THE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ASPECTS, GENERAL DISCLOSURES AND KPIS REPORT
B-dHBREAERE-REERBREERERKP) FrE B8

Environmental

BB
Al: Emissions General General Disclosure Information on: REDSUN -
Disclosure (@) the policies; and ENVIRONMENTAL
(b) compliance with relevant laws and PROTECTION
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
Al BERRLH) —MRIKE BERABERFORERBHEN - MK R L H) 5 shf5 - IRIRIRE
T BENEBERERYNELSTN
@@ EBE: &
) BFHBEITABERZEBONERE KA
i -
Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions GREEN OPERATION
data
A1 iR R AR B EE mEEE
A1.2 greenhouse gas emissions and intensity GREEN OPERATION
A12 RERBEFNERER BReESE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity GREEN OPERATION
A13 MEXEERENEERTE BEEE
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and GREEN OPERATION
intensity
Al4 MELBEERENEENRTE mEEE
A15 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps GREEN OPERATION
taken to achieve them
A15 R HE R 2 BV IR i R PTIS R HEEY
A16 Description of how hazardous and non- GREEN OPERATION

hazardous wastes are handled, and a description
of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them

A16 Wl RIEEENEZEZEYN L  REE
EEMEERMEKRSE

Sk
&
fid
i<
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A2 : Use of General
Resources Disclosure

A2 BIRER —MEE

A2.1

A2.1

A2.2
A2.2
A2.3

A23

A2.4

A2.4

A25

A2.5

\ 176
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BRE #HEREAERRE-REBERBAREARERKP)

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials.

BERERER (BIEER - KR EAMRME
AR -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total and
intensity

BREAESNEER SEEER(WE - R
Som) BREE REE

Water consumption in total and intensity
BEKERTE

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them

i BE TR P e vt &) R AT AR

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them

i SKEGE R KR E ] B ERIERE - bAKRR
FHRK Mt 8 KRR
Total packaging material used for finished

products and with reference to per unit
produced

HEXmAAEMHNRERBEEEUIGE

SECTION IN THE
REPORT
FrE B8

REDSUN -«
ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

ShB% - RGRE

GREEN OPERATION

REEER

GREEN OPERATION
HEEE
GREEN DESIGN

GREEN OPERATION
GREEN CULTURE

B ERE
RRE XL
GREEN OPERATION

REEER

The Group's business
operations involve
minimized use of
packaging materials
and any of these uses
are in compliance with
the laws and
regulations of the
localities where the
respective business
operations are
situated.
AEBEXBELR
2SR B REMEEE
REE/)  HRIEE
BB I ARE
RETAREE -



R EmERAR - —2-255E @ \

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R 4 ERERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ASPECTS, GENERAL DISCLOSURES AND KPIS

SECTION IN THE
REPORT

BRE #HEREAERRE-REBERBAREARERKP)

A3: The
Environment
and Natural
Resources

A3 RIERK
REIR

Social

e

B1:
Employment

Bl : BfE

General
Disclosure

— R EE

A3.1

A3.1

General
Disclosure

— MR EE

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

BIRBITAHBRRERRAREREKERATE
HIBR ©

Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and
the actions taken to manage them
HREBEZHHRBERRARERNEATE
RERBREBEHETENTY

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.

BREHI N EE  BRERER - TERE |

i PERE  Z0l RERAREMES

KA A :

(@ BUR: K&

(b) BTHETABEAZENHERBERZLS
I E R o

Total workforce by gender, employment type,

age group and geographical region

RIER - EERE - FiAR Mtz S D eE

=S

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region

B FRER MR E D WEBRKAL

e

FREEE

REDSUN -«
ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

ShB% - RGRE

GREEN OPERATION

Sk
&
fid
i<

RESUN - PRESSING
AHEAD TOGETHER

ShRs - HE T I

OVERVIEW OF
WORKFORCE

8 TR

EMPLOYEE CARE

i
H
]
pd

177 j




/ . Redsun Services Group Limited + Annual Report 2020

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BR- 4 RERHRE

B2: Health and General

Safety Disclosure
B2: fBEEL  —RRE
ZE

B2.1

B2.1

B2.2

B2.2

B2.3

B2.3
B3: General
Development Disclosure
and Training
B3 : #RE R —RINE
b=

B3.1

B3.1

B3.2

B3.2
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R dHEREAERE-REERBEREAKISEKP)

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

FHRREEZE2TIERERREREEREH

MEER :

@ BE: &

(o) BFHETABEAXENRBERRR
BIE) &KL o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

occurred

AT EAERMIETHIAB KL

Lost days due to work injury
AIBERIAIIERR

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored

ML ER A B R R R E 2 2 - ANIA
BT RERTE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
BRRHEEBIT T/EBE M R REE
BUR - f B FIES -

The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category
mrUpIREBERFEINXIEETDL
The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category
RIERIREERME D  BREETKZII
CORSELS ot

SECTION IN THE
REPORT
FrE B8

EMPLOYEE CARE

S0
H
=
R

EMPLOYEE CARE

BETHE
EMPLOYEE CARE
BIHE
EMPLOYEE CARE

o

= THEE

\

DEVELOPMENT OF
TALENTS

AT ER

DEVELOPMENT OF
TALENTS

AT ER

DEVELOPMENT OF
TALENTS

AT R
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ASPECTS, GENERAL DISCLOSURES AND KPIS

SECTION IN THE
REPORT

BRE #HEREAERRE-REBERBAREARERKP)

B4: Labour
Standards

B4 : & T X8

B5: Supply
Chain
Management

B5 : {fEEE
i

General
Disclosure

— R EE

B4.1

B4.1

B4.2

B4.2

General
Disclosure

— B

B5.1

B5.1
B5.2

B5.2

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

BN RE TR EISTH

@@ EE: &

() BFTHETARERZENHBEZLR
ESk=¢ai

Description of measures to review employment

practices to avoid child and forced labour

iR B EANEEARRE T Kial
AT

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered

72 B3R AR AR SRS R R B BB 1B L BT ERER
kg

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.

EEMHERORE L EREBR -

Number of suppliers by geographical region

minRE M HEERHRAE

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, and how they
are implemented and monitored

Wi AR REERNEN  MERTTHER
EBOmHEEREE - ARAREMNNRITR

BRI

FREEE

EMPLOYEE CARE

S0
H
=
R

OVERVIEW OF
WORKFORCE

EMPLOYEE CARE
BTHER
ETHE

OVERVIEW OF
WORKFORCE

8 TR

SUPPLIER
MANAGEMENT

HEmER

SUPPLIER
MANAGEMENT

HEmER

SUPPLIER
MANAGEMENT

HEmER
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RE-#HER

ERRE

B6: Product
Responsibility

B6 : EmEIT

\ 180

General
Disclosure

— R EE

B6.1

B6.1

B6.2

B6.2

B6.3

B6.3
B6.4

B6.4

B6.5

B6.5

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ASPECTS, GENERAL DISCLOSURES AND KPIS

BRE #HEREAERRE-REBERBAREARERKP)

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

BRFMRHERTRBNEEELZS B

BRELLEEE AR ED

@@ EE: &

() BFTHETARERZENHBEZLR
ESk=¢ai

Percentage of total products sold or shipped

subject to recalls for safety and health reasons

EEXRCDEXREMBRTRL 2 REFEH
mARKE DL

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt with
REBARERRREORFEHEUNLEH T
Pz

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights

ot B A ARSNGB E R BB )

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures

Ol E B e E B N E m B AR 7

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, and how they are implemented
and monitored

HUE B E B RHMRE RFLBEE - LA RAIEH
WMITRERAIE

SECTION IN THE
REPORT
FrE B8

REDSUN - QUALITY
SERVICES

ShE% - mERF

The Group's business
operations do not
involve any product
recall.
AEBEXRBELB
BRPEREME
IE] o
COMMUNICATION
WITH CUSTOMERS

ERAR

SMART TECHNOLOGY
AND INNOVATION

HEeREl

The Group's business
operations do not
involve any product
recall.
REBEXRBELB
BRPEREME
IE] o

COMPLIANT
OPERATIONS
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SECTION IN THE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ASPECTS, GENERAL DISCLOSURES AND KPIS REPORT
BiE #HERERGERE—RFEERBRENIEZRKP) FREEE
B7: General Information on: COMPLIANT
Anticorruption Disclosure (@) the policies; and OPERATIONS

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

B7 : RE)S —RIE BREPRHE  BR  HMEFREEREN BRES
(@ BUR: K&
(b) BTHETABEAZENHERBRERZLS
I E R
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding COMPLIANT
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its OPERATIONS

employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases

B7.1 RERAANHEITARHEERLE T EELE BRES
MWESHRARRGNEA RFRER
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- COMPLIANT
blowing procedures, and how they are OPERATIONS
implemented and monitored
B7.2 IR Py S R B WART - ARMEERTR ABRES
BERITA
B8: Community  General Policies on community engagement to REDSUN « WARM
Investment Disclosure understand the needs of the communities where SOCIETY

the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’

interests.
BS : ttmITE  —MRIKER B E2ERTREEMEHEZTEMN ENCRYL Eak
BREAXBEHEEBLRAMFOBE -
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution COMBATING COVID-19
GOOD COMMUNITY
BS.1 BT EREE MBS
EifrtR
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. COMBATING COVID-19
GOOD COMMUNITY
B8.2 EEIHBMEBAER MBS
EifrtR

181 J
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Be hardworking and contributor oriented

RSUN COLLEGE

Talent is the most important resource of an
enterprise, and talent management ability is the
most important core competitiveness of an
enterprise.

ATREREEBNEAS - ATBEEENREE
REENROLBHEFN -
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18 M % B R

Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

EY:

To the shareholders of Redsun Services Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Redsun
Services Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 193 to 311, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Audiitor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

\\ 184

RS FTENE RS Tel EEF: +852 2846 9888
ERPRAERE 15 Fax {8E.: +852 2868 4432
RIEKE 22 42 ey.com

BELEREEEMARAFARR
(RAEESHSFMELERA A

=R

RMEBZINSERE1BEEE31 BRAGREEE
ERAR([ERE]) REWBAR ([EXE]) WiRE
WK - R E MG BEN 20205612 431 BHY
RAMBRARBEEEZALELFENGEBEREM
ZEHPAR GEE=RZBRRGEERERER - N
RIFEMBEHRENTE  BREETESHTBERHE -

BMRE  ZE5GREUBRERCBIBERE 5T £RE
E2 ([HRSEEEE ) B0 RS HREE
A (BRI BREER D EEmMP SRR T EEE
2020512 A31 BRI E B RBIEZ A IEFE
MG BRARMAREGRE LR EBREERA
16191 0 5 B8 3R E 2 A A o

\:

RROER

BAEREELEGTMAS (BRI ]) B
MEBEZER ([FEBREL ] ETER - RAE
ZEEATERENETEEARES ZEAHFRAE
HBBXAFENE LR HIEE— B - RIBFR
BB ARRMANEE S A& T (T5FRI))
BPBIRESEE  YEBTTRAFHNEMERER
BE - BAEE  RAIMESHNEZERERE NE
B AEANERE R IRHEER -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

SR EEERAR - —2—2558 @ \

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZBE#RE

FAREREE

RREBEZFRIBRERMANFEXHE - RAEANERE
RAEMBHRANERRRERNTH GLTHERE
HRAMBRREBETERALANELNE R T
TREN  RATHELERREHREBNER - 7M
T - FHEAEFZP RN EEOHERDBIALLR

k=,
AR

BRI EEIT T ARELRI G FE AL LR
FAEMNETRBOMENEE  BREGLHEREZS
AR EE - AR - RPINBEZTEEERRTR
FE S SF (4 B4R & B IS SRR B A 88 AR BRI LB T &R AT Y
B2  ZMRTERREFNER  BREH T
AREZEHEMATHET  REAVBHRRBREE
RERBREHRT ER -
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Key audit matter

HEEREE

Gooawill impairment assessment

BB (B VL

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had goodwill of RMB31,303,000 in
relation to the Group's acquisition of businesses.

M2020F12A318 - ESEREXBUEFENEER/ARE
31,303,0007T °

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. The goodwill impairment
review performed by the Group’s management includes a number of
significant judgements and estimates including those regarding the
identification of cash-generating units (“CGUs"), operating profit
forecasts, the annual revenue growth rates and the discount rates.
BEESFETAENN - EEEEREMETHRERESNY
RREBERAG LA (REEZSIREEEEN((REEEE
fz]) ~ & EREIER - FERAE R R RITIR EB 8 H B &
at) e

We identified this area as a key audit matter because of the materiality
of the goodwill balance and the uncertainty of estimation made by
management on the key assumptions.
HMEAL B BAREREE  DARBEARNEZNAR
EREREBRRIELENENTREE N -

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about the
goodwill impairment assessment are included in notes 3 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
EHEBEREMENERG At RRED AIHN G A M RER
MizE3 /15 ©
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMELRBUNMEEREEREE

Our audit procedures included, among others, involving internal
valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the methodologies and
discount rates used by the Company for determining the recoverable
amounts.

HMOBEZEF B (R 07F) BF N EEZRGB R MG
ERAIBEE KO EAERAN A RAER X o

We examined the underlying data used, such as the management
projection on the future revenues and operating results by
investigating whether the forecasts were consistent with the financial
performance of each CGU during the year of 2020; and we examined
the business development plans and historical annual growth of each
CGU to evaluate the growth rate of each CGU. We assessed the
sensitivity analysis performed by the Group’s management on the
impact of changes in the key assumptions.

PSR AR EE - fIE R EH R RMARE L EEH
TR FARAERBERRE E2020F SR S EE BTG
RE—B HEAMERSReELEUNEBERFIIRBESF
EEE UTEEHRSELEBNMNERE - HMFHEEEER
EREEZRRIEDNZEMETHBREDN -

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures of goodwill
impairment in the financial statements.

BATEFEHBRRDESBYHEREMEREOTDME -



Key audit matter

HEEREE

Business combination

REE0f

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group completed the
acquisition of Chuzhou Yurun Property Management Co., Ltd. at a cash
consideration of RMB36,720,000.

BZE2020F 12A31ALESFE - HEEBENUREREAREK36720000
TR T EYEEBERAA -

We identified this area as a key audit matter because the accounting
for the acquisition involved significant judgement of management for
the purchase price allocation mainly in relation to the valuation of the
identified property management contracts, customer relationships and
the remaining goodwill balance arising from the business combination.
MR B AAREREE  TARZEEN ST RE SR
EEBHEBEBROKNEAAE TEFHEHIINYEETE
aF  BEFBREKREEBAHNATEHEGHNMGE-

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about the
business combination are included in notes 3 and 29 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
BREBAMNERGH AT KRB D DR GRS M B mKR T
3}%29
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMELRBUNMEEREEREE

Our audit procedures included, among others, involving internal
valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the methodologies and
the assumptions (such as discount rates and growth rates) used by the
Company in valuation of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed on
the acquisition date.

BB ZEFBE (AR eE) BEABEEZR BB HM T
ERARHEWEEERNIKE R BNREEENEEMRABN S
AR AR (BINALER R IR EK) o

We assessed the objectivity, independence and competence of the
independent external expert engaged by management. We assessed
the identification of assets and liabilities performed by management,
and evaluated the cash flow forecast by checking to supporting
documents, such as existing sales agreements and external evidence
like current market prices for similar services in the same location and
condition.

HMEHEREEFNBLIFERNFTEE  BLIE RN E
TaHE - BHME AR EEEUEERBEELONHA - ARE
FAMEERX IR A & E R RIMEB R ER &
BERT - BURBHRITHHERUTERSREFAFME

We checked the accounting for preliminary allocation of the purchase
consideration.

BAEREBEREN NI REEIE

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures of business
combination in the financial statements.

BATEFEVBRRDTESBYEBG S HMERENT DM -
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Key audit matter

HEEREE

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

B BRI AR5 B 7R 1

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade receivables of
RMB72,120,000, after making loss allowance of RMB2,424,000.
72020612 A31 8 - RMEH B R A R #2,424,0007T 1% -
B & & 5 e R 2 AR #72,120,0007T

=
g5

Management assessed the expected credit losses on trade receivables
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected credit loss
rates. The Group used judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group's past history, ageing profile of the receivables, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.
ERERBAEBEENRAHEEBRENRRIXTEE S ERFR
WIRBAEEER - REEEEBEES BEFIRNRRER -
REMAREREHROIE LG - ESERAHENMELZ
FRE SR BRI ER Em & AR

We identified this area as a key audit matter because of the magnitude
of the balance of trade receivables and that the assessment of the
expected credit losses on trade receivables involved significant
judgements and estimates made by management.

BB RIL BEH AR ERZEE - HANE 5 WA & & K aT
B SEBENEREEEENEEY R EIRENEXHE X
fl&t o

The significant accounting estimates and disclosures about the
provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables are included in
notes 3 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
EREZREFENEACEBREENERG A REED
RIB PR & B B R M 7E3 %18 ©
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMELRBUNMEEREEREE

Our audit procedures to assess the provision for expected credit losses
on trade receivables included the followings:
HMFEESREFIENERCEEBRRBENEREFBENT
BIA

(i) Understanding, evaluating and testing management’s key
controls in relation to the assessment of the expected credit
losses on trade receivables;

TR AERAAREEBEEAGEZBRUFIBERREE
EER RS EG

(ii) Assessing the appropriateness of the credit loss provisioning
methodology adopted by management;

AEEREMRANCEEBREBE NGB
(iii) Assessing the reasonableness of the forward-looking factors and
the estimated credit loss rates by considering historical cash
collection performance and movements of the ageing of trade
receivables, and taking into account the market conditions;
BEEEELRSWEMKRALE HEKFIARRNEE
Wt RmR - AHEATE R R LB EEERENSBL
(iv)  Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing analysis of
trade receivables prepared by the management; and
AR E RIS E IR [E iR B E 5 FE UL R IR BR e 29 AT O ZE 1
MR

(v) Checking the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the
provision for loss allowance.

ZEFEBRBRENRSRE -

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures of trade
receivables in the financial statements.
BAMEFHETERRPEEEHE S EBYFAMERENT D
M o



OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

ABEBEEERAR - — 22555 @ \

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZBE#RE

BREFHNEMER

ERABEFRHHMERNREERE - EtbEH BEH
REFRNEFR - TRIERA M B RE MBI ZEED
wE -

RIPHRA BB BRE (LT R RS R @éﬂ'
MEBTEHLHERERTAHADREER
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fER - MEEBEMER TS BEA M BRRIRK
MEEZBRERTETNENFEEATT @ SUFE
EEARERRML - HERMERSETHITERRE
EMEREABERRL  RAAREEHEEE - 5l
It RABAELRSE o

EERAEMBBRRARENER

ERFRBEFREERERRGH EAREEERMHHE
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N ER R BR A o
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

ABEBEEERAR - — 22555 @ \
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence KW. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2021

\\ 192

HREZZEBBNERT - WAIEEHAHELR
EUMBRRNECEWEENETE  AMBEKBRE
%EIR - BRPERBEREFRAZZEE  RIPE
BIERIAFARBEZSFTER  SEEHERFRN
BT WEERPERMRETEBREEFEKD
BEBRRBHEEN ARG - ARFIRE NEER
ERBBRER -

HARBYREMBENEZREABRARBEE

(Lawrence KW. Lau) °

2K Z TR =BT
HEEEAD

BB

202143 H23H



SR EEERAR - —2—2558 @ \

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SERBEREMEEBRAR

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12831 IEFE

2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RBM'000
AR¥F T AREEF T
REVENUE Wz 5 767,852 502,990
Cost of sales 55 K AR (553,514) (375,546)
Gross profit EX 214,338 127,444
Other income and gains = PN 5 20,136 3,129
Selling and distribution expenses HERSIHAX (786) (364)
Administrative expenses THRAX (104,249) (50,944)
Other expenses B (19,086) (190)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net & @& &= BB K B /F 8 (1,924) (384)
Finance costs B & A AN 7 (46) (392)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR B4 Al & F 6 108,383 78,299
Income tax expense FriSEif X 10 (35,068) (21,232)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRIEF 73,315 57,067
Attributable to: AT &7 el -
Owners of the parent [SYNEIEZFEIN 69,751 59,061
Non-controlling interests FE 2 IR e 2 3,564 (1,994)
73,315 57,067
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BAREERESEFEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EhEERER
OF THE PARENT 12
Basic BN
— For profit for the year — F R F RMB0.20 RMBO.20
AR #0.20T AR #0207
Diluted BE
— For profit for the year — F R A RMBO0.20 RMB0.20
AR #o0.20T AR #0207
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meRERkHMAEEBAR

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE20200F 12831 A IEFE

2020 2019
20205 20194F
Notes RMB’000 RBM'000
M aE AR¥F T AREEF T
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ERHEMEERA
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MERFIE = —
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAZEBRALE
FOR THE YEAR 73,315 57,067
Attributable to: UT&FE:
Owners of the parent SRAREEA 69,751 59,061
Non-controlling interests PR i = 3,564 (1,994)

73,315 57,067
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ma MR R

31 December 2020

2020128318
2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RBM'000
AR¥F T AREEF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB N&E 13 13,810 9,326
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 882 —
Goodwill [EES 15 31,303 12,307
Other intangible assets HthmEE 16 38,218 8,631
Deferred tax assets FRIERIBE E 25 6,725 6,313
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE = 322
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 90,938 36,893
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 5E 17 39 19
Trade receivables B SRR 18 72,120 25,626
Prepayments, other receivables and TERT IR - B FEYGRIR
other assets N H At B B 19 30,349 32,030
Due from related companies FE U BAE B RIR 32 87,905 262,730
Financial assets at fair value through profit ?ﬁ@ﬁfﬁﬁ‘l‘]\?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\]%@
or loss EE 20 — 3,100
Cash and bank balances e MRITHER 21 826,250 179,111
Total current assets MEEERE 1,016,663 502,616
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables B SR 22 47,957 43,155
Other payables and accruals Hith A RIE R BT B A 23 173,555 128,714
Contract liabilities AREE 24 134,753 81,907
Due to related companies FE S B 2 B RIR 32 1,876 38,418
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 1,361 —
Tax payable FERT R IE 10 17,349 27,731
Total current liabilities mENBEARE 376,851 319,925
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 639,812 182,691
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAEE
LIABILITIES 730,750 219,584
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FREMBARR T
31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

\ 196

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RBM'000
AR¥F T AREEF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIEEE 25 10,335 2,250
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEARE 10,335 2,250
Net assets BEEFE 720,415 217,334
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BARER ABLER
of the parent
Share capital &N 26 3,764 —
Reserves 1 27 686,424 208,024
690,188 208,024
Non-controlling interests FEVERR o 30,227 9,310
Total equity Y 720,415 217,334
Yang Guang Zeng Zixi
BXx 2 7R
Director Director
o -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEmBER

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 12831 IEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

FARER AR

Statutory Non-
Share Share Merger surplus Retained controlling Total
capital  premium () reserve profits Total interests equity

EERSR
BE ROEE SHREE e REEA @it FERER #EREH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARETR

Note 26 Note 27 Note 27 Note 27

Bt 226 M &E27 KizE27 Bt 27

At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 818 — — 5,000 4,653 40,522 50,175 — 50,175
Total comprehensive income  FRZE R ALLE

for the year — — — — 59,061 59,061 (1,994) 57,067
Re-organisation L — — 98,788 — — 98,788 — 98788
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT B ] — — — — — — 11,304 11,304
Transfer from retained profits 2% B R B % 7 — — — 8355 (8,355) — —
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12831H — — 103,788* 13,008* 91,228* 208,024 9310 217334
At 1 January 2020 R2020%1A818 = — 103,788 13,008 91,228 208,024 9,310 217,334
Total comprehensive income ~ FRNZHE KA BT

for the year = = = = 69,751 69,751 3,564 73,315
Capital injection by FERERTE

non-controlling interests = = = = = = 330 330
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEM B AR = = = = — - 17,023 17,023
Issue of shares BRI 3,764 427,314 = = — 431,078 — 431,078
Share issue expenses WinETRY = (18,665) — — — (18,665) — (18,665)
Transfer from retained profits & & BREEF — — — 11,931 (11,931) — — —
At 31 December 2020 12020128318 3,764 408,649* 103,788* 24,939*% 149,048* 690,188 30,227 720,415

@ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZERERE RRERNGEMBRARPHEEFEEA
RMB686,424,000 (2019: RMB208,024,000) in the consolidated statement R #686,424,0007T (20194F : A R #208,024,0007T) °
of financial position.
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LEEERER
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE20200F 12831 A IEFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2020 2019
20205 2019%F
Notes RMB’000 RBM'000
B 5 AR®T T ARKETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHFBASRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 25 B A 108,383 78,299
Adjustments for: FEEIEE -
Depreciation of items of property, Wz - BB NEEIEE
plant and equipment e 6,13 4,145 2,238
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 6, 14 441 —
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hiv & E#E 6,16 2,175 668
Losses on disposal of items of HEME - BREREHE
property, plant and equipment HEWEE 6 237 2
Impairment losses recognised EERREEE 6 1,924 384
Net foreign exchange loss SNEE B 18 RE 6 16,286 —
Finance costs Bb & R AN 7 46 392
Interest income B A 5 (5,243) (71)
128,394 81912
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories BFEOEM, " (14) 25
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables Z 5 rlroE (gm),/
Ve (25,344) 761
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments, TERFRIE - Efb U SRIE
other receivables and other assets REMEERL
(1) 7,602 (667)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables ZoRMNFE ALY,
1 (513) 26,291
Increase in other payables and accruals HMENFRERESER
i 33,108 40,790
Increase in contract liabilities SREEEM 42,502 27,431
Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due from  fEULEEEE A R FUIER A,
related companies (3% hn) 32,108 (60,386)
Increase/(Decrease) in amounts due to JE A BB R B FIB N,
related companies OB 1,814 (442)
Cash generated from operations KEMERE 219,657 115,715
Interest received F B A 1,802 71
Tax paid E@IR (50,172) 4,787)
Net cash flows from operating activities KETHMSHESRE
R 171,287 110,999
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2020

HE20200F12A31BIEFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RBM'000

B it ARBTR ARETTT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property,

REZDFREREERE

BEME BENI&RE

plant and equipment 5 H 13 (8,669) (5,156)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE  WERERE

property, plant and equipment JH B FT1S 3R 13 — 1,773
Purchase of other intangible assets BEAMEREE 16 (1,250) (532)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B8 A A 29 (18,147) (20,119)
Proceeds from disposal of other HEEMRBEEMS

long-term assets FRIA = 657
Disposal of financial assets at fair value ﬁ%?ﬁ’&$f§:ﬁ|’)\?§ =)

though profit or loss TREE 3,100 30,620
Advances to related companies M) BA B A R E 23K = (63,061)
Repayment of advances to M) AR A RIVE B

related companies B 142,717 27,841
Increase in non-pledged long term BB R AT B BUE AN

time deposits 21 (170,000) —
Net cash flows used in investing activities B EBAARSRE

R (52,249) (27,977)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BETHMERERE

ACTIVITIES
Capital contribution by a shareholder —EZRFIE 330 98,788
Proceeds from issue of shares TR0 P15 3R 26 431,078 —
Share issue expenses IR BT X 26 (18,665) —
New bank loans IRITER 1,467 —
Advances from related companies EYEREL NI E N — 126,561
Repayments of advances from EERA BN AR

related companies (38,356) (161,577)
Repayments of interest-bearing bank and ~ {EiEFT B RIT R E M E K

other borrowings (1,467) (5,000)
Interest paid =R (8) (392)
Net cash flows from financing activities BERMSHRESRE

R 374,379 58,380
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEEERER
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE20200F 12831 A IEFE

2020 2019
2020 2019%F
Notes RMB’'000 RBM'000
k=g AR%T T ARKETTT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERREESEYEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS FE 493,417 141,402
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYRELREEEY
of year 179,111 37,709
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, SNEEXRFHNTE TR
net (16,286) —
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASRREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 656,242 179,111
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HeRBR&ZEYLE
CASH EQUIVALENTS D
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITH 21 826,250 179,111
Cash and bank balances as stated in the AR R ETTIMIR & &
statement of financial position RITAE R 826,250 179,111
Less: Restricted cash B ZREIRE 21 8 —
Non-pledged long term time mERRETE TR
deposits 21 170,000 —
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the IR& R EXRFTHIH
statement of cash flows ReRBEEEY 656,242 179,111
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Redsun Services Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law on 12 December 2019. Pursuant to the
Reorganisation, the Company became the holding company of
the companies now comprising the Group on 17 February
2020. The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since
7 July 2020. The registered office of the Company is located at
Walkers Corporate Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town,
Grand Cayman, KY1-9008, Cayman Islands.

During the vyear, the Group was mainly involved in the
provision of property management services, value-added
services to non-property owners and community value-added

services.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company of the
Company is Redsun Services Group (Holdings) Limited, which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

B 75 ¥ 3R B A

31 December 2020
2020128318

RAREEER

WG RS S BMAR QR ([ARAF) 72019512
ARERBERSHERREERSHEEMMA
URBRAEREERART - REBEFE AR
AIR2020F2 A7 A RAERBERBHE T AR
ER AT - ARBKRG B202057 A7EERE
BEER AR AR ER LM o AR A&
9% = IR 17 A Walkers Corporate Limited, 190 Elgin
Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-9008,
Cayman Islands °

FR-AEEXTZSRREEMEEERS - I
EERERS ML ERERT -

EERR ARANERAFTRNEBHER R
BB RSARS ARG S B () BR AR °

ERMBLINER
ARREIEZWMBRARMFEBLT :

follows:
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the
Name registration and business  registered share capital Company Principal activities
MR ERUAR BRAEE/ KR E
28 EXBH EfRA REBDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
EE 5E:3
Redsun Services Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands USD50,000 100 — Investment holding
wERBEREERLAR REABRES 50000 7T 100 — REER
Redsun Services (Hong Kong) Limited** Hong Kong — — 100 Investment holding
W% (BE) BRAR BE - - 100 REER
Nanjing Hongyang Enterprise Management Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 — 100 Investment holding
Bl GEEERERRA e/ EA AR B200,000,0007T - 100 REEK
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31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

1l
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1. RAREEER (@)

BENRBLINER (&)

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ attributable to the
Name registration and business  registered share capital Company Principal activities
ERMER L AR BRATLE/ KD EMR
£8 EXhH AR A REBSL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
Nanjing Hong Yang Property Management Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 100 Property management
B GNEERERR A RE/ RN AR 8200,000,0007T - 00 MEEE
Jiangsu Redsun Town Operation and Development PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Project management
Co, Ltd**
THLG NEEEERERAA ME/hE R AR 500000007 - 100 BEEE
Nanjing Hongcheng Property Management Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Property management
ARl AN EERERAR B/ mEN AR 50000007 - 100 MEEE
Hong Life Property Management Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100 Property management
WEENERBERERA R/ mE A AR #100,000,0007C - 00 MEER
Nanjing Hong Life Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
BRLEEREEEMBERAR R/ RN AR 85,000,0007T - 100 #HARH
Nanjing Hong Life Virescence Management Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 100 Property management
BARAEERCERERAR hE/RE A AR #50000,0007C - 100 NEEE
Nanjing Hong Life Decoration Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Decoration services
ARLEERBIRARAF R/ mENH AR 50000007 - 100 AR
Nanjing Hong Life Information Technology Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Software maintenance
Bl R RN ER AR R/ mE A AR 85,000,0007T - 100 EigEE
Nanjing Hong Life Pension Service Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Pension services
BRLEERERBERA A R/ RN AR 50000007 - 100 EZRE
Nanjing Hong Life Investment Management Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Investment holding
BRLEEREERERAR /BN AR 85,000,0007T - 100 HEER
Nanjing Yadong Property Management Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB6,000,000 - 51 Property management
("Nanjing Yadong")
HRLRNFERARAR (FRBR]) e/ hERD AR 60000007 - 51 MEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3R R A aE

31 December 2020

2020512 A31F

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AAREBERE @#E

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

BENRBLINER (&)

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ attributable to the
Name registration and business  registered share capital Company Principal activities
MR/ R UAR BRATLE/ KD EMR
£8 EXhH AR A REBSL TERR
Direct Indirect
E# EE:3
Shanghai Andi Property Management Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB3,500,000 — 51 Property management
("Shanghai Andi")
LEZBNEERARAF ([ LERE) R/ RN AR 35000007 - S1OMEER
Nanjing Jian Intelligent Technology Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 — 51 System development
HRERERENBEARRA /BN AR 85000007 - 51 REEE
Chuzhou Yurun Property Management Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 51 Property management
HHFENEEEERAR e/ hERD AR 50000007 - 51 MEEE
Nanjing Yuye Property Management Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 51 Property management
ARTEMEERERRA R/ mE A AR 85,000,0007T - 51 MEER
Wuhu Yurun Property Management Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 51 Property management
BRTRNEERARLA R/ RN AR 85,000,0007T - 51 MEER
Huangshan Yurun Property Management Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 51 Property management
BUTHNXERERAR /BN AR H1,0000007T - 51O MEER
Yueyang Yurun Property Management Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 51 Property management
EBTEN*ERERAR e/ hERD ARH5000007T - 51 MEER
Chizhou Yurun Property Management Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 51 Property management
BNFEDERBERAT R/ mE A AR B500,0007C - 51 WEER
Chengdu Honglan Real Estate Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
RBLREXBRAF R/ RN AR H1,0000007T - 100 RS
Wuxi Hongyuan Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
EHLRELRMARARY ME/hE R AR #1,000,0007T - 100 AR
Taixing Hongcheng Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
RELHEXBRABRR e/ hERD AR %1,0000007 - 100 FARS
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

K 204

1.

NAREBER ()

BENRBLINER (&)

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ attributable to the
Name registration and business  registered share capital Company Principal activities
MR/ R UAR BRIEE/ KD EMR
£8 EXhH AR A REBSL TERR
Direct Indirect
E# EE:3
Kaifeng Hongyi Real Estate Agency Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
Rl BRI ESLBERAR RE/ RN AR #1,000,0007T - 100 AR
Huzhou Hongyang Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
MG EXBRBRAR" /BN AR H1,0000007T - 100 FHARH
Nanjing Hongyuan Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
BRLREERMAERD A BB/ BN AR 81,000,0007T - 100 #HARHG
Suzhou Hongyuan Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting Services
ML ERXBRBRAR" hE/mEA ARHE1,0000007C - 100 #HARS
Nanjing Jiangnan Hongzhi Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd**  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
ARIELHEEBRERR A RE/ RN AR #1,000,0007T - 100 #HARH
Wuhan Hongsheng Real Estate Consulting Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
RELEEEEBERARAR ME/hERD AR H1,0000007T - 100 FHARH
Nanjing Jiangnan Hongzhi Life Decoration Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Decoration services
ARIRABERRSIRERD A BB/ BN AR 81,000,0007T - 100 HHRE
Wuxi Hongyuan Virescence Management Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property management
EHLERILERBRAR hE/mEA AR 81,000,0007T - 100 HEER
Nanjing Longyuan Enterprise Management Consulting PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
Co, Ltd**
ARERCEERENERAA R/ RN AR 85,000,0007T - 100 #HARH
Nanjing Hongming Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
BRLAEERMER DA ME/hE R AR #1,000,0007T - 100 AR
Hefei Hong Life Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
AL EERBERARA T B/ mEN AR %1,0000007 - 100 FARS
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AAREBERE @#E

(Continued)

BENRBLINER (&)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ attributable to the
Name registration and business  registered share capital Company Principal activities
MR/ R UAR BRIEE/ KD EMR
£8 EXhH AR A REBSL TERR
Direct Indirect
E# EE:3
Nanchang Hongnan Real Estate Agency Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
HELERHELLARAF RE/ RN AE%1,0000007 - 100 & HRS
Chongqing Honglan Real Estate Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Consulting services
BRIREXERAR™ /BN AR H1,0000007T - 100 FHARH
Jiangyin Hongshun Real Estate Consulting Co,, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Consulting services
IRLBEXBRABRAR BB/ BN AR %1,0000007 - 100 FAARE
Hefei Hongsheng Decoration Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Decoration services
BRRAEERHIRBRART e/ HE R AR 1,0000007 — 100 HRH
Ningbo Yinzhou Hongyuan Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property management
Co, Ltd**
BRENLENEERERAT R/ RN AR #1,000,0007T - 100 NEEE
Nanjing Hongzhi Life Service Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 — 100 Property management
ARARAEREER AR /BN AR #3,000,0007T - 100 NEEE
Nanjing Hongyuan Cleaning Service Co, Ltd.** PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 100 Property management
ARLERZRBERA R/ mENH AR 30000007 - 100 MEEE
Nanjing Hongren Property Management Co, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property management
AR ERAR AR R/ mE A AR %1,0000007 - 100 MEER
Wuxi Hongyuan Cleaning Service Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Property management
EHLERZRBBERAD R/ RN AR #1,000,0007T - 100 NEEE
Nanjing Hongyuanda Property Management Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Property management
AR RENEERERAR ME/hE R AR #1,000,0007T - 100 NEEE
Nanjing Jiangnan Hongzhi Property Management Co,, Ltd**  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property management
ARTIELHNEERARA A e/ hERD AR HE1,0000007T - 100 MEEE
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

NAREBER ()

BENRBLINER (&)

Percentage of equity

Issued ordinary/ attributable to the

Note:

The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official
names of these enterprises are in Chinese.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

K 206

Name registration and business  registered share capital Company Principal activities
ERMER L AR BRATLE/ KD EMR
£8 S ZfRA REBDL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# GF:3
Ningbo Hongyang Life Service Co,, Ltd** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100 Property management
BRLGEERBERAT RE/ RN AR #1,000,0007T - 00 MEEE
Chongqing Hongchuangxinyuan Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 67  Property management
Co, Ltd**
BRILARENKXERERAR ME/hE R AR #1,000,0007C - 6 NEER
* These companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the * RERRHRADANZEMBEAF o
Company.
** These companies are subsidiaries of wholly-owned subsidiaries = ZERAERARFNZENBRRINMER
of the Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as 7 AARR A RZE QWM AR &
subsidiaries by virtue of the Company’s control over them. B AR -

P EE -

ZELWHEXBREHDZZE - ZSEENE AW
VAR XA %E -

FRIHMEERRIEVEAFEXEIBRAEE
EEFEZEBINALRMBLRR - BERR - 18
HEMHBARNABEEEHRELE -



2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(‘RMB”") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand

except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the current

ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders

of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1

ABEBEEERAR - — 22555 @ \

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3 B =E

31 December 2020

2020512 A318H
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2.1

\\ 208

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss

of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the

Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1
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2 EWRAZEKREDNEBNAEEE QA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3 B =E
31 December 2020
202012 4318
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B BRRREESH

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for AEEBRAFE Y B ImE EHRNEKAN20184F

Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRSs for WIS S B S AE SR A NS AT B FR B 75 v 5

the first time for the current year's financial statements. AER o

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business B B3 B 75 R 5 22 A FHZEE

FEIRAEET
Amendments to IFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform B R B 75 e 5 ZE A FFEEENE
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Fo5% - ERER
#E I 553955 M BB
B 7 5 22 B B 7 5%
HIER]
Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions Hﬁ%—%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ—,ﬁu 201978 ik 17 2 i #A
(early adopted) 65)7%{53 2HE (RREERN)
Amendments to IAS 1 and Definition of Material .Ké'r\ FTERENRE EAZESE
IAS 8 EIK%\ St ERIFE S
BEET

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for 20184F B IS S 5 S AE 2R R 445 5T B B B 75 3

Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRSs are described SR EERZEBMNAT :

below:

(@)  Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the @) 2018 FHFEHREBLAAELE ([BESAEZR ) 4R
"Conceptual Framework’) sets out a comprehensive set E—ETEUBREMSRELNRE - I
of concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, REITEEGTRENY B RRGRER
and provides guidance for preparers of financial MIESI AR BB S AT T RZREER -
statements in developing consistent accounting policies MoERREFTE RBRRMBRANNE
and assistance to all parties to understand and interpret i BERBERIEERAIIES] - AR
the standards. The Conceptual Framework includes new BHEAERBBERERERER - TES
chapters on measurement and reporting financial EE BERTETEEERTHBRE 2
performance, new guidance on the derecognition of TER o BEEZR I BN 2ER - B HEt
assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and E’ﬂﬂ% LR REMEIRNBB SR
recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also o R IERE AR EE M B AR R KR
clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and Iﬁ?&&fifﬂiﬁ%;
measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it must
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process
is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to transactions or other events that
occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with
an alternative risk-free rate (“‘RFR"). The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty
before the introduction of the alternative RFR. In
addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group
as the Group does not have any interest rate hedging
relationships.

22 BHEREREEEH (@)

(b)

B B B 75 R 5 2E B S 3SR MU R BB iR
HEBESEENEIINGS - ZEFTE
B —HGAEBREEAZELBRIE—E
BAR—EEERBRE - MmE LR AE
ELRNENELHERER - FAHEAZE
% o W RETAFTE BIEE E AN A
KBRKIERT - EBIFAIFE ° ZIER]
FBREMIS2EERT ABEENREER
R EREENETHN G - AR - =2
EIHECHESMBRARENEERIBRZLE
CHREBEELOENELERTR -
ZEFTMREELNTER - UBEEED
MEFIRENE RRE « HEWASRE
—REBATSHEMIIA o fboN - ZIEFT
REEATHENGAERTBERBE
#$53]  Wal NiREBHATFESF AR
o FFEITEEREE ORI — B WY
EBREERTE —HER - AKBEEH
ZE R RTEHE AN 2020 1 A1 B2
BBEENZFAEMEG - ZFETLE
HAESENTBERARKRBEXTAE
@,

BB B 75 3R 5 HE R o5k - BIBR & 5T 2ER)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d)

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as
a direct consequence of the pandemic and only if (i) the
change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the lease. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted
and shall be applied retrospectively. The amendment did
not have any impact on the financial position and

performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the

financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 — Phase 2!
and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to IFRS 17 /nsurance Contracts®>

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Annual Improvements to  Amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRSs 2018-2020 IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and
IAS 412

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

s As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June

2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

(@ Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying
IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an
existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to
be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and
the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the
hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or
losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to
meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within the
next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require
an entity to disclose additional information to enable
users of financial statements to understand the effect of
interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied
retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate
the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(@)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the
IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a
broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for

adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a
right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at
that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify
the situations that are considered a settlement of a
liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(e)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced
while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity
recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group'’s financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

()

Amendments to |AS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs
that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(9)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or lender on the other's
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged
on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group'’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to

the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as

a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group

are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not

reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole:

Level 1T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for

the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense

categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which

amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is

it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued

accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(

) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

It

) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group; and the
sponsoring employers of the post-employment
benefit plan;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

\\ 0
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful

lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Office equipment and 19%
electronic and other devices
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease

terms and useful lives

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date
of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment loss
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 5 years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (ie, the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-
use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment

OcCcurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(©

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or
a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that
are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

24

TESTBERME @)

RAR LS BEE

W RARHE

S A B RA TERES 5 R B 2L 14 R AU
58 DRATEN AR MZERAREAT
(B3t AJRS -

NEERENEREEDBIORN SR EERN
ERREREFBARANEEERFEEFNER
BR R TATBERENREAKE D HA
SEHOHILEAESERENEMIFFEE R
Bk e  AEEMNBREAFEME (fF
SREEWIFRAFEFABRRS) RPKUATE
TREE - TSEAREMAKI D IAKED
REERBREZINENE ZRWHIE  RIET
X[ FER | P8 R - IRIB BRI E
BHFSRBELIRHERE

RETREERBERAIRFEFAEME
HWAETHERGE  FTRREBERSEL
[EEINAEEMNEINAERE -RERE
TRABINAERMNEN SR EER DAY
BAFEARS  MEXERLER -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e, removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to
be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1T — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, an amount due to the ultimate holding company,
derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on the estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(@) Property management services

The Group charged property management fees in
respect of the property management services on a lump
sum basis.

On a lump sum basis, the Group is entitled to retain the
full amount of the received property management fees.
From the property management fees, the Group shall
bear expenses associated with, among others, staff,
cleaning, garbage disposal, gardening and landscaping,
security and general overheads covering the common
areas. During the term of the contract, if the amount of
the property management fees the Group collected is
not sufficient to cover all the expenses incurred, the
Group is not entitled to request the property owners to
pay the shortfall.

Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises
the full amount of the property management fees the
Group charged to the property owners and property
developers as revenue.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(@) Property management services (Continued)

These services are performed by an indeterminate
number of acts over a specified period of time.
Accordingly, revenue is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the specified period unless there is evidence
that some other methods better represent the stage of
completion, and the costs of services are recognised as
incurred in connection with performing such services.

(b)  Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
includes sales assistance services, pre-delivery and
consulting services. The term of the contracts for sales
assistance is generally set to expire when the
counterparties notify the Group that the services are no
longer required. Pre-delivery and consulting services are
rendered in a short period of time and there were no
unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the
respective periods.

(c)  Community value-added services
The services are rendered in a short period of time and
there were no unsatisfied performance obligations at the
end of the respective periods.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to
impairment assessment, details of which are included in the

accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as
an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees in Hong Kong who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain portion of these
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e,, assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are currencies other than the RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below:

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
goodwill was RMB31,303,000 (2019: RMB12,301,000). Further
details are given in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, service type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(Continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e, gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the property management sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Application of purchase price allocation

When performing purchase price allocation for subsidiaries
acquired during the year, the Group makes several estimates in
determination of the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities, including:

(@)  Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows from property
management services, supported by existing property
management contracts and customer relationships, and
using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows; and

(b)  Estimated deferred tax for Corporate Income Tax arising
from the fair value adjustment.

Further details of the investment in subsidiaries are given in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group's
business which includes property management services
income and value-added services income by project locations
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. As all the locations have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in the nature of
property management services, the nature of the
aforementioned business processes, the type or class of the
customer for the aforementioned business and the methods
used to distribute the property management services and
value-added services, all locations were aggregated as one
reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group's
revenue from the external customers is derived solely from its
operation in Mainland China and no non-current assets of the
Group are located outside Mainland China.

Information about major customers

In 2020, revenue from continuing operations of approximately
RMB265,194,000 (2019: RMB232,253,000) was derived from
providing property management services and value-added
services to a single customer, including providing property
management services and value-added services to a group of
entities which are known to be under common control with
that customer.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5 Wi Ettlr AR Wz
An analysis of revenue is as follows: HPRMDTT
2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Revenue from contracts with customers P& W
Property management services L EREN 496,228 354,767
Value-added services to non-property JEETHERD
owners 161,210 121,352
Community value-added services = ERE 110,414 26,871
767,852 502,990
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHRE
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (@) WaEr B4
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARETTT
Revenue from customers and REBEINEF ks
recognised over time
Property management services Y EIE R 496,228 354,767
Value-added services to IEHEFRERD
non-property owners 130,871 101,347
627,099 456,114
Revenue from customers and EX-RHEEBRINEF
recognised at a point in time g
Value-added services to X FERERE
non-property owners 30,339 20,005
Community value-added services A (A R TS 110,414 26,871
140,753 46,876
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)
The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:

Wi~ H AU K W ER ()

BEFEEHNE (&)

@) W EXHH (E)
TRETRABEHERL DA ARES
VaRBEN kG

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTTT

Revenue recognised that was included ~ BREFTARE YA FH

in contract liabilities at the beginning ABENKE -

of the reporting period:

Property management services M E IR R

80,713 63,104

Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations
is summarised below:

Property management services

The Group recognises revenue in the amount that
equals to the right to invoice which corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of the Group's
performance to date. The Group has elected the
practical expedient to not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these types of contracts.
The majority of the property management services
contracts do not have a fixed term.

(b) BEBRIEMT
BRASEROEENERSMMT -

VR EERE
EREFAARZENSREAREESRA
HRNEFPNEEERBER  AEE/K
SHERRESNAERFAAERNEE ° 1F
RERREDE  AEEDBRETHEZ
EFRNANRBENRE - KEOME
B IR A A & B EHIR o



REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (Continued)
Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include sales assistance services, pre-delivery and
consulting services. The term of the contracts for sales
assistance is generally set to expire when the
counterparties notify the Group that the services are no
longer required. Pre-delivery and consulting services are
rendered in a short period of time and there were no
unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the
respective periods.

Community value-added services

The services are rendered in a short period of time and
there were no unsatisfied performance obligations at the
end of the respective periods.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020
2020128318

g ~ E AU KW ()

EFEEHWE (F)

(b) BAIEE (&)
T IEERT
RIEXERENBERGEZEREHEED
BARF - BMERN REARY - EX5H
TRAANEETBEERRBE - HERED
ERNHRBREERIH - XTI KEH
ARG RARE R E AR - W AEHRE
HIR A RERBRBITNBHRS -

B ERE
R _ERENRBAREM - W EEHEE
HIR G RE R B RBITNBHORS -

2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARETT
Other income and gains Hi g A R Wz
Interest income PSRN 5,243 71
Government grants I A 48 B 9,702 2,433
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair & A EFT AB@A &l
value through profit or loss BENTFERZ 277 240
Subsequent changes of asset fair value ~ BEEBAHBHEMNEER
relating to business combination FEMEE 4,072 —
Others H A, 842 385
20,136 3,129




/ . Redsun Services Group Limited « Annual Report 2020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3 R o

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

6.

K 254

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

N

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

B Bt A 2t

AEBOBRANGEN IR AT SIA

Notes
hE=g
Cost of services provided R R B AR
Depreciation of property, M HERERETE 13
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 14
Amortisation of intangible assets m A EEN 16
Losses on disposal of items of HEWME  WERZE
property, plant and equipment THEWEE
Foreign exchange difference, net MEH Z5E - FE
Impairment of trade receivables E 5 EWGRIBERE 18
Impairment of prepayments, deposits ~ FBfTFRIE « & R HAM 19
and other receivables FEUW R IE R B
Auditor's remuneration % BRAD BN &
Employee benefit expense (excluding & E@FIF 3 (T B1E
directors’ and chief executive's EERBERITHRAER
remuneration): ) -
Wages and salaries IERF®

Pension scheme contributions and

social welfare

B2 ErEHARLEE
& A

2020
20204

RMB’000
AR®T R

553,514
4,145
441
2,175
237

16,286
1,924

2,080

361,724

32,700

2019
20194F
RMB'000
ARETTT

375,546
2,238

668

20

364

238,179

39,144
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31 December 2020
2020128318
FINANCE COSTS il & B A
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEKAIFTAT :
2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR Tt AR®EF T
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and other $RITER - EX R EMER
loans EORIPSS 8 392
Interest on lease liabilities HEABMNE 38 —
46 392
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERESTHRAEHM

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

BIE ETRA - BB RFUEFIZE383(1)@) -~ (b)
QEMEAR AR REEEFMNRER) RIS
HBRBENRFEREZREETHAEH MM
T

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR Tt ARET T

Fees e 340 —

Other emoluments: Hiie

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind TE& EENREYER 2,024 1,498

Performance-related bonuses* RIBEMATEL 394 212
Pension scheme contributions and social BEEeEHAR

welfare HEREF 95 154

2,853 1,864

o Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus * RARETHTESARESEANEBBIEF

payments which are associated with the profit after tax of the

Group.
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independent non-executive directors during the year
(2019: Nil).

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERESITTHRAEHM @
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIAFHTESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FAMBIIENTESINNEESOT :
during the year were as follows:
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARKETTT
Mr. Jing Zhi Shan SEEE 111 —
Ms. Wang Fen FELZL 111 —
Mr. Yan Ji Peng B 4 11 5t A= 118 —
340 —
There were no other emoluments payable to the B R 45 B A< S8 S FE N1 T 2 55 A EL i B M

(20194 : £E) -



8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. EERRSTHAEHM &)

LBREEEERAR - —2=—25sH @ \

B FRRMIEE
31 December 2020
2020128318

An executive director, non-executive directors b) —BHITEE FHTESREST
and the chief executive BAE
Equity-settled Pension scheme
Salaries,  Performance- share-based  contributions
allowances and related payment and social Total
Fees benefits in kind bonuses expenses welfare  remuneration
DREESE
15 28R DRBAERN EELHAMK
we ENER REHATL %X RUEEA @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT ARETr AREFT ARETT AREFT  ARETE
2020 2020%
Executive director: HiTEE !
— Ms. Zeng Zi Xi — EFBRTT = 1,501 144 = 50 1,695
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
— Mr. He Jie* — - - - - - -
— Mr. Jiang Dagiang* —BERLLE = = = = = =
— Mr. Luo Yan Bing* —RBELE = = = = = =
Chief executive: RETHAE
— Mr. Yang Guang — i = 523 250 = 45 818
= 2,024 394 = 95 2,513
2019 2019%
Executive director: HITEE.
— Ms. Zeng Zi Xi —EFBRaT — 1,004 e — 77 1124
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
— Mr. He Jie* — R - — - — - —
— Mr. Jiang Dagiang* —BERts - - - - - -
— Mr. Luo Yan Bing* —BEBEEE - - - - - -
Chief executive: RETHAE .
— Mr. Yang Guang —BREE - 494 169 — 77 740
- 149 212 - 154 1,864

* Mr. He Jie, Mr. Jiang Dagiang and Mr. Luo Yan Bing were
appointed as non-executive directors of the Company
on 16 March 2020. In addition, Mr. Jiang Dagiang
resigned on 26 February 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

@ AL - BiEmEERBEY T EER
2020F3 A6 B EZE AR R RIBEMITE
= o D BiEsR St 2021F2H26H
BT o

FR - MESFAZSTRAENENLR

B EE A EHMNA L HE -
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The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director and the chief executive (2019: one director and the
chief executive), details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2019: three) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

TEBREHHNES

FRN AEBRaTWNEERE " REFURS
BITHA B (2019F : —BEZURERITEA
8) HEMFBEERN LS - WIEAR A
EESHERTHRABNBRT =5 (2019F : =4)
BayiEEFANTMEBEET

2020 2019

20204 20194F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR Tt ARET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind T&  ZEIREWET 1,891 710
Performance-related bonuses RIBEEHIEAL 274 341
Pension and social welfare EZeRtEgEA 91 166
2,256 1,217

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

bands is as follows:

HMLR AT BENFE S RIERSTHAR
BEHHERABDT ;

Number of employees

BEAHE
2020 2019
20205 20194F
Nil to HK$500,000 = £ 500,000 7T — 3
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 JT 2 1,000,000 7T 3 —
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T = —
3 3
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10.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to
the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and British
Virgin Islands, the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands and British Virgin Islands are not subject to any
income tax. The Group's subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong are not liable for income tax as they did not have any
assessable profit currently arising in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China are
subject to PRC corporate income tax at a rate of 25% for the
year.

LBREEEERAR - —2=—25sH @ \
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B R SRR B o

31 December 2020
2020128318

10. FiB8%H

AEBARAEEKE QR EMREEMED
BRI ZEERELREEMNEMNIRERES
BAFREN RERSHELARBABRES

AR R BOERR - $‘§IE’\\F§J§E¥%&E€§”EEE
RE B M AN B A R B A ER S

o $%@ﬁéi§%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ2la’m¢}%A B B AR
WETEHR A AZERRIRE E2020512 A 31
B FEWEBRERESEENTAERE S
F o

FER - AEERPBRABEENHERRBR
25% H) B R BN B TSR o

2020 2019
20205 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREEF T

Current tax: B EARE IR
Corporate income tax TEMEH 34,943 25,368
Deferred tax (note 25) FEIERTE (M sE25) 125 (4,636)
Total tax charge for the year FRBIAL L 425 35,068 21,232
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2020512 4318

10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. Frig® (@)
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit ARral REWBRRGFMAE AT ERIZA
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which TE B R 5T E A BR TR AR A E R /0 BT 15 B B S
the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income REBRFAEREGENMSHRAIHROT

tax expense at the effective income tax rate is follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Profit before tax B A5 Al g A 108,383 78,299
Tax at the statutory income tax rate RIETE PTG R AT 27,096 19,575
Tax effect of subsidiaries with preferential ZHEEERENNEBRRN
tax rate mEEE (1,829) —
Income not subject to tax BARB WA (37) —
Expenses not deductible for tax A HF B 2 503 381
Tax losses not recognised RIERR TR E 1B 1,260 1,276
Losses not subject to tax BARTEE 8,075 —
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BRAEEERRXGFEOH
B3 35,068 21,232
11. DIVIDENDS 1. KRR
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Proposed final — HK$6.2 cents (2019: Nil) EEAH — Bl EERR62
per ordinary share BAL (20194 « #]) 21,623 —
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the BERFEARBREAGARAMRRNEIGETT
approval of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming MIRERBEFEARE LHFERFTAIEE -

annual general meeting.
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12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

For the purpose of computing basic and diluted earnings per
share, the number of ordinary shares has been adjusted
retrospectively for the effect of the reorganisation and the
capitalisation issue as described in note 26 as if the
reorganisation and capitalisation issue had been completed on
1 January 2019.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 354,918,033 (2019: 300,000,000) shares in
issue during the year, as adjusted to reflect the rights issue
during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years of 2020 and 2019 in respect
of a dilution as the Group had no potential dilutive ordinary

shares in issue during the years.

12.

SR EEERAR - —2—2558 @ \
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BE# 3R R Bt ot

31 December 2020

2020912 A31H

BRAEERESFEARGERER

HABEEREAREERIME - THRREE
BRI 26mil EA R E AN EHITHREED
BPAZ  BUAREMAREANEETER2019
F1H1B%ERK °

BREARFNSEDIRES AR T ERESR
BAEMLFN R RFAE 7T @R NE
£ 28354,918,033 0% (20194F : 300,000,0008%) 5t
& WA RME N LR o

1BE 4 5L 20204F M 2019 EFT 271 3 R E AR & F
SHEEHESHEBRAE  REAAEERER
I BT s E T AR
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BRARAEBEREZREABEERER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (&)
(Continued)
The calculations of basic earnings per share are based on: BREARBINFERERS !
2020 2019
2020 20194F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFT
Earnings ZR
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders 513 & i% Z A< 2 F| Fr A £
of the parent, used in the basic earnings NEIERBRERERA
per share calculation: JE k& A
From continuing operations REFELE T 69,751 59,061
Number of shares
igrig |
2020 2019
20204 20196
Shares % 17
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in T ESREAREFIFBFAND
issue during the year used in the basic BT E AR INET S
earnings per share calculation 354,918,033 300,000,000
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202012 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERRZRE

Office equipment

and electronic and Leasehold  Construction in
other devices  improvements process Total
BARE
EFREMEE HEEE EEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR® TR

31 December 2020 2020128318
At 1 January 2020: R2020F1A18 ¢

Cost KA 12,933 927 950 14,810

Accumulated depreciation ZEiE (5,076) (408) — (5,484)

Net carrying amount REFE 7,857 519 950 9,326
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated R2020F1 818 - B EFIE

depreciation 7,857 519 950 9,326
Additions AE 2,799 1,828 4,042 8,669
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) U BB I8 A 7] (FT5E29) 197 — — 197
Disposals & (197) (40) — (237)
Transfer i 2,525 834 (3,359) =
Depreciation provided during the year FRTERHE (M:T6)

(note 6) (3,685) (460) — (4,145)

At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated R2020F 128318 - Kk 25t

depreciation e 9,496 2,681 1,633 13,810
At 31 December 2020: 2020128318 :

Cost 2% 17,834 3,459 1,633 22,926

Accumulated depreciation e (8,338) (778) — (9,116)

Net carrying amount FHEFE 9,496 2,681 1,633 13,810
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

13. M5 BERRE @)

Office equipment

and electronic and Leasehold Construction in
other devices improvements process Total
HORH -
EFREMEE HERE TERIRE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARETT ARBFT
31 December 2019 2019%12A31H
At 1 January 2019: R2019F1A1R
Cost B 10471 600 - 11,071
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE (3010) (240) - (3,250)
Net carrying amount BEFE 7,461 360 — 7,821
At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated R201951A18 - R ZFHTE
depreciation 7461 360 — 7821
Additions RNE 2177 258 2,721 5,156
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) W BE B B 1 B (B 3E29) 293 69 — 362
Disposals & () — (1,771) (1,775)
Depreciation provided during the year FRTERHE (M:T6)
(note 6) (2,070) (168) - (2,238)
At 31 December 2019, net of accumulated R2019F 128318 - Kk 25t
depreciation nE 7,857 519 950 9,326
At 31 December 2019: 2019 12A31R
Cost A 12,933 927 950 14,810
Accumulated depreciation e (5,076) (408) — (5,484)
Net carrying amount BEFE 7,857 519 950 9,326

R2020F 12A31H A"EBHMELERETY
¥ BENEREQOIF E) UEAREE
FERIBIT R E b S FRAY IR -

As at 31 December 2020, there were no certain property, plant
and equipment (2019: Nil) of the Group being pledged to
secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group.
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14. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group entered a lease contract with a fellow subsidiary to
lease certain building as offices. The lease has a lease term of
three years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(@)  Right of use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets

SR EEERAR - —2—2558 @ \
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BE# 3R R Bt ot

31 December 2020

2020512 A31F

14. HE

REBEREBA
AEEE-FRRXNBARIZEESR - U
HEETBTIERRAE - HENEBR/=F -
—RME  AREITEEAEEAIINERMNE
HEEEE -

@) REEELE
AEBENEREEENREENLLERER

and the movements during the year are as follows: REBHMT :

Office building
BrE
RMB'000
AR¥ET T

As at 1 January 2019: 20191 18 -
Additions = -
Depreciation charge TEXH —
Net carrying amount REFE —
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 7201912 H31H k202091 H1H —
Additions NE 1323
Depreciation charge e (447)
As at 31 December 2020 72020512 H31H 882

%5///



/— . Redsun Services Group Limited « Annual Report 2020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 3 R o

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

K 266

14. LEASES (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

14. AE (&)
REBEAFEHEA (BE)

(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEE
The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the HEAGNEEEARRFEANE SN
movements during the year are as follows: T ¢

2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January
New leases
Accretion of interest recognised during

M ATHREAEE — -
igHeE 1,323 —
FRERFBIEE

the year 38 —
Carrying amount at 31 December R12A3BNEREEE 1,361 —
Analyzed into: DA
Current portion BIHEAER > 1,361 —
Non-current portion FERNEAER = —
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation () HEEREZERNEEEUT -
to leases are as follows:

2020 2019

2020 2019%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T ARKETTT

Interest on lease liabilities HEAGENE 38 —
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FTAREENEH

(note 6) (Ft3te) 441 —

Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIEEERNB SR 479 —
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31 December 2020

2020912 A31H

15. GOODWILL 15. B8
RMB'000
AR T T
At 1 January 2019: 201951 A1R ¢

Cost [B#N -
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE —
Net carrying amount BREFE —
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated impairment  520194F1 A1 HHEA - 3k 25HREE —
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) Uk BE BT B A A (M9 5E29) 12,301
Impairment during the year FRRE —
At 31 December 2019 2019512431 H 12,301

At 31 December 2019: 72019512 4318
Cost %N 12,301
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE —
Net carrying amount REFE 12,301
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated impairment #2020 1 A1 HREA - 30k REHRE 12,301
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) W B BT 8 A 7] (Bt E29) 19,002
Impairment during the year FARE —
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2020 2020612 A31 B RIpK A & AR EDF(E 31,303

At 31 December 2020: 2020512 4318
Cost DN 31,303
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE —
Net carrying amount RMEFE 31,303
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15.

\\ 268

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units:

Nanjing Yadong cash-generating unit; and
Chuzhou Yurun cash-generating unit

Nanjing Yadong cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the Nanjing Yadong cash-
generating unit has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by
management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 17.9% (2019: 17.8%) per annum. The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year
period is 2.4% (2019: 2.4%).

Chuzhou Yurun cash-generating unit

In 2020, the recoverable amount of the Chuzhou Yurun cash-
generating unit has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by
management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 18.1% per annum. The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year period is 2.4%.

The management of the Group believes that any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions of the value-in-use
calculation would not cause the carrying amount to exceed
recoverable amount of the Nanjing Yadong cash-generating
unit and the Chuzhou Yurun cash-generating unit.

' (&)

2R E R
BREBAHESHEEESREEUTREE
HEEBAL

MRTRACELEM R
BT EREEEEM

AR RE S EEEN

ARG RESEABMHAIRE S EE TR EE
REBEFERFEET ZAEHZERNBER
[E 4t/ B R 2= 1 F 2 A9 B 7% 78 & B Il 7E D3R
SRETEA - RERETRARA N ARLE X
BEF17.9% (2019 © 17.8%) - ARHEE A F L
BEESRENIBRRE24% (20195 © 24%) °

BMFBE 2 ELEN

M2020%F - BINFEREEAEMHATIE S
BIOBREBERAEEFELEEE  ZirEAZE
EXBEEENEERETFHRANMBEE
sl ERSRERA - REREBAFAR
TRATRRI R A EF181% - AREM A FEHIEE
EmERIEREF24% o

AEEEREERRERBEFEZNEIEZRER
MEMSEAEEH IS TR AT RESE
EBULBMNTEREELBUNREELR
BE{Ek



15.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the
cash-generating units is as follows:

Nanjing Yadong
MRER

2020
20205
RMB’000
AR¥ET

CEL
EE(E

Carrying amount

of goodwill 12,301

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETT

12,301

LBREEEERAR - —2=—25sH @ \
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15. B2 (4

AR E R (&)
PEEZERCELBVMNEHENREENAT

Total
@it

Chuzhou Yurun

A

2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 20195 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000

ARETT NS ARET EUNG: S

19,002 — 31,303 12,301

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the
Nanjing Yadong cash-generating unit and Chuzhou Yurun
cash-generating unit for 31 December 2020. The following
describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The budgeted sales amounts are based
on the historical data and management’s expectation on the
future market.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average
gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Long term growth rate — The basis used to determine the
value assigned to the annual revenue growth rates is the
annual revenue achieved in the year immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

ERADRECEABNLBNFEREE
A BRI 2020F 1283 BEREERERT
B - TXMAEREAETHERENRM
EHMNREREBTRTRENSBEBERK

BEBA — REHEEDERNELRIEREE
BHARRMENEHMETE -

REERE — ARETAMESEREOHHEE
FRNEE AR ERE S ENMRENTLE
Rl EHBHMERE RERTSRE R
I=E

EHREER — AREBEEAHFERALRERD
EBEMANEESERBEFEAAISHNSE
BWA - WH AR RN E RFAYH IS RAE
th EF
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15. GOODWILL (Continued) 15. BHE @)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued) 2R E R ()
Pre-tax discount rate — The pre-tax discount rates used are TRIBAIRE — FTRA MBI ATRLIR R ARREL AT kR
before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant L7 B8 B O E BB ©
units.
The values assigned to the key assumptions on the annual BB REREBMNFENFEE WAL R KR
revenue growth rates of Nanjing Yadong and Chuzhou Yurun + ZRERBE KR AT AL IR K HE AN B R RR —
and pre-tax discount rates are consistent with external B o

information sources.

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HtEEEE

Customer
relationship Software Total

EFEE Lo At
31 December 2020 2020F12A318 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR¥Tx

Cost at 1 January 2020, net of 202061 A1 BAIRK AN -

accumulated amortisation bR 25T 5 6,756 1,875 8,631
Additions NE = 1,572 1,572
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) U BE B B A &) (B 5£29) 30,190 — 30,190
Amortisation provided during the TN (B FTe)

year (note 6) (1,711) (464) (2,175)
At 31 December 2020 2020912 H31H 35,235 2,983 38,218
At 31 December 2020: 20208128318 ¢

Cost [BEN 37,240 4,460 41,700

Accumulated amortisation RETH#E 5 (2,005) (1,477) (3,482)

Net carrying amount FREEE 35,235 2,983 38,218
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. HtBE&EE (&)
Customer
relationship Software Total
=FPEIE CIg s @t
31 December 2019 2019912 H31H RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AR®ETT
At 1 January 2019: 2019118 ¢
Cost B 7N — 2,274 2,274
Accumulated amortisation RETH#E 5 — (639) (639)
Net carrying amount BREFE — 1,635 1,635
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of 201961 A1 BRIRR AN
accumulated amortisation OB R ET 1 5 — 1,635 1,635
Additions NE — 532 532
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) Uk BE BT B8 A &) (B 5E29) 7,050 82 7,132
Amortisation provided during the FREHRE (Mike)
year (note 6) (294) (374) (668)
At 31 December 2019 720194128318 6,756 1,875 8,631
At 31 December 2019 and at MR2019F12 831 B R
1 January 2020: 20206F1 H1R -
Cost B AR 7,050 2,888 9,938
Accumulated amortisation REt#y (294) (1,013) (1,307)
Net carrying amount RAVEE 6,756 1,875 8,631
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2020912 A31H
17. INVENTORIES 17. B8
2020 2019
20205 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T AREEF T
Consumables FEM 39 19
39 19
As at 31 December 2020, there were no certain inventories R2020F 128318 - AEBEBESHRETES
(2019: Nil) of the Group being pledged to secure bank and (2019%F &) - AMEAREBERRIT R HE A
other borrowings granted to the Group. BRI -
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. EZEWRIE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARET T

Trade receivables 5 EWRIE 74,544 26,126
Impairment BB (2,424) (500)
72,120 25,626

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management
services income. The Group's trading terms with its customers
are mainly on credit, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management and
credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a
month. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

BHRUKATEZREMEEERBKA - K
SEEZPNRZERIBUEERER I
MEFPKI HEFPBEFELENR - AKH
S HL i R 8 R JE WOR A RS BRI ) - Wk
EEEZHFIUZERESERR - AR
HERERETCHEN MEFEEREEA
B — R ZEE LARERANEENE S &
WHIBRREREZTLEP  HAUBFESET
BEERR - B5REFKIBTEE -



18.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the date of revenue recognition,
net of provision for the loss allowance for impairment, is as
follows:

LBEREEEERAT - —s-s55% @ \
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18. B 5 EWHE (&)

RBER - ERREFER B B BMEBRRERS
BRENEZREFRKREITAOT

2020 2019
20205 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Within one year —F AR 61,605 19,622
Over one year and within two years —FERMENR 7,154 4,162
Over two years and within three years MFAER=FARN 2,241 985
Over three years =FLE 1,120 857
72,120 25,626

The movements in provision for the loss allowance for B RWHIBREEERBEZESHNOT :

impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®EF T
At the beginning of the year REH] 500 480
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BRI EEE (M ite) 1,924 20
At the end of the year RER 2,424 500

An impairment analysis was performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates were based on the ageing of trade receivables
for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns. The calculation reflected the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that was available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables were
written off if their ageings were more than three years and
were not subject to enforcement activity.

REHE B HRERBREREETREDT - A
FAERMEERE  BREXENAEFRUEE
BANZERF 2 BAEE E 5 RYIGIRN R
EE - ARt ERRATGEENELER  SER
RMEIREAREEEERMH  RERREKR
REEARTFAROAISEEMATHER  —
Rms BZRUGRANRKBEB=FATE
SR BB ITIE B A T DAMEH ©
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. E 3 FEWFIE ()
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure ATEHYAEEFRAEEEETENE S EKR
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: NEEERRERE :
As at 31 December 2020 720206128318
Past due
ki

Current 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years Over 3 years Total

L 1228 2E3F 3FENE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBT R ARBT T ARBT R ARBT R

Expected credit loss rate EREEEER 2.92% 3.42% 4,03% 16.85% 3.25%

Gross carnrying amount (RMB000) BEEEARETT) 63,455 7,407 2,335 1,347 74,544
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEERE

(AEBTT) 1,850 253 94 227 2,424

As at 31 December 2019 72019%F12A31H
Past due

Current 110 2 years 210 3 years Over 3 years Total

L 1825 1E3F IFNE i

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT

Expected credit loss rate BHEEEREX 062% 262% 8.20% 17.20% 191%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEREARETT) 19,744 4274 1,073 1,035 26,126
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BEEEER

(AEBTT) 122 12 88 178 500
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19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER ASSETS
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19. AAFIE - HttBERRBEREMEE

2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARKETTT

Prepayments on behalf of customers to

REBEFAAREEMER

utility suppliers S MTENFIE 14,073 17,287
Other tax recoverable E fth Ay U B #7278 1,033 2,040
Advance to staff EI=R e = 4,299 1,131
Other deposits HEMize 6,343 10,237
Interest receivables FE UL F B 3,441 —
Others Ei 1,740 1,915

30,929 32,610
Impairment allowance BB (580) (580)
30,349 32,030

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

Hip @Y RBRREBBRREZLIWT

2020 2019

2020 20194F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETTT

At the beginning of the year REA] (580) (216)
Impairment losses, net (note 6) WA EEFEE (M Ee) = (364)
At the end of the year RER (580) (580)

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets are unsecured,

non-interest-bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

BNFIE - EEUGRIA R 8 ES R EE
# 2EAEETEERY-
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19.

20.
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PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

Other deposits and amounts due from third parties mainly
represent deposits with suppliers. Where applicable, an
impairment analysis is performed annually by considering the
probability of default of comparable companies with published
credit ratings. In the situation where no comparable
companies with credit ratings can be identified, expected
credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach
with reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The
loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The
applied loss rates where there are no comparable companies
as at 31 December 2020 were 5.11% (2019: 5.15%).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

19. FAAFIE

HibtEWREREMEE
(&)

Hiize RERE = A REETEEEEERN
Ze -WMER BFRBZERAREATIRD
AELRARMELNREETREDN - WE
EHPEEERFRNATELRAR - BIER
EASERNBAEBBRERABRERAGBTE
HEEEBE - BEEERNEERRELFHEN
F2 Bl & ATAR T B 39 AR SRAS B AR SR RO TERI © 722020
F1NANA  EEUELRARBAT  EA
BIESBE 5511% (20194F : 5.15%) ©

BAVFEFABRENERMEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREETF T

Other unlisted investments, at fair value EMIEEMIRE  BAFE = 3,100
— 3,100

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland
China. The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation model
based on the market interest rates of instruments with similar

terms and risks.

As at 31 December 2020, there were no financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (2019: Nil) being pledged to secure
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group.

AEERENFLTRE  ZEREETER
WRTHTHMEEEER - AKEREASR
BOUGRERARNTANTSMNE  RAKRE
MEMRAERAGAZEHELTRENAF
& -

M20206F 124318 MEZE AT EFF ABED
SRMEEQIF : EBEH  UESK TR
EEMRITREMER -



21.

LBREEEERAR - —2=—25sH @ \

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRk Mt
31 December 2020
2020128318
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. RERREEEY
2020 2019
20205 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T AREEF T
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTEHS 826,250 179,111
826,250 179,111
Less: Restricted cash B R EHIIRE 8 —
Non-pledged long term time deposits EERRETHER 170,000 —
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEeEEY 656,242 179,111

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The cash and bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximate to their fair values.

As at 31
restricted cash, time deposits and cash and cash equivalents

December 2020, the internal credit ratings of

were regarded as the grade of performing. The Group has
assessed that the credit risk of the restricted cash, time
deposits and cash and cash equivalents has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and measured the
impairment based on 12-month expected credit losses, and
has assessed that the expected credit losses are immaterial.

ARBIAGERIBRSEMEY  BRES
M CHMNE B IR 15 6)) R KRB EE - EERMEE
BRE)  AEE R RBEREETINERTH
RITHARBLBBEMER -

RITMERBE HRITERIRIZF BN ER
BAME - RERBITERDFEN ORI EE
HWREBNEERFRT -RERRSFEYH
FREEEEAFERS -

20206124318 - R HIIFRE - THFEHRIA
kR RBEBYHRNBEETREERE
BRIFEA - AEBFTE  XRFIRE - TH
FRARE € RREEEY B VR HERUARE
BRI EEZEN  WE2EABHEEES
B ERE THICEBEEBBITEAX -
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22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. EFEMNFIE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RFERR  EREZAHNE S EMNRIAER
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BROMMAT :
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARKETTT
Within 1 year —F A 43,485 39,954
Over 1 year —FHE 4,472 3,207
47,957 43,155
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing. EORNREREE
As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of trade 2020124318 - B 5N KIAHN REE R
payables approximated to their fair values and are normally HAVERESE  —BR—FRLES -
settled within 1 year.
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HitEAREREFGER

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%¥ Tt ARET T

Receipts on behalf of community residents S AFASERRLEEEF

for utilities Yo B W R 35,264 36,645
Deposits received BUiEe 22,444 9,314
Other tax payable H A ERBIIR 15,988 18,307
Payroll and welfare payable ERIEREF 67,146 48,788
Others HAth 32,713 15,660

173,555 128,714
Other payables are unsecured and repayable on demand. The HMENRIEAEERTERERER - EM
fair values of other payables at each reporting date ERZRERSREAHNAFEREEBENR
approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts. EERE -
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24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24. EREEE
2020 2019
2020 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARKET T
Short-term advances received from W E = B 52 B3 50
customers
Property management services Y EIE RS 133,369 81,346
Community value-added services RIS E R 1,384 561
134,753 81,907
The Group receives payments from customers based on billing AEERBEVEEESRAMSEERERAR
schedules as established in the property management PRBAMAR - REEBRERNBESR (E2XE
contracts. A portion of payments is usually received in advance Y EIRARTS) B 4 A2 AT W ER EB 5 1 5K ©

of the performance under the contracts which are mainly from

property management services.
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The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
year are as follows:

25. DEFERRED TAX 25.

iF i B 1]

REANEEHREEERBBENEFWT

Deferred tax assets EERIBEE
Impairment
losses Tax losses Total
BEEBE HIEEE Azt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT AR%KTT
At 1 January 2019 201951 H1H 174 1272 1,446
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss 9 A FH Az A IEEFE 1A
during the year 96 4,771 4,867
At 31 December 2019 and 2019512 318 &
1 January 2020 202051 A1 H 270 6,043 6,313
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss & A &F AR 5 8 IR IE T 18
during the year 169 243 412
At 31 December 2020 2020612 431 H 439 6,286 6,725
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Deferred tax liabilities
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE# 3R R Bt ot

31 December 2020

2020512 A31H

25, IEIERIE ()

Fair value Depreciation
adjustments allowance in

arising from excess of
acquisition of related
subsidiaries depreciation Total

e % Y B ERE
BYNVE BHEE
AR neE Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTT ARBTIT ARETRT

At 1 January 2019 201951 A1H — (256) (256)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) W B BB A A (B RE29) (1,763) — (1,763)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FRFA 0k A)ER

profit or loss during the year B 3 AE A 18 74 (305) (231)
At 31 December 2019 and 2019512 4318 &

1 January 2020 202081 A1 H (1,689) (561) (2,250)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) W B BT /8 2 A (B 3% 29) (7,548) — (7,548)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FARFA (kK E) B

profit or loss during the year B 3 AE A% 18 428 (965) (537)
At 31 December 2020 FR2020%F12A31H (8,809) (1,526) (10,335)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

REJNME  BETELCRBREERABDRE
BMBEIRRKRAEE - U T RUTERFE R
& BIRE IR R -
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25. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

25. EFERIIE (&)

ELEBERE (&)

K 282

2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARMET T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE B AR A R AR
consolidated statement of financial position VIRETRIE & B E 6,490 6,313
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERE BB AR R &R MR
consolidated statement of financial position FIRLETIE & EFE (10,100) (2,250)
(3,610) 4,063

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB36,397,000 (2019: RMB30,387,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the

following item:

AEBESERFRAMEENFHEEEBARE
36,397,0007T (20194F : A R#30,387,0007T) * #
R—ZEREER ANEKERRERHRFE -
HRZEBEBNREESYBEZENIE A A
BRWR AR E S AHIBEEEEHAE
AAE MU ERZEEERRAERLERIEE
g °

WERIATIEBERELERAEE :

Tax losses

2020 2019
20204 20194F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTTT

MIEEE 11,255 6,215

The above tax losses are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of the above item as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the above item
can be utilised.

FaBAEBRAHERBEEELE RN AR
HIARRERBUE A - ARRB AT KA REA ER
Bom A A AERSE LR e - s Rt bt iE
BRRBELENREE -
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DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 25. IEFEIH ()
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued) ELEHIBEEE (E)
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% RIB(PE AR KBS EMETIE) + E£F
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign B BN I B R 2 RB MR B B B IR EY
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established AR BB 0% TR o 5% R E B 200841 A
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 1HREMWEANR2007F 1283 BHREENA
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower F o fini o B b BR 528 SNR B B PR R RlA B B
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty EFEEBKEZH  IHRAREENHE - K&
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign EMEARELE10% - ALt - AEBEAERZER
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group R B A A 2 BT BB R Rk B 2008 4R 1 A1 BB E
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends ER BT T IR & IR B MTENEL o
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
As at 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been recognised 2020128318 - EFAEE R H A
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the PR A2 A B BB R R B B AN TE 1 A 9 AR B S & e
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of NHTEHRERELETIE - ARREEFERA -
the Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the AEEMNESBBERFEAM - IEFTAE
opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group's fund will RS BIbZSEWE QR & T KA sER A]
be retained in Mainland China for the expansion of the TERARKD K% ERBAH -
Group's operation, so it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
SHARE CAPITAL 26. IRA
Shares = 17
2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®ETR AR¥ETTT
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRARE
415,000,000 (2019: 1) ordinary shares of 415,000,000 (20194F : 1) I8
HK$0.01 each (2019: HK$0.01 each) FRREE0.017E T (2019

F . FRAEEIEIT)

H) 3 A

3,764 —
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as

26. PR ()

M Ap (%)
ARBMPRASEB 20T

Number of

shares in issue

Share capital

ERTRHOEE [N
RMB'000
ARBTT
As at 1 January 2019 201951 H1H — —
Issue of ordinary shares BEITERRK 1
As at 31 December 2019 and P2019F12A31H K
1 January 2020 2020F1 A1H 1 =
Issue of ordinary shares BITE B 99 =
Issue of ordinary shares upon listing R ETRETERR 100,000,000 907
Issue of ordinary shares upon capitalisation A& AL B 377 L @A 299,999,900 2,722
Issue of ordinary shares upon over- T 6B #R AL AR R B 31T E AR
allotment option 15,000,000 135
As at 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 415,000,000 3,764

\\ 284

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12
December 2019. On its date of incorporation, 1 ordinary share
of HKS$0.01 was allotted by the Company to a subscriber and
was transferred to Mr. Zeng Huansha. Mr. Zeng Huansha then
transferred the share to Redsun Service Group (Holdings)
Limited on 20 December 2019.

On 21 January 2020, 99 shares were issued to Redsun Service
Group (Holdings) Limited as consideration for acquisition of the
entire equity interest in Nanjing Hong Yang Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

mﬂﬁﬂﬁézomﬁuﬂuaﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ%iﬂﬂﬁi

Y oREFMAZBE  ARAREHIKREE
oo/%rcE’J CARELE TREBA  WEETER
WS A o B S EBETE 7R 2019512 208 1§
ZREBREETLSREEE (ER) AR
ajo

202051 B 218 » 99 I (0 JE 21T T 5L 15 AR 7S
EEGER)BRAA - tEAWER RABRE
EEARAREIBRENRE -



26.

27.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

In connection with the listing of the shares of the Company on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), 100,000,000 new ordinary shares with a nominal
value of HKS0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$4.15 per
ordinary share for a total cash consideration of
HK$415,000,000, before deducting underwriting fees,
commissions and related expenses. In addition, 299,999,900
shares were issued by way of capitalisation. Dealings in the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange commenced
on 7 July 2020.

On 27 July 2020, the over-allotment option has been fully
exercised and the Company allotted and issued 15,000,000
additional shares at HK$4.15 per share.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 9 to 10
of the financial statements.

(@) Share premium
The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares issued and the consideration

received.

26.

27.

ABEBEEERAR - — 22555 @ \

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 R MY =

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

IR ()

B0 (%)
HARRBRDREBBERSMER A F ([H
RZFf]) EMmE ¢ 100,000,0000% &A% E0.0178
TR R E R ER TR L MAR4158 T T IA
1T 0 IR RIE A415000,00078 70 © AHBRE
HE - A REBERZ o LEIN + 299,999,900 % A%
NEEBBEFREARFR FUET - KR ARG
2020F 7 A7EFAHBRERFMEE -

720207 A27H @ BEERCAREE B EETT(E
i AN A 7] 3% 5 B 4.15 78 JT B 3 K& 3£ 1715,000,000
REEBINIR 1D o

(E]

BEAFERZAFE AKENHEESER
HEH2IINPBERRFIZI10EMNEGR AR
B -

#=4
A28

@) KRH=EE
Bt (B8 B B ITAR (D Bk B 82 B R
EBRERE-
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(b)

27. RESERVES (Continued)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
articles of association of the subsidiaries established in
the PRC, the Group is required to appropriate 10% of its
net profits after tax, as determined under the Chinese
Accounting Standards, to the statutory surplus reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of
association of the Group, the statutory surplus reserve
may be used either to offset losses, or to be converted
to increase share capital, provided that the balance after
such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for
purposes other than those for which they are created
and are not distributable as cash dividends.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the issued
capital of the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group and the capital contributions from
the equity holders of certain subsidiaries now
comprising the Group before the completion of the
reorganisation.

27. % (@)

(b) EEEBKLE
RIBHBECRARNE) MR B H T8 2
AIMABERAR - ARBEARBENE
SFEE10%T IR E BRI - L IR
TESHENEE  EERHBHREETH
M EARS0% A 1E - R BUER KA
SEAEMERAANPTEE TRENRR -
A BB NER AREHEERER AT
MR - EER R FERETNSLORASE
BREM & A25% © fE NS RER R
BEIASN AR - I RHERBREBRED
K

(0 BOtfEE
AEENSHRHEBERREATRAIAE
BIREE T ARMEZERARNDHETRA
RASERFETOE THE R RERS
BAEEE -



28. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-

controlling interests are set out below:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR EEERAR - —2—2558 @ \

B FRRMIEE
31 December 2020
2020128318

ZIa

28. BMAERFERERNFZENBLR

AEBHEEEAFERERNNERRFBEHR

2020 2019
20204 20194F
Percentage of equity interest held by AT RER TR R AR
non-controlling interests: AL
Nanjing Yadong Property Management FARDRMEEEERAA
Co., Ltd. 49% 49%
Chuzhou Yurun Property Management BNFEYEERBRRAA
Co.,, Ltd. 49% —
2020 2019
20205 20194F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBTT
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to DEEFEIEREREFA
non-controlling interests: ), (&) -
Nanjing Yadong Property Management HRERMEEERRAA
Co., Ltd. 2,487 (1,846)
Chuzhou Yurun Property Management BNFHEMEBTERR AR
Co,, Ltd. 572 —
Accumulated balances of non-controlling REEBE - FERER
interests at the reporting date: ZET AR
Nanjing Yadong Property Management HREREETERRAA
Co., Ltd. 10,921 8,434
Chuzhou Yurun Property Management BINFHEMEBTEFR AR
Co., Ltd. 17,595 —
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28. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 28. A EAFIEZEREZNIEZENRB AT
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) (4&)

TRHALAHBRARNPMBEERRE - A
BREBAG REMARFEEH

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed
are before any inter-company eliminations:

Chuzhou Yurun

Nanjing Yadong

\ 288

BMRERIR M
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T

Revenue Wz 58,054 18,064
Total expenses I 48 5R (51,143) (16,708)
Income tax expense Frigfif = (1,835) (188)
Profit for the year F N5 F 5,076 1,168
Total comprehensive profit for the year FALHEENBEE 5,076 1,168
Current assets MENE E 62,123 49,923
Non-current assets JEMENE E 6,883 29,498
Current liabilities mE A& (45,734) (36,578)
Non-current liabilities FEnBEE (1,513) (7,688)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEFBMSHRSREFHE 3,794 7,126
Net cash flows used in investing activities KRETBMARSREFHE (433) (117)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re LR EEWILINFE 3,361 7,009
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28. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 28. A EAFIEZEREZNIEZENRB AT

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) (&)
Nanjing Yadong
PR
2019 20194 RMB'000
ARBTTT
Revenue g 21,501
Total expenses EEEE (25,343)
Income tax expense FrisBimx 74
Loss for the year FANEE (3,768)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZHEEERE (3,768)
Current assets mENEE 52,936
Non-current assets FERBEE 8,846
Current liabilities mE B & (42,880)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (1,689)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHMSRENEFHE 31,114
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREESMAR S REFHE (349)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RehBEeEEWME TR 30,765
29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 29. ¥BEH
In September 2020, the Group acquired a 51% interest in 202098 " AEEUNBEEREARE
Chuzhou Yurun Property Management Co. Ltd. and its 36,720,0007C B 6 = F WEE RN FEMEE
subsidiaries from an independent third party at a cash BEARRA R LEK B AR5 1% o B FHE
consideration of RMB36,720,000. Chuzhou Yurun Property MEEEBRATNBREMESTER - It
Management Co,, Ltd. is engaged in the provision of property RWEB TR EBBEARPBRAEEERERT
management services. The acquisition was made as part of the B FREIER) — D o

Group’s strategy to expand its market share of property
management operation in Mainland China.
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 29. EBKS Gt (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Frus iRt @ A R Al Bl & E R B &K 20204
subsidiaries acquired during the year of 2020 was as follows: B AFERT
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
A UK BB B RE R Y
AFE
Notes RMB’000
Bt & AR¥T
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB REE 13 197
Other intangible assets Him\mzEE 16 30,190
Inventory rE 6
Trade receivables H 5 W RIE 23,074
Prepayments, other receivables and other FENFRIE - Hftb YR R A
assets BE 2,488
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEER 18,573
Trade payables B 5 ENRIE (5,315)
Other payables and accruals H At e 5B R BT E A (11,733)
Contract liabilities aRAaRE (10,344)
Tax payable FET R 1E (4,847)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEBE (7,548)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEFENHAEETE
k) 34,741
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE A (17,023)
Goodwill on acquisition IR R 2 19,002
Satisfied by cash AR & 21+ 36,720
The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables U BB - E 5 e W R IE K B FE W R IE Y
as at the date of acquisition amounted to RMB23,074,000 and RNEED B A AR 23,074,000 & A R #
RMB2,483,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts of 2,/483,0007C ° B 5 EWFIE K E M EWFIEN S
trade receivables and other receivables were RMB23,074,000 B2 % 5 5 & AR 23,074,000 & AR
and RMB2,483,000, respectively. 2,483,0007T °
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 29. ¥EBE O (#)
The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB400,000 for this 7N 52 B B UL UBE B AR RR 5 B AR A R 400,000
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and T ZERGKABLZE Wit NG EBm Rk
are included in other expenses in the consolidated statement Hih 2 E WK EMSZ AP o
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of ERWERBARMNBESRENTET ¢
the subsidiaries are as follows:
RMB’000
AR®T T
Cash consideration ReERE (36,720)
Cash and bank balances acquired BWIER e RIR{TA 18,573
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included ~ FFAKREBFEFFHEERENR SR
in cash flows from investing activities ReEEBEWRLFR (18,147)

Since the acquisition, the acquired subsidiaries contributed
RMB17,935,000 to the Group's revenue and RMBT,168,000 to
the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the
year of 2020 would have been RMB812,988,000 and
RMB75,876,000, respectively.

In August 2019, the Group acquired a 51% interest in Nanjing
Yadong from two independent third parties at a cash
consideration of RMB23,000,000. In August 2019, the Group
acquired a 51% interest in Shanghai Andi from two
independent third parties at a cash consideration of
RMB1,785,000.

Nanjing Yadong and Shanghai Andi are engaged in the
provision of property management services. These acquisitions
were made as part of the Group’s strategy to expand its
market share of property management operation in Mainland
China.

B U B - P UREE T B A R R E &= 2020512 A
TR IEFERAEEE B K AR 17,935,000
TC MR A A A R #51,168,0007T ©

A GEREHHETT » BI2020F AN & B Ur 25 K AR
EBIREFAE D B A AR #12,9880007T & A R ¥
75,876,0007 °

201968 A  REBEBAMEBELE =HWIERD
RERSI9MEZR RERERARE
23,000,0007T ° 7201948 B + ANEE A WA B
FEZHRE S RERS1%m iR BEREAA
R #1,785,0007C °

MRDRR BTN FERHEYEEERS -
BRAWBIIASEBEAERTBEAMBYXERE
RIS EBEEH — D o
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 29.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiaries acquired during the year of 2019 were as follows:

e33R E )

P P PN B8 2 BB R] BRI B E I B BN 20195F

BRAFENT

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition of
Shanghai Andi

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition of

Nanjing Yadong

RS B8R RUREERER
BREZNATE BERNAFE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B = AREF T ARBTTT
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 13 — 362
Other intangible assets HiEREE 16 — 7,132
Inventory BE — 9
Trade receivables B 5 WA 3,133 15,198
Prepayments, other receivables and TERT IR - KM
other assets HIERHEMEE 501 24911
Cash and bank balances B e MIRTT4 8 1,047 2,727
Other current assets Huhmeh & eE 719 —
Trade payables B 5 RN KIE (483) (1,022)
Other payables and accruals HEmpEFE R ET B R (852) (20,867)
Contract liabilities aRARE (1,255) (4,926)
Tax payable JE AT 5 18 m (782)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIBEEE — (1,763)
Total identifiable net assets at fair EATFEFEHH7
value BEFERRE 2,809 20,979
Non-controlling interests IR (1,024) (10,280
Goodwill on acquisition g aiSde OIS — 12,301
Satisfied by cash AR & 893 23,000
Deferred cash consideration BEERERE 892 —

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to RMB18,331,000 and
RMB25,412,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts of
trade receivables and other receivables were RMB18,331,000
and RMB25,412,000, respectively.
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RULEE B E - B 5 R Uk R IE K B E U SR IE A
RFEDF A ARI8331,000T & AR
25,412,0007T ° & 5 FE Y SRIA K B FE IR BY
ARBED R A AR18331,0007T &k A KK
25,412,0007T °
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 29. ¥EBE O (#)
The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB384,000 for this 7N B B UL WS B AE R S B AR A R 16 384,000
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and T ZERGKABLZE Wit NG EBm Rk
are included in other expenses in the consolidated statement Hi2mkamRAEZ Hep o
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of ERWERBARMNBESRENTET ¢
the subsidiaries is as follows:
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash consideration ReERE (23,893)
Cash and bank balances acquired BB & MIRTT 4S54 3,774
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included ~ FFAKREBFEFFHEERENR SR
in cash flows from investing activities ReEEBEWRLFR (20,19)

Since the acquisition, the acquired subsidiaries contributed
RMB24,829,000 to the Group's revenue and RMB3,849,000 to
the consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the
year of 2019 would have been RMB540,539,000 and
RMB57,006,000, respectively.

BUEE AR - FTURBERT B A Al R E 22019512 A
31 IEFERAEE S B K A R #24,829,000
TC M 4R A A A R #53,849,0007T ©

A GEREHHETT  BI2019F AN & B U 25 K AR
& BEF#5 5 Bl A A R ¥ 540,539,000 7T A R #E
57,006,0007 °
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31.
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

30. FERERERME

RETHELHEED

Interest-bearing
bank and other

Due to related

of the reporting period:

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end

borrowings companies Total
STERTE FE 1< BA B
HAb & ATHIE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFIT ARBFIT AREF T
At 1 January 2019 201941 A1 H 5,000 73,876 78,876
Cash flows from financing BMEFBMEES
activities mE (5,000) (35,016) (40,016)
Cash flows from non-financing IERMEEREE
activities mE — (442) (442)
At 31 December 2019 201912 A31H — 38,418 38,418
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H — 38,418 38,418
Cash flows from financing BEEEEES
activities mE = (38,356) (38,356)
Cash flows from non-financing FmMEFHES
activities mE — 2,734 2,734
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H — 2,796 2,796
COMMITMENTS 31. RIE

AEBRBEREREBATERASE

2020 2019
20205 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARKETTT

Contracted, but not provided for: BEET 418 (R AR B
Equipment B 1,592 1,452
1,592 1,452




32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these

financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties during the year:

LBEREEEERAT - —s-s55% @ \

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3R R A aE

31 December 2020

2020912 A31H

32. EEERARRD

@ BUEEHBREEME Y FROZIN -
AEEHANEBH TR0

Fellow subsidiaries:
Property management services
income
Value-added services to non-property
owners income

Other purchase from related parties

Joint ventures and associates of fellow
subsidiaries:
Property management services
income
Value-added services to non-property

owners income

The company controlled by the family
members of the controlling
shareholder:

Property management services
income

Other purchase from related parties

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR¥ET T
REMBAA :
YIS B RIS IWA
169,788 159,219
FEE T ERBUWA
95,406 73,034
R T E R H AR
B 2,150 —
RIZMBARIMNEEDE
53 /NCIIE
YIS B RIS WA
581 —
FEE T ERBUWA
58,782 39,915
REBRBRERBIESN
NG
P ¥ E IR RIS WA
4,402 11,064
R T E R H AR
B — 300
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(a)

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(Continued)
Notes:

These transactions were carried out in accordance with the
terms and conditions mutually agreed by the companies
involved. The service fees take into account a wide range of
factors, including but not limited to (i) the nature, age,
infrastructure features, geographical location and
neighbourhood profile of the relevant properties; (i) the
prevailing market price charged by other independent third
party service providers to related parties in respect of
comparable services; and (iii) any applicable rate recommended

by the relevant government authorities.

These transactions were carried out in accordance with the
terms and conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved.

These related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

During the year, the Group entered into a three-year lease
contract with a fellow subsidiary to lease certain
building as offices. The rental fee agreed by parties
involved was RMB460,000 annually.

A related company controlled by the controlling
shareholder made the payment of the listing expenses
on behalf of the Company. During the vyear, the
company repaid the listing expenses amounting to
RMB17,616,000 to the related company.

32, BEEARRZ (&)

(a)

(&)
GHE

%22 5 THARIE AR R 2 B ) 16 5E #1600 B Mk
HHET - RBBLSEZRBIRAEREE - 2
FBETRNOEEDENEE Bk ERR
Mt R E RBEER () EMBLE
=77 BRAG AL FE P 34 AR 35 AR 745 () B Bt 0 MR R O 3R
T B ¢ B Gii) A8 B BURT B P i e O (R 58 R 48

I % 32 5 Th 4% R 2 BART #4075 BLAR 195 5 O R 3R B
RIF#ETT

%55 BN 73 52 5 IR _E T AR RIS 14AE AT SR
ERFBEHERS -

FRN - ANEEE—HRRMBARFI R
H=FNHREAH  UHEETEEYE
ABWAE FINSTRENESATFA
R #460,0007T °

PRRS IR R FriE HI M BB A AR R AR A
NETER - A ARBIEEEBRHA
Al ETERARE17616,0007T °



32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)  Outstanding balances with related parties:

32, BEEARRZ (&)

(d) EEBREETTEVR AR

31 December

SR EEERAR - —2—2558 @ \

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R SRR B o

31 December 2020
2020128318

31 December

2020 2019
2020 20194
12A31H 12A31H8
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
Due from related companies: JE W BB N B EIE
Trade related 2 5
Fellow subsidiaries EES =N 67,347 96,589
Joint ventures and associates of fellow BRNBARNEE
subsidiaries m%&ﬂﬁé = WNE] 19,982 23,424
The company controlled by the family 22 I8 R R 51 B 2 1l &Y
members of the controlling ’A Al
shareholder 576 —
87,905 120,013
Due from related companies: JE U BB A B FE
Non-trade related EE 5 1E R
Fellow subsidiaries A ?Mﬂ% A = 548
The company controlled by the family Hﬁﬂﬁ%%%? i 9
members of the controlling ’D\ Al
shareholder = 142,169
= 142,717
Due to related companies: &~ BB A B FIE ¢
Trade related H 5 8
Fellow subsidiaries G i) =MANC] 530 62
Joint ventures and associates of fellow BREBATNAEE
subsidiaries PEREE AT 1,346 —
1,876 62
Due to related companies: JE 15 BB B 2 B RROA -
Non-trade related FE 58
Fellow subsidiaries GEY =N — 18,710
Joint ventures and associates of fellow REMBAFINEE
subsidiaries m%&ﬁ?ﬁ%’&ﬂ = 32
The company controlled by the family 7R B R R B AL A
members of the controlling ’& A
shareholder = 19,614
— 38,356
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)  (Continued)
The Group has assessed that the credit risk of these
receivables has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and measured the impairment under the
general approach based on the 12-month expected
credit loss, and has assessed that the expected credit
losses are immaterial.

(e)  Compensation of key management personnel of the

32, BEEARRZ (&)

@ (&
AEEFEZSREFIENEERR B
IATERR AR S AIRIE AN - R —ARTTE
ER12EAFRBEERE IR ERE - LT
HEMEEBHRLTEX -

Group:
2019
2020 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Short-term employee benefits % ER{E B 18 A 4,476 6,603
Pension scheme contributions and BEEZSFEERK

social welfare & & 216 514

Total compensation paid to key ENEZEEEAB T
management personnel B 4,692 7,117

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 8 to the financial statements.
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33.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

SR EEERAR - —2—2558 @ \

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

33. RERESTHNEMT A
RBEHERSSESRTANERGENT

follows:
2020 20204
Financial assets EMEE
Financial
assets at
amortised cost
1% # 88 AX A 1 BR
HNEmEE
RMB’000
ARET T
Trade receivables (note 18) g S ERIE (HaE1s) 72,120
Financial assets included in prepayments, other FEATERFRIE - B A EUGRIE K&
receivables and other assets (note 19) EMmEENSRMEE (3E19) 15,823
Cash and bank balances (note 21) R RIRITEH (H3E21) 826,250
Due from related companies (note 32) JiE Ui A B R IE (B 5E32) 87,905
1,002,098
Financial liabilities eMmaes

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

2 8 88 R A B BR

Wema &

RMB’'000

AR®T

Lease liabilities (note 14) HEaE (ME14) 1,361

Trade payables (note 22) B 5 e R0E (B aE22) 47,957
Financial liabilities included in other payables FFAEMBENREBERESERRN

and accruals (note 23) SR8 & (ME23) 90,421

Due to related companies (note 32) JE <t BB N =) ZaE (B 5E32) 1,876

141,615

W9///
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2019

Financial assets
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2020912 A31H

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

33. REMESTHNERMIA (#)

20194F

THEE

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

Mandatorily  Financial assets at
designated as such amortised cost Total
RATFERA
BRNEeREE IREBHEHKATIE
58 Il ¥5 7 NEmMEE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ETFTT AR¥ETTT AREF T
Trade receivables (note 18) Z 5 MW SRIE
(BtzE18) — 25,626 25,626
Financial assets included in ST ATER IR
prepayments, other receivables H h fE YR IE 2
and other assets (note 19) HEENDR
BE (M3E19) — 13,283 13,283
Financial assets at fair value LA EFAER
through profit or loss (note 20) ML EEE
(Bf¥7E20) 3,100 — 3,100
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHE S
(note 21) (BFEE21) — 179,111 179,111
Due from related companies JE U B Bk R B RUIE
(note 32) (M45E32) — 262,730 262,730
3,100 480,750 483,850




33.

34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

SR EEERAR - —2—2558 @ \

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 3R R A aE

31 December 2020

2020912 A31H

33. REHESHEHMTA (B0

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

2 8 SH B 2R 51| BR

Eofcalzy=Ki=

RMB'000

ARMET T

Trade payables (note 22) B S FER IR (H5E22) 43,155
Financial liabilities included in other payables, and FFAEMEAFERESERN

accruals (note 23) SR aE (MrE23) 61,619

Due to related companies (note 32) JE 1 A 2 R 5RIE (M9 5E32) 38,418

143,192

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

THEE

Financial assets

BAFEF AREH

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

34. TWMIENAFERATFEER

BREREAXFESERENERTAN K
SESRTEANKEERAFENT

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AYE

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
INLED AN ARETT

2020 2019
2020 2019%
RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT NS

— 3,100 —

— 3,100 —
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34.
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
bank balances, amounts due from related companies, trade
receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, lease
liabilities, and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland
China. The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation model
based on the market interest rates of instruments with similar
terms and risks.

34.

TRITENATFERQAFEER @

EEEEHERERIRTHES  BKER QA
RE - EHERWFHIR  BHEMNKE  FFAR
IR - EftRUGRIE Rt EENSREE
HERBRFARLMENFALEFERNE
MEBEENATEREAKREEES  TERAR
ZETANTHHRERE -

AEENMEHPRMBEERE AEEE
TR TARFEFENBHREIER - MBERE
EERNYBRERERZZECER NERS
BHE - MEHMAsTeRTABENES X
REBEEBRNERGABE - HEHMBE
EEMLIE AEAERREREERZZES
s B R SR B A B IR AE L — F R AR R o

EMEERBBENRAFEAZTEBRR S
(REHBFRHEERINENZZ TARZ TR
AFR

ErEERENAFEERHSRE -

AREIRER I ETIRE - B B HIRIT
ANEMESRRESEMESLEES - &
REDEAERRSREERE - RERRA
QIR T AN TEFE - i RSE LR
AMATE -
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 34. TWMIENAFEERATFEER (&)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy N EER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TEREPAEECHTAENATEFEER

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value: BRFEGTENEE
As at 31 December 2019 201912 A31H

Fair value measurement using

ERTIIBEN N FEE
Significant Significant
Quoted prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EAABR BAMIER
RS RE BAHE BAHE

(F14) (F28) (F38R) st
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTRE ARETR

Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFAEEN
profit or loss FREE — 3,100 — 3,100

— 3,100 - 3,100
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances, trade receivables and other receivables, trade
payables and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations, amounts with related companies and other
receivables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies. None of
the Group's sales (2019: Nil) were denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the operating units
making the sale, whilst 100% (2019: 100%) of costs were
denominated in the units’ functional currencies.

In addition, the Group has currency exposures from its cash
and bank balances.

35.

MEEEEERFEREER

ARENEIECRIABERS RATES -
COL NV E e SRS -EY G e
BREMBAHE  ZEeMIAALEED
505 2 FRD #0 3B 2 B BB R
HoRESMIANTIERMERAREEY
BERE -

AEEeRTAELNTERRSEIMNERR -
FERBEADESRR EF SR RIHE
EH R ERROBER - BRABRBAET -

S BE = B

AEEERRSEREAR BHERBRIRE HEIE
Mk EREBENVHBERBEERS - AEBAH
EHE (2019F ) NETHENKEEEMD
ee &M AN BB ETE - 100% (20194F -
100%) K AR B AZ ZF B AL M Thae B ¥ E o

SESh - AR B R IR & N IR 1T 4 #k i m bR S EE A
B o



35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
HKD exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values
of monetary assets and liabilities).

SR EEERAR - —2—2558 @ \
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2020912 A31H

35. BIEkREERSEREXK @

SMNEE LB (48)

TROERAT - AEBOBAFE (e EE
RAFNATESBHME) HETER DAL
58 B ) B R

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in

(decrease) in

profit before

HKD rate tax
BTER i B0 Fl 58
EH (TH) L£H(TH)
RMB’000
AR¥T
2020 20205
If the RMB weakens against the HKD MARMEHBTEE -5% 4,103
If the RMB strengthens against the HKD mARESBITHE +5% (4,103)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is
not significant. For transactions that are not denominated in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the
Group does not offer credit terms without the specific
approval of the Head of Credit Control.

=&
AEEEEERANEERINE =TS -
AEEZBHRRBABEEREREEGRIETRS

MEBEPHARREERZER LI ARE
BHRYRRZHRETER  HAKEHEED

BRI NEKN - HRWIFABREEEEN
FERNDEEEFENRS  NEBEERERE
EERTERERAENBRA T A TRAGEES -

m&//
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35.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum

exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,

which is mainly based on past due information unless other

information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-

end staging classification. The amounts presented are gross

carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2020

35.

B 7 LB B AR I BUR (@)

&= EbE & F 4 R R
TERBINERAEBNEERRNEEERR
EREERR  T2ENBHMEHN (BRIFEMLE
FAlEEAND A BERARKE BN T E
B REBERON - FR2JNEHSRESH
BEMKEE -

72020512 H31H

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8 8
RAREER FRMENEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1ER EpLEE F3fR Bt h % -
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTTR ARBTTR
Trade receivables* g 5 REYE = — — 74,544 74,544
Financial assets included in STABRFE - Kt
prepayments, other receivables and FEUFIEREA
other assets BENSBEE
— Normal** — E&™ 30,929 = = = 30,929
Cash and bank balances Re RETHEH
— Not yet past due —WRE S 826,250 - - - 826,250
857,179 - - 74,584 931,723




35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019

35.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ABEBEEERAR - — 22555 @ \

M |RRM
31 December 2020
2020128318

MHEEEREEBEREE @

&= b & AL ER (48)
2019412 A31H

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12 A
BHEERR FERRSEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1B& FRE F3RE ka7 b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTTL
Trade receivables* B SR YEr - - - 26,126 26,126
Financial assets included in FABRTE K
prepayments, other receivables and FEYETIE R At
other assets EENSREE
— Normal** —E&™ 32610 - - - 32610
Cash and bank balances BeRFITEH
— Not yet past due — HABH 179,11 - - - 179,111
211721 — — 26,126 237847

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 18. There is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
18 to the financial statements.

* MAEEEABRETENE SRR -
BB RIE T B B O R 183058 - iR
EXEESTRER -

= FPABNRR - ERMERFRREMEETD
CREEFELEEABYRERAIES]
W EREEMKRAZSTEREE B VIAFER A
KIEERBRBZEN -

ERASEREE S RUFIANEERRIE
—FEEE KPR E18HE -

w%//
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. UHEREEREREEK (@
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk REBE TR
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between AEBHWEEERAFERESEMNNKIE B
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of trade AR RIEREMENRIEEFESFE N
payables, amounts due to related companies and other MBEEZENTE BHeRENBRAIFE
payables. Cash flows are being closely monitored on an B g o

ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the AEERBERRZEHRGERFTRGFENS
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual REENE BB RN

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Less than
On demand 3 months 3 to 12 months Over 1 year Total

REX 3fA MR 3E128R 150 E CH

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R AR®TR

31 December 2020 2020%12A31H
Lease liabilities REAE 1,361 - - - 1,361
Trade payables BAENHE 47,957 - - - 47,957
Financial liability included in SR FIER
other payables SRERE 90,421 - - - 90,421
Due to related companies ERBHARNA 1,876 - - - 1,876
141,615 - - - 141,615
Less than
On demand 3months 3 to 12 months Over 1 year Total
REX AR 3Z12f8A 1EME At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
31 December 2019 2019128318
Lease liabilities HEBE - - - - -
Trade payables BHEMNTIE 43155 - - - 43155
Financial liability included in SEAH MM TRER
other payables SRER 61619 — — — 61619
Due to related companies R BB AR FUR 38418 — — — 38418

143,192 - - - 143,192
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt
represents trade payables, other payables and accruals, less
cash and cash equivalents. The Group did not have net debt as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019. Capital represents total equity.

35.

ABEBEEERAR - — 22555 @ \

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE# 3R R Bt ot

31 December 2020

20206F 12 A31H

MHEEEREEBEREE @

EAEE
AEEEAEENTIZERRAREAKRER
BREVHFRENEARL RO - U
HEXBWERREEZAL -

REESRBELCERL S REEEENRR
HEBEERHABRELEREE REFIAEE
RBERE  AEBAFAZRRMS TFREMRKRE - [
REFEEALBETHR - AEERZRNE
RSN EBHEANBY & AR E 3Rk o £ 22020412 A31H
IEFEEREE2019F12A31BILFE  BARE
BB BORSURBARBEZ L -

AEBEFHAERBGEL X (AVEBFHRALHE
BREREEBFENT) REZER o FR5FHE
BB ZEMNNRIE - HERRIBRIEFTE R
RERIBEEEY - 120209 K2019F12 A31
H AEEBEERFEE BXREERARS -
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

36. RQT MBI ARRE

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the B AR R AR s B R B B 75 4R 00 2k 89 & R
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: s ¢
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR®EF T
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HKBARMNKEE 198,119 —
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 198,119 —
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Due from subsidiaries JE UG B B R Bl FRIE 199,382 —
Cash and bank balances B& RIRTTE 8 81,692 —
Total current assets MEEERE 281,074 —
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Other payables and accruals HMENRIBRETER 123 —
Due to related parties JE 15 BB Bt 75 5K 7B 4 —
Due to subsidiaries RN NGIE S 182 —
Total current liabilities mEBABERE 309 —
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZRE 280,765 —
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEAERRBAR 478,884 —
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBAE
Total non-current liabilities R BEEE — —
Net assets BEFE 478,884 —
EQUITY =
Share capital % 3,764 —
Reserves (G 475,120 —
Total equity 0 e e 478,884 —




36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. A2 A KY B G AR R 3k ()
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Mo&E -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RATRHREERZENAT :
Share Share Other  Accumulated
Capital premium reserve losses Total
E R 17 % E Hinft e 2t ER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:R
Balance at 1 January 2019 R20195F 1 A1 B &Y # R — — — — —
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREAEERLEE — — — — —
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 #2019F 128318 &
20201818 = = = = =
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREABELE — — — (32,317) (32,317)
Re-organisation R = = 98,788 = 98,788
Issue of shares BITR AR 3,764 427314 — - 431,078
Share issue expenses BRI BITRZ = (18,665) - - (18,665)
At 31 December 2020 M2020% 124318 3,764 408,649 98,788 (32,317) 478,884
37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37. %EMBHRK
The financial statements were approved and authorised for BB BROR 2021 F3 A B EREESHET K
issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2021. RETEE -
38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 38. MEHEREIR

SR EEERAR - —2—2558 @ \

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE# 3R R Bt ot

31 December 2020

2020912 A31H

On 15 January 2021, the Group acquired a 80% interest in
Wuhan Huidehang Management Property Service Co., Ltd. (E
BESITIHRYMERBS AR 2 R]) from an independent third
party at a cash consideration of RMB216,000,000. Wuhan
Huidehang Management Property Service Co., Ltd. is engaged
in the provision of property management services. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to
expand its market share of property management operation in
Mainland China.

R2021F1H15H - AEEUREREARK
216,000,000 7T 3B 5 = W BB B B =75
MR HR A RIS0% A - RIZESBITHRE
MERBER DN EREMEEERS - It
RBBERAEBBBATBRAEMEETRERT
D RBERE ) — 2B o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2017 2018 2019 2020
20174F 20184F 20194F 20204
RBM'000 RBM'000 RBM'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETT AR®TT PN=EiSinw
Revenue A 257,140 348,981 502,990 767,852
Cost of sales 85 B AR (199,091) (279,209) (375,546) (553,514)
Gross profit EH 58,049 69,772 127,444 214,338
Other income and gains N PN SR 1,073 632 3,129 20,136
Selling and distribution expenses — $5%& & 7 #5512 (694) (699) (364) (786)
Administrative expenses THRAX (16,996) (24,227) (50,944) (104,249)
Other expenses HEi (1,554) (37) (190) (19,086)
Impairment losses on financial ERMEEREBERSEFE
assets, net (73) (160) (384) (1,924)
Finance costs B & A AR (1,174) (837) (392) (46)
Profit before tax B 54 B v A 38,631 44,444 78,299 108,383
Income tax expense FrigHi X (9,919) (11,453) (21,232) (35,068)
Profit for the year N5 28,712 32,991 57,067 73,315
Owners of the parent S RAIEA A 28,712 32,991 59,061 69,751
Non-controlling interests EE IR — — (1,994) 3,564
Total non-current assets JEMBEELE 9,976 11,162 36,893 90,938
Total current assets mBNEERE 126,864 252,979 502,616 1,016,663
Total assets BmEE 136,840 264,141 539,509 1,107,601
Total current liabilities MENBEARE 119,656 213,710 319,925 376,851
Total non-current liabilities EmBBEERE — 256 2,250 10,335
Total liabilities weE 119,656 213,966 322,175 387,186
Equity X
Equity attributable to owners of BARIHRE ARIEEZR
the parent 17,184 50,175 208,024 690,188
Non-controlling interests IR E R — — 9,310 30,227
Total equity e B EE 17,184 50,175 217,334 720,415
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